Public Document Pack

-

Ly

ABERDEEN

CITY COUNCIL

To: Councillor Boulton, Convener; Councillor Stewart, Vice Convener, the Depute
Provost; and Councillors Allan, Cooke, Copland, Cormie, Greig, Avril MacKenzie
and Malik.

Town House,
ABERDEEN 25 May 2020

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Members of the PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
are requested to meet remotely on MONDAY, 1 JUNE 2020 at 10.00 am.

FRASER BELL
CHIEF OFFICER - GOVERNANCE

In accordance with UK and Scottish Government guidance, meetings of this Committee
will be held remotely as required. In these circumstances the meetings will be recorded
and thereafter published on the Council’'s website at the following link

BUSINESS

MEMBERS PLEASE NOTE THAT ALL LETTERS OF REPRESENTATION ARE
NOW AVAILABLE TO VIEW ONLINE. PLEASE CLICK ON THE LINK WITHIN
THE RELEVANT COMMITTEE ITEM.

MOTION AGAINST OFFICER RECOMMENDATION

1.1 Motion Against Officer Recommendation - Procedural Note (Pages 5 - 6)

DETERMINATION OF URGENT BUSINESS

2.1 Determination of Urgent Business

DECLARATION OF INTERESTS



https://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/services/council-and-democracy/committee-meeting-recordings
https://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/services/council-and-democracy/committee-meeting-recordings

3.1 Members are requested to intimate any declarations of interest (Pages 7 -
8)

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS

41 Minute of Meeting of the Planning Development Management Committee
of 30 April 2020 - for approval (Pages 9 - 42)

COMMITTEE PLANNER

5.1 Committee Planner (Pages 43 - 44)

GENERAL BUSINESS

PRE DETERMINATION HEARING PROCEDURE

6.1 Site at Silverburn House, Claymore Drive, Aberdeen - 191904 (Pages 45 -
70)

WHERE THE RECOMMENDATION IS ONE OF APPROVAL

7.1 Detailed Planning Permission - erection of primary school with early years
facility, associated 3G pitch, soft and hard landscaping, alterations to
access and all associated works - Former Tillydrone Infant School site,
Coningham Gardens Aberdeen (Pages 71 - 112)

Planning Reference — 200206/DPP

All documents associated with this application can be found at the
following link and enter the reference number above:-
Link.

Planning Officer: Aoife Murphy

7.2 Detailed Planning Permission - erection of 6 residential flats with
associated landscaping - 44/46 Bedford Road Aberdeen (Pages 113 -
134)

Planning Reference — 200303

All documents associated with this application can be found at the
following link and enter the reference number above:-

Link.

Planning Officer: Robert Forbes


https://publicaccess.aberdeencity.gov.uk/online-applications/
https://publicaccess.aberdeencity.gov.uk/online-applications/

7.3 Detailed Planning Permission - Residential development of 245 private
rented sector flats (up to nine storeys and two basement levels) with
amenity space, 254 car parking spaces, two publicly accessible car club
vehicles, residents' gym, residents' function room, public bistro and public
promenade with viewpoints to quarry - Rubislaw Quarry (Pages 135 - 200)

Planning Reference — 200042

All documents associated with this application can be found at the
following link and enter the reference number above:-
Link.

Planning Officer: Matthew Easton

DATE OF NEXT MEETING

8.1 Thursday 2 July 2020 - 10am

To access the Service Updates for this Committee please click here

Website Address: www.aberdeencity.gov.uk

Should you require any further information about this agenda, please contact Lynsey
McBain, Committee Officer, on 01224 522123 or email lymcbain@aberdeencity.gov.uk


https://publicaccess.aberdeencity.gov.uk/online-applications/
https://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/ecCatDisplayClassic.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13450&path=0
http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 1.1

MOTIONS AGAINST RECOMMENDATION

Members will recall from the planning training sessions held, that there is a statutory
requirement through Sections 25 and 37 of the Town and Country Planning
(Scotland) Act 1997 for all planning applications to be determined in accordance with
the provisions of the Development Plan unless material considerations indicate
otherwise. All Committee reports to Planning Development Management Committee
are evaluated on this basis.

It is important that the reasons for approval or refusal of all applications are clear and
based on valid planning grounds. This will ensure that applications are defensible at
appeal and the Council is not exposed to an award of expenses.

Under Standing Order 28.10 the Convener can determine whether a motion or
amendment is competent, and may seek advice from officers in this regard.

With the foregoing in mind the Convener has agreed to the formalisation of a
procedure whereby any Member wishing to move against the officer
recommendation on an application in a Committee report will be required to state
clearly the relevant development plan policy(ies) and/or other material planning
consideration(s) that form the basis of the motion against the recommendation and
also explain why it is believed the application should be approved or refused on that
basis. Officers will be given the opportunity to address the Committee on the
competency of the motion. The Convener has the option to call a short recess for
discussion between officers and Members putting forward a motion if deemed
necessary.

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



Agenda Iltem 3.1

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

You must consider at the earliest stage possible whether you have an interest to
declare in relation to any matter which is to be considered. You should consider
whether reports for meetings raise any issue of declaration of interest. Your
declaration of interest must be made under the standing item on the agenda,
however if you do identify the need for a declaration of interest only when a particular
matter is being discussed then you must declare the interest as soon as you realise
it is necessary. The following wording may be helpful for you in making your
declaration.

| declare an interest in item (x) for the following reasons ...............

For example, | know the applicant / | am a member of the Board of X / | am
employed by... and | will therefore withdraw from the meeting room during any
discussion and voting on that item.

OR

| have considered whether | require to declare an interest in item (x) for the following
reasons ............... however, having applied the objective test, | consider that my
interest is so remote / insignificant that it does not require me to remove myself from
consideration of the item.

OR

| declare an interest in item (x) for the following reasons ............... however |
consider that a specific exclusion applies as my interest is as a member of xxxx,
which is

(@) adevolved public body as defined in Schedule 3 to the Act;

(b)  a public body established by enactment or in pursuance of statutory
powers or by the authority of statute or a statutory scheme;

(c) abody with whom there is in force an agreement which has been made
in pursuance of Section 19 of the Enterprise and New Towns
(Scotland) Act 1990 by Scottish Enterprise or Highlands and Islands
Enterprise for the discharge by that body of any of the functions of
Scottish Enterprise or, as the case may be, Highlands and Islands
Enterprise; or

(d) a body being a company:-

i. established wholly or mainly for the purpose of providing services to
the Councillor’s local authority; and

ii. which has entered into a contractual arrangement with that local
authority for the supply of goods and/or services to that local authority.

OR
| declare an interest in item (x) for the following reasons...... and although the body is

covered by a specific exclusion, the matter before the Committee is one that is
quasi-judicial / regulatory in nature where the body | am a member of:

Page 7



is applying for a licence, a consent or an approval

is making an objection or representation

has a material interest concerning a licence consent or approval

is the subject of a statutory order of a regulatory nature made or proposed to
be made by the local authority.... and | will therefore withdraw from the
meeting room during any discussion and voting on that item.

Page 8



Agenda Item 4.1

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

ABERDEEN, 30 April 2020. Minute of Meeting of the PLANNING
DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE. Present:- Councillor Boulton,
Convener; Councillor Stewart, Vice Convener, the Depute Provost; and
Councillors Allan, Cooke, Copland, Greig, Henrickson (as substitute for
Councillor Cormie), Avril MacKenzie and Malik.

The agenda and reports associated with this minute can be found
here.

Please note that if any changes are made to this minute at the point
of approval, these will be outlined in the subsequent minute and this
document will not be retrospectively altered.

MINUTE OF MEETING OF THE PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE OF 19 MARCH 2020

1. The Committee had before it the minute of the previous meeting of 19 March,
2020, for approval.

The Committee resolved:-
to approve the minute as a correct record.

MINUTE OF MEETING OF THE PRE DETERMINATION HEARING OF 13 JANUARY
2020

2. The Committee had before it the minute of the Pre Determination Hearing of 13
January 2020, for approval.

The Committee resolved:-
to approve the minute as a correct record.

MINUTE OF THE MEETING OF THE PRE DETERMINATION HEARING OF 15
JANUARY 2020

3. The Committee had before it the minute of the Pre Determination Hearing of 15
January 2020, for approval.

The Committee resolved:-
to approve the minute as a correct record.

COMMITTEE PLANNER

Page 9


https://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=348&MId=7091&Ver=4

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
30 April 2020

4. The Committee had before it a planner of future Committee business.

The Committee resolved:-
to note the information contained within the Committee business planner.

CLOVERHILL ABERDEEN - 191171

5. The Committee had before it a report by the Chief Officer — Strategic Place
Planning, which recommended:-

That the application for planning permission in principle for the erection of a residential
led, mixed use development of approximately 550 homes, community and sports
facilities, retail (Classes 1, 2, 3 and Sui Generis) with associated landscaping, open
space and infrastructure, at Cloverhill Aberdeen, be approved conditionally with a legal
agreement.

Conditions

(1) PHASING

That no development shall take place unless a phasing programme outlining the
delivery of buildings, open spaces and roads infrastructure across the entire
application site has been submitted to and approved in writing by the planning
authority. For the avoidance of doubt, this scheme shall include details of trigger
points for delivery of retail use to meet the local need generated by the new
residential development, as well as community and sporting facilities.

Reason: in order to ensure development is progressively accompanied by
appropriate associated infrastructure.

(2) DETAILED DESIGN (BY PHASE)

No development in connection with any individual phase of the planning permission
hereby approved shall take place unless the following details for that respective
phase have been submitted to the Planning Authority and agreed in writing.
Thereafter, development within that phase of development shall be implemented in
accordance with the approved details.

Unless otherwise agreed in writing with the planning authority, MSC applications

shall include:

a) siting, design and external appearance of the built development;

b) a detailed landscape plan and strategy;

c) details of the means of access

d) a detailed levels survey of the site and cross sections showing proposed finished
ground and floor levels relative to existing ground levels and a fixed datum point;

Page 10



PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
30 April 2020

e) a detailed Drainage Plan, including details of the proposed means of disposal of
surface water, including how surface water run-off shall be addressed during
construction, incorporating the principles of pollution prevention and mitigation
measures. The final location of SUDs, including ponds, should be appropriately
positioned in accordance with an agreed flood risk assessment;
details of the connection to the existing Scottish Water foul water drainage
network;

) details of all cut and fill operations;

the details of all roads, footpaths, cycleways and car parking provision;

details of any screen walls/fencing/boundary enclosures;

details of all landscaping, planting and screening associated;

details of the layout, siting, design and finish of all residential properties;

details of the layout, siting, design and finish of all non-residential properties,

including but not limited to: retail and commercial premises, community facilities,

sports pitch and pavillion; and,

m) details of waste/recycling collection points, for residential and non-residential

properties.

—h
N

- T Q@
N

—
AN -
~—"

~—"

Reason: In order to comply with Section 59 of the Town and Country Planning
(Scotland) Act 1997, as amended by the Planning etc. (Scotland) Act 2006.

(3) LANDSCAPING INFORMATION

The landscaping details to be submitted pursuant to Condition 2 above (detailed
design by phase) shall include:

a) Existing and proposed finished ground levels relative to a fixed datum point;

b) Existing landscape features and vegetation to be retained.

c) Tree survey, including layout plan showing proposed development together
existing trees;

d) Existing and proposed services including cables, pipelines and substations;

e) The location of new trees, shrubs, hedges, grassed areas and water features;

f) A schedule of plants to comprise species, plant sizes and proposed numbers
and density;

g) The location, design and materials of all hard landscaping works including walls,
fences, gates, street furniture and play equipment;

h) An indication of existing trees, shrubs and hedges to be removed;

A Biodiversity Action Plan;

A Management Plan detailing appropriate management measures for all

watercourse buffer strips;

k) A programme for the completion and subsequent maintenance of the proposed

landscaping.

J

All soft and hard landscaping proposals shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved scheme and shall be completed during the planting season immediately
following the commencement of each respective phase of the development or such
other date as may be agreed in writing with the Planning Authority. Any planting

Page 11



PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
30 April 2020

which, within a period of 5 years from the completion of each phase of the
development, in the opinion of the Planning Authority is dying, being severely
damaged or becoming seriously diseased, shall be replaced by plants of similar size
and species to those originally required to be planted - in the interests of protecting
trees and ensuring a satisfactory quality of environment.

(4) DRAINAGE CONNECTIONS

The details to be submitted pursuant to Condition 2 for each respective phase of the
development shall show the proposed means of disposal of foul and surface water
from the relevant phase of the development within the form of a Sustainable Urban
Drainage System and include a development impact assessment and detailed
design and methodology statement. Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the
Planning Authority, in consultation with SEPA, the development shall connect to the
public sewer and the relevant phase of the development shall not be occupied
unless the agreed drainage system has been provided, is operational, and
maintained thereafter throughout the lifetime of the consent in accordance with the
approved maintenance scheme.

Reason: To protect the water environment and help reduce flooding.

(5) ARCHAEOLOGY

No works in connection with the development hereby approved shall commence
unless an Archaeological Written Scheme of Investigation (WSI) has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the planning authority and a programme of
archaeological works has been carried out in accordance with the approved WSI.
The WSI shall include details of how the recording and recovery of archaeological
resources found within the application site shall be undertaken, and how any
updates, if required, to the WSI will be provided throughout the implementation of
the programme of archaeological works. Should the archaeological works reveal the
need for post-excavation analysis the development hereby approved shall not be
occupied unless a post-excavation research design (PERD) for the analysis,
publication and dissemination of results and archive deposition has been submitted
to and approved in writing by the planning authority.

Reason - to safeguard and record the archaeological potential of the area. In the
first instance a 7-10% archaeological investigation is envisaged to be suitable

(6) CONTAIMINATED LAND (i)

No development shall take place unless it is carried out in full accordance with a
scheme to address any significant risks from contamination on the site that has
been approved in writing by the planning authority. The scheme shall follow the
procedures outlined in “Planning Advice Note 33 Development of Contaminated
Land” and shall be conducted by a suitably qualified person in accordance with best

Page 12



PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
30 April 2020

practice as detailed in “BS10175 Investigation of Potentially Contaminated Sites -
Code of Practice” and other best practice guidance and shall include:

1. an investigation to determine the nature and extent of contamination

2. a site-specific risk assessment

3. a remediation plan to address any significant risks and ensure the site is fit for the
use proposed

4. verification protocols to demonstrate compliance with the remediation plan

(7) CONTAIMINATED LAND (ii)

No building(s) within an individual phase of the development hereby approved shall
be occupied unless the following matters have been agreed for that phase:

1. any long-term monitoring and reporting that may be required by the approved
scheme of contamination or remediation plan or that otherwise has been
required in writing by the planning authority is being undertaken and

2. a report specifically relating to the building(s) has been submitted and approved
in writing by the planning authority that verifies that remedial works to fully
address contamination issues related to the building(s) have been carried out,
unless the planning authority has given written consent for a variation.

The final building on the application site shall not be occupied unless a report has
been submitted and approved in writing by the planning authority that verifies that
the remedial works have been carried out in full accordance with the remediation
plan, unless the planning authority has given written consent for a variation.

Reason: to ensure that the site is suitable for use and fit for human occupation
(8) SAFE ROUTES TO SCHOOL

That no residential units shall be occupied unless safe routes to school have been
provided in accordance with a scheme which has first been submitted to, and
approved in writing by the planning authority. This shall include details of measures,
including a timetable for implementation, required to help ensure safe travel to
school.

Reason: In order to provide safe routes for travelling to local schools by sustainable
means.

(9) RESIDENTIAL TRAVEL PACK
That no residential unit within the development shall be occupied unless a

Residential Travel Pack, expanding on the principles set out in the agreed Travel
Plan Framework and containing proposals for reducing dependency on the private

Page 13



PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
30 April 2020

car has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority, and
thereafter provided to residents on first occupation.

Reason: to be consistent with the requirements of Scottish Planning Policy (SPP)
and PAN 75 Planning for Transport — in the interests of reducing travel by private
car.

(10) BUS STOPS

That no residential units shall be occupied unless bus stops have been provided on
the A92, in accordance with a scheme which has first been submitted to and agreed
in writing by the planning authority.

Reason: In order to provide the necessary infrastructure to make the development
accessible by public transport and to encourage travel by sustainable means.

(11) TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDERS

No buildings within the development hereby approved shall be occupied unless the
necessary the necessary Traffic Regulation Orders have been obtained for the
reduction of speed limits on the A92 to 40mph, including provision for temporary
20mph limits to accommodate safe travel to schools.

Reason: In order to facilitate safe access to schools and to reduce traffic speeds to
a level appropriate for a residential area.

(12) TOUCAN CROSSING SOUTH OF MURCAR ROUNDABOUT

No buildings in the area shown shaded on Halliday Fraser Munro drawing ref
11085-SK-040 (or such equivalent drawing as has been submitted to and approved
in writing by the planning authority as part of the final designed scheme) may be
occupied unless a toucan crossing has been provided across the A92, at a suitable
location north of the main site access and to the south of the Murcar Roundabout (or
such equivalent alternative means of facilitating pedestrian/cycle crossing as
agreed), in accordance with a scheme submitted to and approved by the planning
authority.

Reason: to ensure that the site has appropriate pedestrian infrastructure to allow
connection to local shops and services in the surrounding area and to ensure
compliance with policies T2 (Managing the Transport Impacts of Development) and
T3 (Sustainable and Active Travel) of the ALDP.

(13) ACCESS JUNCTIONS (i)

That no unit within the site shall be occupied unless the main access junction (as
shown in Appendix D to the Transport Assessment, drawing ref 123823/sk1012-Rev
B, or any such other drawing as has been approved by the planning authority for

Page 14



PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
30 April 2020

this purpose, based on the finalised scheme) has been fully constructed and made
available for use.

Reason: In order to ensure that the development is served by the necessary roads
infrastructure and to ensure compliance with policiy T2 (Managing the Transport
Impacts of Development) of the ALDP.

(14) ACCESS JUNCTIONS (i)

That no more than 150 units within the site shall be occupied unless both access
junctions (as shown in Appendix D to the Transport Assessment, drawing refs
123823/sk1012-rev B and 123823/sk1013-revA, or any such other drawings as have
been approved by the planning authority for this purpose, based on the finalised
scheme) have been fully constructed and made available for use.

Reason: In order to ensure that the development is served by the necessary roads
infrastructure and to ensure compliance with policy T2 (Managing the Transport
Impacts of Development) of the ALDP.

(15) NOISE ASSESSMENT AND MITIGATION MEASURES

No works within a given individual phase of development shall commence unless a
further noise assessment, based on the final design and layout approved for that
phase via condition 2 (Detailed Design by Phase) and including details of any
necessary noise mitigation measures, has first been submitted to and agreed in
writing by the planning authority.

Thereafter, no residential unit within that phase of the development shall be
occupied unless the approved mitigation measures have been implemented in full
and a further Noise Impact Assessment has been submitted to and approved in
writing, demonstrating that mitigation measures have delivered the anticipated noise
reductions (or such other alternative arrangements as have been agreed in writing)
by the planning authority.

In the event that the anticipated noise reductions are not achieved by the agreed
mitigation measures, alternative mitigation must be agreed in writing with the
planning authority and its efficacy verified prior to occupation of the affected units.

Reason: To ensure that a suitable residential environment is provided, and that
potential noise impact is mitigated as necessary.

(106) DUSK RISK ASSESSMENT AND MANAGEMENT PLAN

No development in connection with the planning permission hereby approved shall
be carried out unless:

Page 15



PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
30 April 2020

(i) An Air Quality (Dust) Risk Assessment, carried out by a suitably qualified
consultant in accordance with the Institute of Air Quality Management document
“Guidance on the Assessment of Dust from Demolition and Construction” 2014, has
first been submitted to and agreed in writing by the planning authority.

(ii) A site-specific Dust Management Plan, based on the outcomes of the Air Quality
(Dust) Risk Assessment and detailing the necessary control measures to be
implemented for each phase of the proposed works (demolition, earthworks,
construction, and trackout), an example of the monitoring protocol and schedule to
be implemented on-site, and the responsible person for dust control on-site, has first
been submitted to and agreed in writing by the planning authority.

Thereafter, all works shall be carried out in accordance with the control measures so
agreed.

Reason: In order to mitigate the impact of dust from construction activities
associated with the development on local air quality.

(17) SPECIES SURVEY AND MITIGATION

No development in any individual phase of the development hereby approved shall
take place unless pre-construction surveys for reptiles and protected species (red
squirrel /bats /badgers) for that phase, including details of any necessary mitigation
measures, have been carried out and submitted to and approved in writing by the
Planning Authority. Thereafter no development shall take place within the relevant
phase of the development unless any necessary mitigation measures have been
implemented as agreed

Reason: to ensure the protection of reptiles and protected species during
construction works

(18) PRIVATE WATER SUPPLIES

No development in any particular phase of the development hereby approved shall
take place unless it is demonstrated to the satisfaction of the planning authority, in
consultation with SEPA, that any wells within/in the vicinity of that phase of works
are avoided through appropriate buffers, as detailed in SEPA's guidance on
'‘Assessing the Impacts of Development Proposals on Groundwater Abstractions
and Groundwater Dependent Terrestrial Ecosystems' or otherwise agreed with the
owner of any PWS that they will be connected to the public supply to avoid
disruption and negative impacts during the construction works.

Reason: To protect the water environment and its users.

(19) DE-CULVERTING OF WATERCOURSES

Page 16



PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
30 April 2020

Prior to commencement of any work in any individual phase a detailed scheme for
the protection and enhancement of the water environment within that phase shall
be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Planning Authority in consultation
with SEPA.

As a minimum, this shall include:

a) Demonstration of how the existing waterbodies on site have been incorporated
into the layout of the development, including appropriate buffer zones

b) Detailed information relating to the investigation of and realignment / de-
culverting of any watercourses onsite

c) Full details relating to any other proposed engineering activities in the water
environment, including the location and type of any proposed watercourse
crossings. Any proposed watercourse crossings shall be bridging solutions or
bottomless or arched culverts, designed to accept the 1 in 200 year flow unless
otherwise agreed with the Planning Authority in consultation with SEPA.

All works on site must be undertaken in accordance with the approved scheme
unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Planning Authority.

Reason: To protect the water environment and to prevent an increase in flood risk.

(20) SUSTAINABLE URBAN DRAINAGE AND RELATIONSHIP TO THE
WATER ENVIRONMENT

That no development in any individual phase shall take place unless a scheme
detailing levels of sustainable drainage (SUDS) surface water treatment has been
submitted for the written approval of the planning authority, in consultation with
SEPA, and all work shall be carried out in accordance with the approved scheme.
This shall include an assessment to demonstrate how the layout and design has
considered the feasibility of de-culverting any water courses within the site and also
what measures are proposed to minimise impacts on the spring in the north east of
the site, identifying reasonable compensatory measures or proportionate mitigation
to the satisfaction of the planning authority. The scheme shall be developed in
accordance with the technical guidance contained in The SUDS Manual (C697) and
should incorporate source control. A minimum 6m buffer shall be maintained
between development including garden ground and property boundaries and the top
bank of the Silver Burn and any proposals to de-culvert watercourses through the
site.

Reason: To ensure adequate protection of the water environment from surface
water run-off and to provide for enhancement of the natural environment.

(21) TREE SURVEY AND PROTECTION MEASURES

That no development in any individual phase shall take place unless a plan showing
those trees to be removed and those to be retained and a scheme for the protection
of all trees to be retained on the site during construction works has been submitted

Page 17



10

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
30 April 2020

to, and approved in writing by, the Planning Authority and any such scheme as may
have been approved has been implemented.

Reason: In order to ensure adequate protection for the trees on site during the
construction of the development.

(22) TREES — CARE AND MANAGEMENT

That no units within a given individual phase of the development hereby approved
shall be occupied unless a plan and report illustrating appropriate management
proposals for the care and maintenance of all trees to be retained and any new
areas of planting (to include timing of works and inspections) for that phase has
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority. Thereafter, the
works shall be carried out in accordance with such plan and report as may be so
approved.

Reason: In order to preserve the character and visual amenity of the area.
(23) CARBEON REDUCTION AND WATER EFFICIENCY

No units within a given individual phase of development shall be occupied unless a
scheme detailing measures to ensure compliance with the Council's 'Resources for
New Development' Supplementary Guidance (including water efficiency measures)
within that phase has first been submitted to and agreed in writing by the planning
authority, and any recommended measures specified within that scheme for the
reduction of carbon emissions and reduction in water use have been implemented in
full.

Reason: To ensure that this development complies with the requirements for carbon
emission reductions and water saving measures set out in the Council's 'Resources
for New Development' Supplementary Guidance.

(24) SPORTS PITCH — HOURS OF OPERATION

The approved sports pitch shall not be used outwith the hours between 09.00 and
22.00.

Reason - To ensure adequate protection of amenity to the residents of the
development.

(25) SPORTS PITCH — NOISE ASSESSMENT AND MITIGATION
No development relating to the formation of the approved sports pitch shall be
undertaken unless a further noise impact assessment, including an assessment of

adherence to ‘Sportscotland Outdoor Sports Facilities - Planning Guidance/1002 -
Siting of Synthetic Grass Pitches - Guidance on Noise and Floodlighting’ and

Page 18



11

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
30 April 2020

detailing any necessary noise mitigation measures, has first been submitted to and
approved in writing by the plannig authority.

Thereafter, the approved sports pitch shall not be brought into use unless all
mitigation measures set out in the agreed noise impact assessment have been
implemented in full.

works in any individual phase of development details of the proposed street design
for that phase, which shall contain but not be limited to: a parking strategy; road
geometry, dimensions and swept-path analysis; road junctions and visibility splays;
traffic calming measures; cycleway provision; gradient; level details,
finishing/surfacing materials and crossing points, shall be provided for the further
written approval of the Planning Authority in consultation with the Roads Authority.
No building shall not be occupied unless the streets and parking areas for the
respective block are complete and available for use.

Reason: in the interests of road safety.
(26) CONSTRUCTION ENVIRONMENT MANAGEMENT PLAN (CEMP)

No development shall be carried out within any individual phase of the development
hereby approved unless a site specific Construction Environmental Method Plan
(CEMP) for that phase of works has been submitted to, and approved in writing by,
the Planning Authority in consultation with SEPA. Thereafter, all works on site must
be undertaken in accordance with the approved CEMP unless otherwise agreed in
writing with the Planning Authority.

Reason: In order to minimise the impacts of necessary demolition and construction
works on the environment.

(27) FLOOD RISK ASSESSMENT ON FINAL LAYOUT

No development shall take place unless a matters specified in conditions application
comprising a flood risk assessment (FRA) has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the planning authority in consultation with SEPA. The FRA shall be
undertaken in accordance with SEPA's 'Technical Flood Risk Guidance for
Stakeholders' and considers the flood risk from all sources which may affect the
development.

Thereafter all works on site must be undertaken in accordance with the approved
FRA unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Planning Authority in consultation
with SEPA.

Reason - in order to protect the proposed development from flood risk.

(28) A92 STREETLIGHT UPGRADING

Page 19



12

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
30 April 2020

That no residential units within the development hereby approved shall be occupied
unless streetlights on the A92, between Murcar Roundabout and The Parkway,
have been upgraded to LED illumination.

Reason: In order to reflect the increased pedestrian travel along this route and to
bring it up to current standards for streetlighting in residential areas.

The Committee heard from Mr Gavin Evans, who spoke in furtherance of the
application and answered various questions from members.

The Committee resolved:-
to approve the application conditionally with a legal agreement.

ABERDEEN MARKET - 190312

6. The Committee had before it a report by the Chief Officer — Strategic Place
Planning, which recommended:-

That the application for detailed planning permission for a major development
consisting of demolition and redevelopment of the existing site to form a mixed use
office-led development (Class 4) (circa 18,000 sgm), with retail (Class 1), financial

and professional (Class 2), food and drink (Class 3), public house (Sui Generis) and
assembly and leisure (Class 11) uses (circa 750sqm), landscaping, public realm, car
parking and associated works, be approved conditionally, but to withhold consent until a
legal agreement be secured to deliver developer obligations towards core paths, open
space and provision of a car club vehicle.

Conditions

PRE-DEMOLITION

(1) GEO-ENVIRONMENTAL INVESTIGATION

No development (including demolition or site setup) shall take place unless a scheme to
deal with any contamination that may exist within the site has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the planning authority. The scheme shall follow the procedures
outlined in Planning Advice Note 33 (Development of Contaminated Land) and shall be
conducted by a suitably qualified person in accordance with best practice as detailed in
BS10175 (Investigation of Potentially Contaminated Sites - Code of Practice) and other
best practice guidance and include (i) an investigation to determine the nature and
extent of contamination; (ii) a site-specific risk assessment; and (iii) a remediation plan
to address any significant risks and ensure the site is fit for the use proposed.

Thereafter the development shall not be brought into use unless (i) any long term
monitoring and reporting that may be required by the approved scheme of
contamination or remediation plan or that otherwise has been required in writing by the

Page 20



13

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
30 April 2020

planning authority is being undertaken and (ii) a report has been submitted and
approved in writing by the planning authority that verifies that remedial works to fully
address contamination issues related to the site has been carried out, unless the
planning authority has given written consent for a variation.

Reason — to sure that the site is fit for human occupation
(2) ARCHAEOLOGY

No development (including demolition or site setup) shall take place unless an
archaeological written scheme of investigation (WSI) has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the planning authority and a programme of archaeological works
has been carried out in accordance with the approved WSI. The WSI shall include
details of how the recording and recovery of archaeological resources found within the
application site shall be undertaken, and how any updates, if required, to the written
scheme of investigation will be provided throughout the implementation of the
programme of archaeological works.

Should the archaeological works reveal the need for post excavation analysis the
development hereby approved shall not be brought into use unless a post-excavation
research design (PERD) for the analysis, publication and dissemination of results and
archive deposition has been submitted to and approved in writing by the planning
authority. The PERD shall be carried out in complete accordance with the approved
details.

Reason — to safeguard and record the archaeological potential of the area.
(3) SURFACE WATER MANAGEMENT

No development (including demolition or site setup) shall take place unless a
demolition/construction phase surface water management strategy has been submitted
to and approved in writing by the planning authority in consultation with SEPA. SEPA’s
Sector Specific Guidance: Construction Sites (WAT-SG-75) must be used as a basis for
the strategy. Thereafter demolition/development shall not be undertaken other than in
accordance with the approved plan.

Reason — to minimise the impacts of demolition/construction works on the environment.
(4) SITE WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN

No development (including demolition or site setup) shall take place unless a
demolition/construction phase site waste management plan (SWMP) has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the planning authority in consultation with
SEPA. The SWMP must take account of the guidance available at the NetRegs website
and specifically the Waste Management Plan template. Thereafter
demolition/development shall not be undertaken other than in accordance with the
approved plan.

Page 21



14

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
30 April 2020

Reason — to improve materials resource efficiency and ensure the appropriate
management and disposal of waste from the development.

(5) DUST MANAGEMENT PLAN

No development (including demolition or site setup) shall take place unless a Dust
Management Plan for the demolition/construction phase of development has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the planning authority. The management plan
shall specify dust mitigation measures and controls, responsibilities and any proposed
monitoring regime. Thereafter demolition/development shall not be undertaken other
than in accordance with the approved plan.

Reason — to control air pollution from dust associated with demolition and construction
of the development.

(6) SUSTAINABILITY MEASURES

No development (including demolition or site setup) shall take place unless a scheme of
sustainability measures to be implemented within the development has been submitted
to and approved in writing by the planning authority in consultation with SEPA. The
scheme should investigate and where appropriate implement the use of rainwater
harvesting, bio-retention, green/blue roofs, living green walls, renewable energy
sources and other suitable sustainability measures.

Reason — To contribute to and enhance the natural environment and support Policy D1
(Quality Placemaking by Design)

(7) NO. 6 MARKET STREET

No development (including demolition or site setup) shall take place unless a scheme
detailing the works to 6 Market Street has been submitted to and approved in writing by
the planning authority. The scheme shall include detailed specifications featuring —

1. 1:10 elevation and section drawing detailing the proposed alteration to Market
Street elevation shopfront including the new column details and positioning of
the glazing.

2. Details of the proposed new arched glazing.

3. 1:10 elevation and section showing how the new building will abut 6 Market
Street

4. A sample of stone for the stone forming the new columns.

5. Details of the external finishing material for the East Green elevation

Thereafter demolition/development shall not be undertaken other than in accordance
with the approved scheme.

Reason — to ensure an appropriately high quality of detailing commensurate with the
civic scale and setting of the proposal.

Page 22



15

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
30 April 2020

PRE-CONSTRUCTION

(8) DRAINAGE

No development shall take place unless a detailed scheme for the disposal of foul and
surface water drainage has been submitted to and approved in writing by the planning
authority. Thereafter development shall not be brought into use unless the development
has been implemented in accordance with the approved scheme and is available for
use.

Reason — to safeguard water quality and to ensure that the development can be
adequately drained.

(9) FLOOD MITIGATION

No development associated with the construction of the development shall take place
unless a scheme for the provision of flood resilient doors has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the planning authority. Thereafter the building shall not be
brought into use unless the approved scheme has been implemented.

Reason — to mitigate the residual risk to the building of surface water flooding.
(10) EXTERNAL FINISHING MATERIALS

No development shall take place unless a scheme detailing all external finishing
materials of the proposed building has been submitted to and approved in writing by the
planning authority. The scheme shall include —

1. Detailed specifications of all materials to be used on the external areas of the
building

2. Elevational drawings clearly showing which materials are to be used on each
part of the building

3. 1:20 construction drawings, showing the size of granite cladding blocks to be
used

4. 1:20 construction drawings, showing the detailing of points where there would be
a change in the surface finishes (for example where glazed sections of frontage
meet granite-clad sections)

5. Perforated translucent lattice grills to the East Green elevation of the car park.

6. Measures to prevent the nesting of birds on the external areas of the building.

Thereafter the development shall be finished in accordance with the approved scheme
unless a written variation has been approved by the planning authority.

Reason — to ensure an appropriately high quality of detailing commensurate with the
civic scale and setting of the proposal.

Page 23



16

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
30 April 2020

(11) EXTERNAL LIGHTING STRATEGY

No development associated with the construction of the development shall take place
unless a scheme for the external lighting of the building (including the ‘lantern tower’)
and its external areas has been submitted to and approved in writing by the planning
authority. Thereafter the building shall not be brought into use unless the approved
scheme has been implemented and is operational.

Reason — to integrate the development into the surrounding streetscape and skyline.
(12) MICRO-CLIMATE

No development associated with the construction of the development shall take place
unless a scheme for the provision of measures to mitigate the impact of the building on
the surrounding microclimate (as recommended in Micro-climate study F1879 101 R0O1
(Rev.A) and addendum by Wilde) has been submitted to and approved in writing by the
planning authority. Thereafter the measures shall be implemented as soon as
practicably possible during the construction of the building. In any case, the building
shall not be brought into use unless the approved measures have been implemented.

Reason — to mitigate the impact of the building on the surrounding micro-climate.
(13) LOW AND ZERO CARBON GENERATING TECHNOLOGIES

The building shall not be occupied unless (i) a scheme detailing compliance with Policy
R7 (Low and Zero Carbon Buildings, and Water Efficiency) and associated
supplementary guidance (or any superseding policy or guidance covering the same
matter) of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan with regards to low and zero carbon
generating technologies has been submitted to and approved in writing by the planning
authority; and (ii) thereafter the approved scheme has been implemented and
measures are available for use

Reason — to ensure the development complies with requirements for reductions in
carbon emissions specified in the City Council's relevant published Supplementary
Guidance document, 'Low and Zero Carbon Buildings' or other guidance in force for the
same purpose.

(14) WATER EFFICIENCY

The building shall not be brought into use unless (i) a scheme detailing compliance with
Policy R7 (Low and Zero Carbon Buildings, and Water Efficiency) and associated
supplementary guidance (or any superseding policy or guidance covering the same
matter) of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan with regards to water efficiency
measures has been submitted to and approved in writing by the planning authority. The
scheme should consider the advice provided in CIRIA publication C723 (Water
sensitive urban design in the UK) and specify the measures proposed to incorporate
water saving technology into the development. Thereafter the building shall not be

Page 24



17

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
30 April 2020

brought into use unless the approved scheme has been fully implemented and
identified measures are available for use.

Reason — to help avoid reductions in river water levels, which at times of low flow can
have impacts on freshwater pearl mussel, one of the qualifying features of the River
Dee Special Area of Conservation (SAC).

(15) EXTERNAL PUBLIC REALM AND LANDSCAPING

No development associated with the construction of the development shall take place
unless a scheme detailing all hard and soft landscaping has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the planning authority. The scheme shall take account of the
historic townscape context, functional purpose and micro-climate study and include
detailed specifications of —

a. Proposed finished ground levels and features designed to allow pedestrian
movement from different levels, taking account of the changes in levels across
the site and surrounding streets.

b. Location, design and materials of walls, planters, railings and all other street
furniture.

c. Proposed, tree and shrub numbers, densities, locations, species, sizes and
stage of maturity at planting (including proposed green walls).

d. Proposed hard surface finishing materials within the site and on pavements
immediately adjacent to the site.

e. The retention of the existing tree planters located on Hadden Street (unless their
removal can be justified as being unavoidable)

f. Arrangements for the management and maintenance of proposed public realm.

Thereafter the building shall not be brought into use unless the areas of public realm
have been constructed and are available for use in accordance with the approved
scheme. Such areas will thereafter remain in use as publicly accessible space for the
life of the development.

All soft landscaping proposals shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
scheme and shall be completed during the planting season immediately following the
commencement of each respective phase of the development or such other date as
may be agreed in writing with the Planning Authority. Any planting which, within a
period of 5 years from the completion of each phase of the development, in the opinion
of the Planning Authority is dying, being severely damaged or becoming seriously
diseased, shall be replaced by plants of similar size and species to those originally
required to be planted.

Reason — to integrate the development into the surrounding streetscape and enhance
the provision of public realm within the city centre.

PRE-OCCUPATION

Page 25



18

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
30 April 2020

(16) NOISE MITIGATION (MECHANICAL PLANT)

No part of the building shall be brought into use unless a noise assessment considering
the impact on nearby residential properties (existing and consented) of noise from
mechanical plant associated with the development has been submitted to and approved
in writing by the planning authority. This assessment should:

e Be in accordance with Planning Advice Note (PAN) 1/2011 Planning and Noise and
its accompanying Technical Advice Note.

¢ |dentify the likely sources of noise associated with the proposed development.

e Detail the noise mitigation measures to reduce noise from the likely noise sources to
an acceptable level to reasonably protect the amenity of the occupants of the
existing neighbouring residences.

e The methodology for the noise assessment should be submitted and agreed in
writing with this Service in advance of the assessment

Thereafter the building shall not be brought into use unless any identified mitigation
measures have been implemented and are operational.

Reason — to protect residential properties from noise associated with the development.
(17) TAXI RANK

No part of the building shall be brought into use unless a scheme showing an amended
taxi rank layout on Hadden Street which takes account of vehicular access and egress
points to the development, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the
planning authority.

Thereafter, unless otherwise agreed in writing with the planning authority the building
shall not be brought into use unless (i) any markings or signs associated with the taxi
rank which require to be amended as a consequence have been implemented; and (ii)
any necessary traffic regulation order is in place and licensing requirements are in
place to ensure the amended taxi rank has effect.

Reason — to ensure that the impact of the development on the existing taxi rank is
appropriately addressed.

(18) CAR CLUB PARKING SPACES

No part of the building shall be brought into use unless a scheme showing the location
and delivery method of one 'car club only' parking space has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the planning authority.

Thereafter, unless otherwise agreed in writing with the planning authority, the building

shall not be brought into use unless (i) the car club only parking space has been
constructed and/or marked out and is available for use and any associated signs or

Page 26



19

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
30 April 2020

road markings have been implemented, and (ii) a traffic regulation order (TRO) is in
place to restrict the use of the parking spaces to car club vehicles only.

Reason — To encourage modal shift away from the private car.
(19) CAR PARKING

No part of the building shall be brought into use unless the car parking area (including
motorcycle & bicycle parking, showers and electrical charging points) has been
constructed and laid out in accordance with HFM drawings 11131 P(00)18D and 11131
P(00)19D (or other such drawing as agreed for the purpose) and is available for use.

Thereafter the parking spaces shall be used for no purpose other than for the parking of
vehicles belonging to those working at or visiting the building.

Reason — in the interests of public safety and the free flow of traffic
(20) WASTE STORAGE

No part of the building shall be brought into use unless the waste storage area shown
on HFM drawing 11131 P(00)19D (or other such drawing as agreed for the purpose)
has been constructed and is available for use.

Waste storage areas shall not thereafter be used for any other purpose other than the
purpose of storing waste generated by the development. No waste storage containers
shall be stored outside the building at any time.

Reason — to ensure there is sufficient space for the storage of waste and to maintain
the amenity of the area.

(21) TRAVEL PLAN

No part of the building shall be brought into use unless a detailed Green Transport
Plan, which outlines sustainable measures to deter the use of the private car, in
particular single occupant trips and provides detailed monitoring arrangements, modal
split targets has been submitted to and approved in writing by the planning authority.

Reason — to encourage more sustainable forms of travel to the development.

PRE-OCCUPATION (SPECIFIC USES)

(22) COOKING ODOUR EXTRACTION

No part of the building shall be brought into use for the purposes of Class 3 (Food and
Drink) or public house uses unless a scheme showing the proposed means of filtering,
extracting and dispersing cooking fumes from that part of the building has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the planning authority. Thereafter the use shall

Page 27



20

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
30 April 2020

not take place unless the approved scheme has been implemented in full and is ready
for operation.

Reason — to ensure cooking odours do not adversely affect the amenity of the
surrounding area.

(23) PUBLIC HOUSE NOISE MITIATION

No part of the building shall be brought into use for the purposes of public house use
unless a detailed assessment of the likely sources and levels of noise arising within,
and those audible out with, that part of the building has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the planning authority. The noise assessment shall be carried
out by a suitably qualified independent noise consultant and where necessary will
specify a scheme of mitigation measures to ensure that the impact of the noise on
surrounding residential properties is minimised. Thereafter the use shall not take place
unless the approved scheme has been implemented in full and is ready for operation.

Reason — to ensure noise does not adversely affect the amenity of the surrounding
area.

ONGOING CONTROL

(24) CONTROL OF USES

Each of the identified areas of the building on Level One and Level Two (as shown on
HFM drawings 11131 P(00)19D and 11131 P(00)20D), as well as the entire floor space
and terraces at Level Ten and Level Eleven, may be occupied for the purposes of Use
Class 1 (Shops), Class 2 (Financial, Professional and Other Services), Class 3 (Food
and Drink), Class 11 (Assembly and Leisure) (subject to the restrictions specified in
condition 24), public house use; or a mixed-use activity comprising any of these uses.

In the case of Levels Ten and Eleven, this provision is in addition to the underlying
Class 4 (Business) use which applies to these floors.

For the avoidance of doubt, once initial occupation of any of the ground floor
commercial units or Level Ten or Level Eleven has taken place, unless subject of
permitted development rights under the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) (Scotland) Order 1992 (as amended), any further change of use will
require planning permission.

Reason — to ensure an appropriate mix of uses which contribute to the vitality and
viability of the city centre at ground floor and the opportunity for public uses at the upper
floors.

(25) RESTRICTION ON CLASS 11 (ASSEMBLY AND LEISURE) USE

Page 28



21

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
30 April 2020

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) (Scotland) Order 1992 (as amended) and the Town and Country
Planning (Use Classes) (Scotland) Order 1997 (as amended), the uses permitted within
Class 11 (Assembly and Leisure) does not include dance hall or discotheque (better
now known as night club) or casino.

Reason — to ensure as far as possible that the building offers an active frontage with
daytime activity which contributes to the vitality and viability of the city centre

(26) SERVICING HOURS

Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the planning authority, service deliveries or
collections at the building by heavy goods vehicles shall be restricted to 0700 to 1900
Monday to Saturday and 0900 to 1900 on Sundays.

Reason — to prevent any adverse impact on amenity as a result of deliveries and
servicing occurring at unsociable hours.

The Committee heard from Matthew Easton, Senior Planner, who spoke in furtherance
of the application and answered various questions from members.

The Convener moved, seconded by the Vice Convener:-
that the application be approved in line with the recommendation contained in
the report.

Councillor Greig moved as an amendment:-
that the application be refused as he did not feel comfortable with the scale and
massing of the proposed development and felt that it was intrusive to the
neighbourhood.

Councillor Greig’s amendment failed to attract a seconder and was therefore not put to
the vote.

The Committee resolved:-

to approve the application as contained in the report but with a revised condition 19, to
read:-

(19) CAR PARKING

No part of the building shall be brought into use unless —

(i) a scheme for the provision of electric vehicle charging points, showing at
least ten spaces with active provision and five spaces with passive
provision, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the planning
authority; and

(i) the car parking area (including motorcycle & bicycle parking, showers and
electrical charging points) has been constructed and laid out in
accordance with HFM drawings 11131 P(00)18D and 11131 P(00)19D (or

Page 29



22

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
30 April 2020

other such drawing as agreed for the purpose) and is available for use.
Thereafter the parking spaces shall be used for no purpose other than for
the parking of vehicles belonging to those working at or visiting the
building.

Reason — in the interests of public safety and the free flow of traffic

17 SCHOOL AVENUE ABERDEEN - 200334

7. The Committee had before it a report by the Chief Officer — Strategic Place
Planning, which recommended:-

That the application for detailed planning permission for the erection of a shed at 17
School Avenue Aberdeen, be approved unconditionally.

The Committee heard from Gavin Clark, Senior Planner, who spoke in furtherance of
the application and answered various questions from members.

The Committee resolved:-
to approve the application unconditionally.

BAADS FARM ABERDEEN - 200040

8. The Committee had before it a report by the Chief Officer — Strategic Place
Planning, which recommended:-

That the application for detailed planning permission for the change of use of land for
the erection of a chalet/mobile home at Baads Farm, Aberdeen, be refused.

The Committee heard from Gavin Clark, Senior Planner, who spoke in furtherance of
the application and answered various questions from members.

The Committee resolved:-
to refuse the application.

INCHGARTH ABERDEEN - 181224

9. The Committee had before it a report by the Chief Officer — Strategic Place
Planning, which recommended:-

That the application for planning permission in principle for a residential led

development for the retired/elderly (including affordable housing), a 50 bedroom care
home and approximately 500sgm of ancillary retail/community use, together with public

Page 30



23

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
30 April 2020

open space and associated infrastructure including a link road at land at Inchgarth
Road Aberdeen, be refused.

The Committee heard from Lucy Greene, Senior Planner, who spoke in furtherance of
the application and answered various questions from members.

The Convener moved, seconded by the Vice Convener:-
That the Application be approved subject to conditions as identified in the
Committee Report and to withhold consent until a legal agreement is secured to
deliver:-

1. payment of the developer obligations contributions and provision of affordable

housing as identified in the Developer Obligations Team response;

2. an age restriction on occupation of the housing for over 55s only — on the basis

that no contribution has been requested towards education;

3. infrastructure including the link road, community facility and public open space
and their control through phasing to ensure that these elements are delivered
prior to the first occupation of any residential unit on the application site.
maintenance of public open space within the development;
control on the height of the development — for example, to a maximum of 2.5
storeys; and
improvement to the bus stop on North Deeside Road

o &

Reason for approval was that the proposal would result in the provision of much
needed retirement housing in the area which had a high proportion of retired
people and that there would be community benefits delivered in terms of the
community facility and by the link road which would reduce traffic and result in
associated improvements to road safety , congestion and amenity on adjoining
residential streets. The link road was considered to be supported by the Access
from the South Study and the Strategic Infrastructure Plan. The proposal was
not considered to have a significant detrimental impact on the landscape or the
character of the conservation or on the amenity of the Deeside Way. Subject to
conditions and a legal agreement, these material considerations outweigh the
relevant Green Belt and other relevant planning policies of the Development
Plan. Any further applications for approval of matters specified by condition or
detailed applications on this site related to this planning permission in principle
would be brought back to this Committee, with removal of the delegated power
and conditions as follows:-

Conditions
(1) Standard Matters Requiring Further Approval Condition for Planning Permission
in Principle

Details of the specified matters listed below shall be submitted for consideration
by the planning authority, in accordance with the requirements, timescales and
other limitations in section 59 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act
1997 (as amended). No work shall begin until the written approval of the
authority has been given by way of an approval of matters specified by condition

Page 31



24

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
30 April 2020

consent , and the development shall be carried out in accordance with that
approval.

Specified matters (where stated in further conditions below these may be submitted

on a phase by phase basis):

(a) Full details of the layout and siting of the proposed development;

(b) Full details of the external appearance and all finishing materials, including
samples where required, of the proposed development ;

(c) Full details of all existing and proposed landscape features, including trees to be
retained and planted;

(d) A detailed levels survey of the site and cross sections showing proposed finished
ground and floor levels relative to existing ground levels and a fixed datum point;

(e) Full details of the proposed means of disposal of foul and surface water from the
development ;

(f) Full details of the proposed means of access to the development, including the
required visibility splays;

(g) Full details of the proposed car parking/vehicle turning area for the development;

Reason: Permission for the development has been granted in principle only and
subsequent approval is required for these matters in accordance with Section 59 of
the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended).

(2) That no development shall take place unless there has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the planning authority, by way of an approval of matters
specified by condition consent ,site wide plans as follows:

(a) Masterplan for the entire site, and showing the layout of all buildings, link
road, footpaths, cycle routes, internal access roads, parking, landscaped and
open space areas, SUDS features, watercourse and landscaped area designed
for play. The layout shall be designed to prioritise footways and cycleways, in
order to encourage and facilitate active travel; and,

(b) Phasing plan and schedule, showing the phasing of the site and the
sequence in which development of all elements noted above shall be provided
within each phase.

Thereafter the development shall be delivered in complete accordance with the
plans as so agreed and details as approved by the conditions below.

Reason: To ensure delivery of all elements of the development that benefit
residential amenity.

(3) Trees and landscaping— Phased

Prior to development commencing within each phase, and notwithstanding
documents submitted with the application, there shall be submitted to (by way of
Matters Specified in Condition application) and approved in writing by the
Planning Authority a scheme of hard and soft landscaping works.

Part A
Details of the scheme shall include:

Page 32



25

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
30 April 2020

(i) Survey of trees and other existing landscape features and vegetation,
showing those to be retained and those to be removed. The survey shall
include any trees outside the phase boundary but within 15m of the
boundary.

(ii) The location of new trees, shrubs, hedges, grassed areas and water
features: including SUDS measures and any existing watercourse and its
landscaped buffers, found by the survey required in condition 8, ensuring
that water features are fully incorporated into the landscape scheme to
the benefit of biodiversity.

(i) A schedule of planting to comprise species, plant sizes and proposed
numbers and density — all designed to maximise the wildlife and
recreational value of the site in line with planning policy for the Green Belt
and Gren Space Network.

(iv)  The location, design and materials of all hard landscaping works including
walls, fences, gates, street furniture and play equipment.

(v) A programme for the completion and subsequent maintenance of the
proposed landscaping.

All soft and hard landscaping proposals shall be carried out in accordance with

the approved scheme and shall be completed during the planting season

immediately following the commencement of the development or such other date

as may be agreed in writing with the Planning Authority. Any planting which,

within a period of 5 years from the completion of the development, in the opinion

of the Planning Authority is dying, being severely damaged or becoming

seriously diseased, shall be replaced by plants of similar size and species to

those originally required to be planted.

Part B

(i) Prior to the commencement of the implementation of the approved scheme,

detailed proposals for a programme for the long term management and
maintenance of all the approved landscaped and open space areas within the
development shall be submitted for the further written approval of the
Planning Authority by way of an approval of matters specified by condition
consent.

Thereafter, all management and maintenance of the landscaped and open space
areas shall be implemented, in perpetuity, in accordance with the approved
programme.

Reason: To ensure the implementation of a satisfactory scheme of landscaping
which will help to integrate the proposed development into the local landscape in the
interests of the visual amenity of the area and to ensure that the landscaping is
managed and maintained in perpetuity.

(4) Tree Protection

Page 33



26

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
30 April 2020

That no development shall take place unless a plan showing those trees to be
removed and those to be retained and a scheme for the protection of all trees to be
retained on the site during construction works has been submitted to, and approved
in writing by, the Planning Authority by way of an approval of matters specified by
condition consent and any such scheme as may have been approved has been
implemented.

Reason: in order to ensure adequate protection for the trees on site during the
construction of the development.

(5) Trees — bird breeding season

That all tree work shall be carried out only outwith the bird nesting season, that
season being 15t March to 31st August.

Reason: In the interests of protecting breeding birds.

(6) Trees — No storage

That no materials, supplies, plant, machinery, spoil, changes in ground levels or
construction activities shall be permitted within the protected areas specified in the
aforementioned scheme of tree protection without the written consent of the
Planning Authority and no fire shall be lit in a position where the flames could extend
to within 5 metres of foliage, branches or trunks.

Reason: in order to ensure adequate protection for the trees on site during the
construction of the development.

(7) Trees — Necessary Work

That any tree work which appears to become necessary during the implementation
of the development shall not be undertaken without the prior written consent of the
Planning Authority; any damage caused to trees growing on the site shall be
remedied in accordance with British Standard 3998: 2010 "Recommendations for
Tree Work" before the building hereby approved is first occupied.

Reason: in order to preserve the character and visual amenity of the area.

(8) Watercourse

No development shall take place unless there has been submitted (by way of

Matters Specified in Condition Application) to and approved in writing by the

planning authority:

a) a survey showing the existing route of the watercourse that is identified as
crossing the site north east to south west; and,

b) details of the watercourse including route, any realignment, daylighting (de-
culverting) and buffer strips shown on the masterplan required by condition 2(a).
Taking into account the guidance in Supplementary Guidance: Natural Heritage;

Page 34



27

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
30 April 2020

Reason: In the interests of reducing pollution, to provide wildlife habitats and ensure
future maintenance of the watercourse.
(9) Playable Space

That the development shall not be occupied unless there has been provided
playable space as part of the landscape design, in accordance with plans submitted
to and agreed in writing by the planning authority by way of an approval of matters
specified by condition consent. This should incorporate natural features such as re-
use of trees, boulders and stone removed elsewhere on the site and earth mounds.

Reason: To provide for enhance the recreational environment.

(10) Badgers

That there shall be no development within each phase unless there has been
submitted (by way of Matters Specified in Conditions applications) to and approved
in writing by, the planning authority a badger survey for that phase. The survey shall
identify the location of any setts within the site and its vicinity and shall be
undertaken by an experienced badger surveyor. Thereafter no development shall
take place within the phase unless detailed mitigation measures to safeguard all
existing badger setts have been implemented in accordance with the agreed
scheme.

Reason: To ensure the protection of badgers.

(11) Bat boxes

That no development shall take place unless there been submitted to (by way of
Matters Specified in Conditions applications) and approved in writing by, the
planning authority a layout plan showing the locations of bat boxes and specification
for the boxes. No development shall be occupied unless the bat boxes have been
installed in accordance with the approved plans.

Reason: To help protect bats, as the development involves the removal of trees.

(12) Archaeological scheme

That no development shall take place within the application site until the applicant
has secured the implementation of a programme of archaeological work which shall
include post-excavation and publication work in accordance with a written scheme
of investigation which has been submitted by the applicant and approved by the
planning authority by way of an approval of matters specified by condition consent.

Reason: in the interests of protecting items of historical importance as may exist
within the application site.

(13) Air Quality - dust
Page 35



28

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
30 April 2020

That development within each individual phase shall not take place unless, there
has been submitted to (by way of an approval of matters specified by condition
consent), and approved in writing by, the planning authority:

An 'Air Quality (Dust) Risk Assessment' by a suitably qualified consultant is carried
out in line with the IAQM 2014 Guidance entitled ‘Guidance on the Assessment of
Dust from Demolition and Construction’ to predict the likely dust levels and impact
on air quality including a determination of its significance.

A Dust Management Plan produced in line with the aforementioned guidance
(based on the outcome of the Dust Risk Assessment) detailing the necessary dust
control measures to be implemented.

The development shall be carried out only in accordance with the plan as so agreed.

Reason: In order to prevent pollution and in the interests of residential amenity.

(14) Refuse storage

That the development hereby granted planning permission shall not be occupied
unless provision has been made within the relevant phase of the development for
refuse storage and disposal in accordance with a scheme, which shall include swept
path analysis for refuse collection vehicles, which has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the planning authority by way of an approval of matters
specified by condition consent - in order to preserve the amenity of the
neighbourhood and in the interests of public health.

(15) Low and Zero Carbon

That the buildings hereby approved shall not be occupied unless a scheme detailing
compliance with the Council's 'Resources for New Development' supplementary
guidance has been submitted to and approved in writing by the planning authority by
way of an approval of matters specified by condition consent, and any
recommended measures specified within that scheme for the reduction of carbon
emissions have been implemented in full.

Reason: to ensure that this development complies with requirements for reductions
in carbon emissions specified in the City Council's relevant published
Supplementary Guidance document, 'Resources for New Development'.

(16) Water saving technologies

That the buildings hereby approved shall not be occupied unless a scheme detailing
compliance with the Council's 'Resources for New Development' supplementary
guidance has been submitted to and approved in writing by the planning authority by
way of an approval of matters specified by condition consent, and any
recommended measures specified within that scheme for water saving technologies
have been implemented in full.

Page 36



29

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
30 April 2020

Reason: to ensure that this development complies with requirements for reductions
in carbon emissions specified in the City Council's relevant published
Supplementary Guidance document, 'Resources for New Development'.

17) Housing Adaptability

That residential units shall be erected only in accordance with plans detailing how
the design demonstrates accessibility and future adaptability for elderly and disabled
residents, such as bedrooms on ground floor or accessible by lift.

Reason: To ensure that all housing is adaptable to suit all residents.

(18) Electric Vehicle Charging Points, cycle and motorcycle parking

That development within each phase shall not take place unless there has been
submitted to by way of MSC applications and approved in writing by, the planning
authority details of electric vehicle charging points, cycle and motorcycle spaces and
car parking provision. Individual buildings shall not be occupied unless the charging
points and cycle / motor cycle / car parking spaces in accordance with the plans as
so approved with have been implemented and are ready for use for the particular
building.

Reason: To encourage sustainable travel and road safety.

(19) Noise mitigation

That no building shall be occupied nor the proposed link road opened unless the
relevant noise mitigation measures achieving at least an equivalent effect as those
measures contained and recommended within the Noise Impact Assessment
(Reference 165-R01-D Date: 21 September 2018) have been implemented in full on
site.

Reason: To protect residential amenity.

(20) Details of Barriers

That no noise mitigation barriers or boundary treatments shall be implemented on
site other than in accordance with plans and details submitted (by way of MSC
applications) to, and approved in writing by the planning authority.

Reason: in the interests of visual amenity.

(21) Lepidoptera Protection

That no development shall take place unless there has been submitted (by way of
MSC application) to and approved in writing by the planning authority a construction
methodology that includes measures to securely separate a retained area of
grassland within the northern field (north of the Deeside Way) from plant, machinery

Page 37



30

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
30 April 2020

and storage of materials during the construction period. The details shall include a
layout plan showing sufficient size of area to provide habitat for lepidoptera, and
suitable barriers.

The construction shall be carried out in full accordance with the mitigation measures
recommended in the Lepidoptera Survey 8 August 2019, or such other report as
subsequently agreed with the planning authority, and measures implemented in full
prior to occupation of any building or opening of the road.

Reason: To help ensure conservation of lepidoptera on site.

(22) Contaminated Land

That no development involving digging shall take place within 10m of the edge of

the surfaced footpath on the Deeside Way, unless it is carried out in full accordance

with a scheme to deal with contamination on the site that has been approved in

writing by the planning authority.

The scheme shall follow the procedures outlined in Planning Advice Note 33

Development of Contaminated Land and shall be conducted by a suitably qualified

person in accordance with best practice as detailed in BS10175 Investigation of

Potentially Contaminated Sites - Code of Practice and other best practice guidance

and shall include:

1. an investigation to determine the nature and extent of contamination,

2. asite-specific risk assessment,

3. a remediation plan to address any significant risks and ensure the site is fit for
the use proposed.

No building(s) on the development site shall be occupied unless

1. any long term monitoring and reporting that may be required by the approved
scheme of contamination or remediation plan or that otherwise has been required in
writing by the planning authority is being undertaken and

2. a report specifically relating to the building(s) has been submitted and approved
in writing by the planning authority that verifies that remedial works to fully address
contamination issues related to the building(s) have been carried out, unless the
planning authority has given written consent for a variation.

The final building on the application site shall not be occupied unless a report has
been submitted and approved in writing by the planning that verifies that completion
of the remedial works for the entire application site, unless the planning authority
has given written consent for a variation.

Reason: in order to ensure that the site is fit for human occupation

(23) Junctions

That no development shall take place unless there has been submitted to (by way of
MSC applications) details as follows:

Page 38



31

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
30 April 2020

a) Plans including layout plans and details of levels, of the junction of the proposed
link road onto Inchgarth Road, including replacement provision for access to land
to the south where necessary as a result of the development;

b) Plans including layout plans and details of levels of the junction of the proposed
link road with North Deeside Road.

Reason: In the interests of road safety

(24) Surface Water Drainage

That no development shall take place unless a scheme of all drainage works
designed to meet the requirements of Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems has
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority by way of an
approval of matters specified by condition consent. This shall include how surface
water run-off shall be addressed during construction, as well as incorporating the
principles of pollution prevention and mitigation measures. Thereafter works shall
take place in complete accordance with the details and measures as so approved
and no individual phase of the development shall be occupied unless the drainage
for that phase has been installed in complete accordance with the said scheme.

Reason: in order to safeguard water qualities in adjacent watercourses and to
ensure that the development can be adequately drained.

(25) Soil conditions

That no development shall take place unless there has been submitted to (by way of

MSC applications) and approved in writing by the planning authority:

a) Assessment of soil conditions and if peat is found a Peat Management plan,
which includes depth, details of avoidance and appropriate reuse;

b) Site Waste Management Plan; and,

c) Japanese Knotweed Management Plan

Thereafter the development shall not be occupied unless the on-going measures
within such plans have been implemented in full and carried out in complete
accordance with the plans as so agreed.

Reason: in the interests of preventing pollution and preserving peat.

(26) Radon

That development shall take place fully in accordance with the conclusions and any
mitigation measures identified in a report on the presence of radon on site, that has
been submitted to (by way of MSC application) and approved in writing by the
planning authority.

Reason: In the interests of the safety of future residents, and as the presence of
radon to the south of the site is noted in the application submissions.

Page 39



32

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
30 April 2020

Councillor Cooke moved as an amendment, seconded by Councillor Greig:-
That the application be refused.

On a division, there voted:- for the motion (7) - the Convener, the Vice Convener and
Councillors Allan, Copland, Henrickson, MacKenzie and Mailk; for the amendment (2) —
Councillors Cooke and Greig.

The Committee resolved:-
to adopt the motion and therefore approve the application in line with the
recommendation above.

ENFORCEMENT ANNUAL REPORT - PLA/20/084

10. The Committee had before it a report by the Chief Officer — Strategic Place
Planning, which informed Members of the planning enforcement work that had been
undertaken by the Planning Service from 15t April 2019 to 31st March 2020.

The report recommended:-
that the Committee note the contents of the report.

The Committee resolved:-
to approve the recommendation contained in the report.

PRE DETERMINATION HEARING REPORT - GOV/20/087

11. The Committee had before it a report by the Chief Officer — Governance, which
sets out the criteria for when Pre-Determination Hearings would be triggered, and the
process that would follow for reporting to this Committee and referral to Full Council if
appropriate.

The report recommended:-
that the Committee —
(@) notes the contents of the report; and
(b) agree that the Chief Officer — Strategic Place Planning would report to this
Committee when a Pre-Determination Hearing was, or may be required, for any
application with a recommendation as to:
e whether a hearing should be held for the application and
e whether it should be determined by this Committee or by Full Council.

The Committee resolved:-
to approve the recommendations contained in the report.
- Councillor Marie Boulton, Convener

Page 40



33

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
30 April 2020

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 42



¢ abed

A B C D | E F G H
PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE BUSINESS PLANNER
The Business Planner details the reports which have been instructed by the Committee as well as reports which the Functions expect to be submitting for the calendar year.
1
Delayed or
Recommende
Report Title Minute Reference/Committee Decision or Purpose Update Report Author| Chief Officer | Directorate Terms of d for removal | Explanation if delayed,
of Report Reference or transfer, | removed or transferred
enter either D,
2 R,or T
3 01 June 2020
Tillydrone Coningham o . Strategic Place
4 |cardens To approve or refuse the application. Aoife Murphy Planning 1
Silverburn To determine whether a Pre Determination Hearing is Gavin Evans Strategic Place 7
5 required and if PDMC or Full Council. Planning
44-46 Bedford Road To approve or refuse the application. Robert Forbes Strateglc'PIace 1
6 Planning
Hill of Rubislaw To approve or refuse the application Matthew Strategic Place 1
7 pp pp Easton Planning
8 02 July 2020
9 [Committee Annual T PTESETEHTE ariear SeLAvETeEss TEPUTt 107 TE Fraser Bell Governance | Governance GD7.5
Berryden Corridor i
4 To approve or refuse the application. Matthew Strateglc_PIace Place 1
10 Easton Planning
Greyfriars House i
4 To approve or refuse the application Alex Ferguson Strateglc'PIace Place 1
11 Planning
10 The Chanon i
i To approve or refuse the application Strateglc_PIace Place 1
12 Planning
Tyrebagger Quarr -
Y gger Quarry To approve or refuse the application. Gavin Clark Strateglc_PIace Place 1
13 Planning
19 South Avenue i
To approve or refuse the application. Gavin Clark Strateglc'PIace Place 1
14 Planning
39 Bloomfield Road i
To approve or refuse the application. Dineke Brasier Strateglc-PIace Place 1
15 Planning
16 20 August 2020
Friarsfield To approve or refuse the application. Gavin Clark Strateglc_PIace Place 1
17 Planning
18 24 September 2020
19 05 November 2020
20 Clty Centre Conser\latlon TU pICQCI e bllyA :/-“C-‘Iillf‘\l\/\.ll ISTTvVauult Arca . ‘\:IAC?:: - ou ?_:.i\:ilz:‘luabc 4
21
22 10 December 2020
23
24
25 AD HOC REPORTS (CYCLE DEPENDENT ON REQUIREMENT TO REPORT)
26
27
28

T'G Wa)| epuaby



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 44



PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

15t June 2020

Erection of residential led, mixed use development of
around 100 to 150 units (mix of house types and flats),

DDDDDDDDD

b

ABERDEEN

CITY COUNCIL

including facilities consisting of approximately 1000-3000
sgm of class 1(shops), 2(financial, professional and other

services) and class 3(food and drink) with associated
works

Silverburn House , Claymore Drive, Aberdeen

Application ref 191904/PPP

T°9 Wa)| epusby



LOCATION PLAN




‘T¥E

WAV




>
=

INDICATIVE SITE PLAN

Ellon Road (A90)

iy (4 3

Se/ J Childrens
Nursery

e

8 K
8
& 1= Gymnastics
LIS Centre
s -

Claymore Drive

Access

Existing Access Retained

—1

2

- N



2017FALDRPZOINING

SPECIALIST
EMPLOYMENT AREAS
(B2)

MIXED USE v
AREAS (H2) COASTAL AREAS

[N Yy (NE7)

> Exhibition > P o 5> +
‘N Centre N/ | GREEN BELT (NE2)

\ ¢
R i

. P
: O

/ A
/ Exhibition /
”. Centre



L
.‘ m
u

w

m

m

L]

w

i
lf{l
m

©

w

&

. =
/Jllv ‘ .M.svS\ o m ————— o
e = m— g = =
) mAn )!. ,Tr.
] N g S
= " = IR W
% = = J ——
X (%) 2 —
. <L Ll ,.
m,m Om & w =
B = = = =
=
2
trn ~ " B = =
oS -
w £ ]

‘v\
©
*

2
MIXED USE
AREAS (H2)

RESIDENTIAL
AREAS (H1)




o
jab)
«Q
D
o1
=

ﬁz nnnnnnnnn sr,

R

ABERDEEN

CITY COUNCIL

BACKGROUND

Application was subject to statutory Pre-Application Consultation

Applicants and officers presented to ACC Pre-Application Forum in
September 2019

Pre-Application Consultation Report forms part of current
submission



o
jab)
«Q
D
o)
N

=2

—n7)
O

ABERDEEN

CITY COUNCIL

ABERDEEN LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN

Site zoned within a ‘B2’ area in the ALDP, which relates to ‘Specialist
Employment Areas’

Policy B2 encourages business (class 4) uses. May also provide for
industrial and storage/distribution (classes 5 & 6)

B2 makes no provision for residential use
Represents a ‘significant departure’ from Development Plan

Proposed ALDP is a material consideration in assessment. This re-
allocated the site for residential development of approx. 100 units.

Significant departure necessitates a Pre-Determination Hearing —
prior to recent legislative change, required to be determined by Full
Council. Now PDMC may conduct hearing and determine, or refer
to FC.



o
o)

Q
D
o)
w

=2

—n7)
O

ABERDEEN

CITY COUNCIL

REPRESENTATIONS

2no representations received (BOC gases on Ellon Road and
operators of Bon-Accord Centre)

Objection from Bridge of Don Community Council
Objection from SEPA due to lack of info on flood risk

ACC Roads response highlights unresolved issues with accessibility
and pedestrian infrastructure

ACC Education response highlights capacity at Scotstown School and
Bridge of Don Academy to accommodate additional pupils
generated

ACC Developer Obligations response identifies sums payable in
respect of Core Paths, Healthcare, Open Space, Community
Facilities and Sports and Recreation



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 54



- BON ACCORD s

5T

ABERDEEN

CITY COUNCIL

Planning Development Management Committee

Report by Development Management Manager

Committee Date: 15t June 2020

Site at Silverburn House, Claymore Drive, Aberdeen, AB23 8GD

Site Address:

Erection of residential led, mixed use development of around 100 to 150 units (mix of
Application house types and flats), including facilities consisting of approximately 1000-3000 sqm of
Description: class 1(shops), 2(financial, professional and other services) and class 3(food and drink)

with associated works

Application Ref:

191904/PPP

Application Type

Planning Permission in Principle

Application Date:

3 January 2020

Applicant: Parklands View LLP
Ward: Bridge Of Don
Community Council: | Bridge Of Don
Case Officer: Gavin Evans

{/m

© Crown Copyright. Aberdeen Ci

ty Council. Licence Number: 100023401 - 2018

Page 55




1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

This report considers whether application (ref. 191904/PPP), which triggers the statutory criteria
to require that a pre-determination hearing is held, should be determined by the Planning
Development Management Committee or if it would be advisable for the pre-determination
hearing and determination to be carried out by Full Council.

2. RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1

2.2

That the Committee:
Note the contents of the report; and
Agree that the application be subject of a statutory pre-determination hearing by a special

meeting of the Planning Development Management Committee (PDMC) and that the
application is then determined at a subsequent scheduled PDMC meeting.

3. BACKGROUND

3.1

A report to the 30" April 2020 meeting of the Planning Development Management Committee
(report no. GOV/20/087) set out the process to be followed for reporting to this Committee
and referral to Full Council where the relevant criteria for Pre-Determination Hearings are
triggered. The recommendations of that report were agreed by the Committee.

4. APPLICATION BACKGROUND

4.1

Site Description

The site is that of the former Silverburn House, a recently-demolished office building located
in a prominent position on a main route (A92 Ellon Road) into Aberdeen from the north. The
site has recently been cleared, but Silverburn house had provided 5 floors of office
accommodation, laid out in a series of four interconnected wings, arranged around a central
inner courtyard. The building is understood to have been constructed in the 1980s and was
formerly occupied by Baker Hughes. The site also included 414 car parking spaces and a
separate sports building to the north, though the latter lies outwith the application site. The
building was set back from Ellon Road by approximately 50m, with this ground in between
planted with grass and trees and the Silver Burn running through it. The car parking was
located to the eastern side of the site, which is approximately 3.7 hectares in total.

This site forms part of the Aberdeen Energy Park, which lies north of the Aberdeen Exhibition
and Conference Centre and on the eastern side of Ellon Road. Silverburn House and the
surrounding land to the north and east is identified in the Aberdeen Local Development Plan
(ALDP) as ‘Specialist Employment Areas’, with a focus on Class 4 (business) uses.

The site and the land to the north is zoned as ‘residential’ in the Proposed Local Development
Plan 2020 (PLDP). In the PLDP the site is allocated as Opportunity Site OP12, ‘Opportunity
for 100 homes on former employment land’. The PLDP content was agreed by Full Council
on 2" March 2020 and is currently being publicly consulted on.

To the south of the site lies the Aberdeen Exhibition and Conference Centre, which is zoned
within a ‘Mixed Use’ area and identified as Opportunity Site OP13 in the ALDP. An application

Page 56



4.2

for Planning Permission in Principle for the redevelopment of the now-disused AECC facility
was submitted in May 2015, proposing ‘demolition of existing buildings and erection of a
mixed use development to include (approximately 498) residential units, commercial and
business use, recycling centre and park and ride facility’. The Planning Development
Management Committee considered this application in December 2015 (and again in May
2018) and expressed a willingness to ‘Approve conditionally with permission to be withheld
until a legal agreement is entered into to secure: affordable housing; and developer
obligations relating to primary education, community facilities, sports and recreation,
healthcare, transportation and open space’.

Beyond the former AECC site lies existing residential development, accessed from via King
Robert’'s Way, from the Ellon Road/North Donside Road roundabout. On the western side of
Ellon Road (A92) is the Bridge of Don Industrial Estate, which is zoned for Business and
Industrial Use under policy B1 of the ALDP.

Around 180 metres to the north of the Silverburn House site is the site of the proposed
residential-led mixed use development at Cloverhill. Application 191171 Planning Permission
in Principle for this proposal was approved by the PDMC on 30t April 2020 in line with Officer
Recommendation.

Relevant Planning History

Application Number Proposal Decision Date

191150/PAN Major residential development of around 100 to  24.07.2019

150 units (mix of house types and flats),

potentially including facilities consisting of Status: NTR
approximately 1000-3000 sgm of class

1(shops), 2(financial, profesional and other

services) and class 3(food and drink)

4.3

4.4

Description of Proposal

This application seeks Planning Permission in Principle (PPiP) for a residential-led, mixed
use development of between 100 and 150 homes, along with 1000-3000sgm of commercial
floorspace, potentially including retail, professional services and food and drink uses (uses
within classes 1,2 and 3 of the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) (Scotland) Order
1997 (as amended) and associate works such as landscaping, formation of site access and
internal roads etc.

As this is an application for Planning Permission in Principle, the precise details of the
proposal and its form are yet to be fully developed. This application seeks simply to establish
the principle of a development in this location of the type and scale proposed.

Supporting Documents

All drawings and supporting documents listed below can be viewed on the Council’s website
at:

https://publicaccess.aberdeencity.gov.uk/online-
applications/applicationDetails.do?active Tab=documents&keyVal=Q2Z69NBZM7400

These include:

Page 57


https://publicaccess.aberdeencity.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=Q2Z69NBZM7400
https://publicaccess.aberdeencity.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=Q2Z69NBZM7400

4.5

Pre-Application Consultation (PAC) Report
Transport Statement

Noise Impact Assessment

Landscape Statement

Supporting Statement

Planning Statement

Access & Waste Management Statement
Drainage Strategy Assessment
Arboricultural Report

Masterplan

Pre-Application Consultation

This application is accompanied by a Pre-Application Consultation Report, as required by the
relevant regulations for all planning applications concerning developments in the major
category.

The applicants held a statutory pre-application consultation event at the gymnastics/sports
centre on Claymore Drive, Bridge of Don, on 8" October 2019, between noon and 7pm. An
advertisement was placed in the Evening Express on September 18%, giving notice of this
consultation event. Notices were also displayed in various locations such as libraries, medical
practices, community centres etc. In addition, notices were sent to the local Bridge of Don
Community Council and the local ward members at least 7 days ahead of the meeting.
Notices advertising the event were also issued to businesses in the neighbouring Aberdeen
Energy Park, from a list provided by Aberdeen City Council.

At the consultation event A1 sized exhibition boards were displayed and members of the
design team (Space Consultancy and Design and Aurora Planning Ltd) were available to give
a brief overview before then allowing attendees to review materials in their own time and ask
any questions. Attendees were invited to provide comment either in writing at the time or later
by post, or alternatively by email. A total of 10 visitors attended, all of whom gave feedback
on the proposals. These responses are summarised in the PAC report, along with the
applicants’ commentary on whether/how the proposal has taken them into account.

In addition, a member of the design team had earlier attended the 17t September meeting
of the Bridge of Don Community Council and gave a presentation of the proposals, followed
by a question and answer session.

On 19t September 2019, the applicants gave a presentation to the Council’s Pre-Application
Forum.

The PAC report includes details of the comments received at these events and identifies the
main themes as relating to:

No support from local Community Council for housing in this location;

concerns over a crossing on A92 slowing traffic flow into City Centre;

support for potential community facilities;

at Pre-Application Forum Members were interested in the capacity at local schools to
accommodate the development, as well as the specific arrangements for crossing the
A92 road;

Recognition that this is a prominent site on approach to the city from the north;
Support for the inclusion of bungalows;

Noted that the site is accessible and not wholly isolated from the community;

Support for local retail within the development.

Page 58



4.6

4.7

Requirement for a Pre-Determination Hearing

The proposed development is classed a ‘major development’ in terms of The Town and
Country Planning (Hierarchy of Development) (Scotland) Regulations 2009. The proposal is
considered to be a Significant Departure from the Development Plan by virtue of it being a
major residential-led development located on a site which forms part of a wider ‘Specialist
Employment Area’, where policy B2 of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan 2017 applies.
Policy B2 seeks to encourage activities associated with research, design and development,
knowledge-driven industries and related education and training, but also allows for uses
within classes 5 (General Industrial) and 6 (Storage and Distribution) provided it can be
demonstrated that the uses can co-exist without eroding the amenity of the park. Policy B2
does not allow for residential-led development of the type proposed and therefore this
proposal constitutes a significant departure from the Development Plan.

Under Regulation 27 of The Town and Country Planning (Development Management
Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013 there is a requirement to hold a Pre-determination
Hearing before such applications may be determined.

A previous requirement for such applications to be determined by Full Council has been
removed by the recently revised legislation under the Planning (Scotland ) Act 2019, and in
March of this year Council delegated authority for these statutory hearings and
determinations to PDMC as part of the Scheme of Governance review. It will therefore be for
Members to decide whether the hearing and subsequent determination of this application are
conducted in front of PDMC, or whether there are any particular issues that would warrant
referral to Full Council in this instance.

The purpose of such hearings is to afford both the applicant and those who have made written
representation on the proposed development the opportunity to present their views directly
to the Members of the Council.

CONSULTATIONS

Scottish Environment Protection Agency — Object to the proposal on the grounds of a lack
of information on the proposed realignment of the Silver Burn and flood risk. Highlight that
notification to ministers will be required if the planning authority is minded to grant permission
contrary to SEPA advice on flood risk.

Further information will be required in order for SEPA to consider withdrawing its objection.

SEPA also highlight various other matters which it recommended are addressed by
conditions, including pollution prevention, site waste management plan and inclusion of
environmental enhancement/placemaking measures as part of the development.

Aberdeen City Shire Strategic Development Planning Authority — No response

Scottish Water — No objection. Note that there is currently sufficient capacity in the
Invercannie Water Treatment Works and in the Nigg Waste Water Treatment Works.

ACC - Roads Development Management Team — Note that the proposed development
would generate less trips that the former office use. Further information will be requested in
relation to the following:

Page 59



e Proposals for safe crossing of A92 and Parkway East, as well as pedestrian

connections to crossing points;

Access to bus infrastructure;

Safe connections to the identified routes to schools;

Provision for Electric Vehicle charging/parking;

Spacing between access junctions and existing junctions;

Alternative proposals for refuse collection — noting that the applicants’ current strategy

involves collection vehicles reversing excessive distances and overrunning footways;

o Clarification of a second level of treatment for surface water discharge from internal
roads.

Generally, RDM note that many issues of detail would be resolved through assessment of a
finalised layout and proposal at the Approval of Matters Specified in Conditions stage. Roads
colleagues highlight that a Traffic Regulation Order would be required to reduce speed limits
on the A92, consistent with the recently considered application for residential development
at Cloverhill, to the north.

ACC - Structures, Flooding And Coastal Engineering — No objection. Request that a
condition be attached to secure a level 2 Flood Risk Assessment.

ACC - Environmental Health — No objection. Comments on the following matters. Also
suggest an advisory note relating to recommended hours of construction work.

Noise

Note submission of a Noise Impact Assessment, which indicates significant impacts without
mitigation measures (acoustic barriers and enhanced fagade design). With the indicative
mitigation, noise levels are found to meet the agreed criteria for almost all receptors, with any
remaining impacts categorised as ‘slight’. Installation of mitigation measures is essential and
further assessment will be required on the basis of detailed scheme design.

Food and Drink premises

In order to protect the amenity of the occupants of residences, it is recommended that a
suitable extract ventilation assessment is carried out to identify potential odour impacts
associated with cooking activities and to demonstrate the effectiveness of any proposed
mitigation measures. It is also recommended that a Noise Impact Assessment be undertaken
in relation to any necessary ventilation/extraction system. These submissions should be
agreed in consultation with ACC Environmental Health.

Dust Control

To address the potential for impact on nearby residences during construction, it is
recommended that an Air Quality (Dust) Risk Assessment is carried out and submitted for
approval. A site-specific Dust Management Plan, based on the outcomes of that risk
assessment and including details of any necessary control measures during works, should
also be submitted for approval.

ACC - Waste Strategy Team — No objection. Recommend that conditions are attached to
any grant of consent to secure details of provision for waste/recycling storage and
arrangements for collection, including identification of collection points, specification of bin
stores and details of internal road layout to ensure that this is suitably accessible for refuse
vehicles and waste operatives.

ACC - City Growth — No response

Page 60



ACC - Contaminated Land Team — No objection. Recommend that conditions are attached
to any approval, securing submission and agreement of a scheme to address any significant
risks from contamination and a report verifying completion of necessary remedial works
thereafter.

ACC - Developer Obligations — Notes that the proposed development would not result in
Scotstown Primary or Bridge of Don Academy operating beyond capacity, based on most
recent school roll forecasts.

Financial obligations are identified in the following areas, in order to offset the impacts of the
development:

£55,800 towards Core Path Network;
£153,536 towards healthcare facilities;
£27,450 towards Open Space provision;
£274,275 towards community facilities;
£144,600 towards sports and recreation.

It is noted that any roads infrastructure would be identified separately by the Roads
Development Management team. In addition to the above requirements, policy HS
(Affordable Housing) of the ALDP requires that a minimum of 25% of the units proposed are
provided as affordable housing — this equates to 37.5 units, and consultation with ACC
Housing Strategy will be required to determine an appropriate mix of unit types and sizes to
meet local needs.

ACC - Education — No objection. The site is zoned to Scotstown School and Bridge of Don
Academy. Latest forecasts indicate there is sufficient capacity at both schools to
accommodate the number of pupils expected to be generated by this development.

ACC - Housing Strategy — Per affordable housing policy, require that 25% of the
development is provided as affordable housing, and that the affordable units are reflective of
the development as a whole, including a mix of houses and flats. A preference for social
rented housing is expressed.

Police Scotland — No response
Bridge Of Don Community Council — Strongly object to the proposal.

e Consider that permitting a departure from the adopted Local Development Plan would
undermine the extensive consultation and stakeholder involvement in preparation of
that plan.

e Highlights that the Main Issues report for the next LDP stated that this site was
‘undesirable’ for residential development due to the loss of allocated employment land
and stated that housing development in this location would be contrary to the
Proposed Strategic Development Plan.

e Considers that the housing allocations made in the LDP and approved Strategic
Development Plan provide an adequate supply of housing in Bridge of Don to meet
future needs.

e Routes to school are inadequate and involve pupils crossing some of the busiest roads
in the city. Major concerns regarding road safety. Existing bus services are infrequent
and not conveniently located for school travel.

e Considers that the development would result in existing school capacity being

Page 61



5.

6.1

exceeded.

Existing public transport provision is considered to be poor, and the applicants’
assertions in the Transport Statement are disputed.

Healthcare facilities are operating at their limits and additional housing will only
increase pressure on already stretched resources.

Expresses doubt about delivery of proposed transport improvements and community
facilities.

Proposals to reduce speed limits during school travel times would have a major impact
at junctions, resulting in delays, congestion and adverse impacts on air quality.

REPRESENTATIONS

Two representations have been received in relation to this application, both stating objection
to the proposals. These representations raise the following concerns:

Objection on behalf of Capreon — asset manager for owners of the Bon Accord
Shopping Centre.

Highlight the ALDP’s focus on supporting the primacy of the city centre and limiting
retail/significant footfall generating uses outwith designated centres.

Highlights Specialist Employment Area zoning of the site. Notes that relevant policy
B2 does not specifically provide for retail development in this location.

Contends that sequential test set out in policy NC4 applies, along with policy NC5’s
tests in relation to the justification of significant footfall generating development
appropriate to designated centres on out-of-centre locations.

Highlights lack of necessary supporting information to demonstrate acceptability of
retail use.

Offers no objection to the principle of modestly sized convenience retail store and
associated local facilities (e/g/ dentist, medical practice, coffee shot etc), but suggests
that care is taken to ensure that conditions adequately control the size, function and
impact of any commercial use to accord with the retail aspirations of the Local
Development Plan.

Objection from British Oxygen Co. (BOC) on the grounds that insufficient information
has been submitted to demonstrate that residential amenity would not be unacceptably
impacted by the existing noise environment (including BOC premises circa 150m
away). Note specific concerns about the robustness of the assessment accompanying
the application.

BOC'’s primary concern is to ensure that the acceptability of residential use is fully
established before PPiP is granted and that extra constraints and burdens are not
placed on existing business operations, potentially impinging on long term viability.
An acoustic consultant’s assessment is appended to BOC'’s representation.

MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS

Legislative Requirements

Sections 25 and 37(2) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 require that
where, in making any determination under the planning acts, regard is to be had to the
provisions of the Development Plan and that determination shall be made in accordance with
the plan, so far as material to the application unless material considerations indicate
otherwise.

Page 62



6.2

National Planning Policy and Guidance

National Planning Framework 3 (NPF3) 2014

NPF3 is a long-term strategy for Scotland - the spatial expression of the Governments
Economic

Strategy, and of plans for infrastructure investment. Sets out a vision for Scotland to be:

1. A successful, sustainable place.
2. Alow carbon place

3. A natural, resilient place

4. A connected place

Para 2.18 notes that some cities have greater pressure for additional housing development,
whilst regeneration remains a priority in others. States that, in all cases, there will be a need
to ensure a generous supply of housing land in sustainable places where people want to live,
providing enough homes and supporting economic growth. The section on Aberdeen and the
North East states that the city centre will be a focus for regeneration efforts. Para 2.19 notes
that housing requirements will continue to be at their most acute around Edinburgh, Perth
and Aberdeen — requiring targeted action to better match demand for land with infrastructure
capacity.

Scottish Planning Policy (SPP), 2014

Scottish Ministers, through the ‘core values’ expressed at paragraph 4 of SPP, expect the
planning system, amongst other things, to focus on outcomes, maximising benefits and
balancing competing interests; play a key role in facilitating sustainable economic growth,
particularly the creation of new jobs and the strengthening of economic capacity and
resilience within communities; and be plan-led, with plans being up-to-date and relevant.

SPP’s identified outcomes include achieving 1. ‘A successful, sustainable place — supporting
sustainable economic growth and regeneration, and the creation of well-designed,
sustainable places’ ; 2. ‘A low carbon place — reducing our carbon emissions and adapting to
climate change’; and 3. ‘A natural, resilient place — helping to protect and enhance our natural
and cultural assets, and facilitating their sustainable use.” Para. 15 highlights the role of SPP
to set out how these outcomes should be delivered on the ground. By locating the right
development in the right place planning can provide opportunities for people to make
sustainable choices and improve their quality of life.

Para. 28 states that the planning system should ‘support economically, environmentally and
socially sustainable places by enabling development that balances the costs and benefits of
a proposal over the longer term. The aim is to achieve the right development in the right
place; it is not to allow development at any cost'.

Paragraph 32 (in relation to Development Management) notes that the presumption in favour
of sustainable development does not change the statutory status of the development plan as
the starting point for decision-making, and indicates that proposals that accord with up-to-
date plans should be considered acceptable in principle and consideration should focus on
the detailed matters arising. For proposals that do not accord with up-to-date development
plans, the primacy of the plan is maintained and this SPP and the presumption in favour of
development that contributes to sustainable development will be material considerations

Planning should take every opportunity to create high quality places by taking a design-led

approach, taking a holistic approach that responds to and enhances the existing place while
balancing the costs and benefits of potential opportunities over the long term.

Page 63



Planning should direct the right development to the right place. To do this, decisions should
be guided by the following policy principles —

optimising the use of existing resource capacities, particularly by co-ordinating housing
and business development with infrastructure investment including transport,
education facilities, water and drainage, energy, heat networks and digital
infrastructure;

using land within or adjacent to settlements for a mix of uses. This will also support
the creation of more compact, higher density, accessible and more vibrant cores;

considering the re-use or re-development of brownfield land before new development
takes place on greenfield sites;

considering whether the permanent, temporary or advanced greening of all or some
of a site could make a valuable contribution to green and open space networks,
particularly where it is unlikely to be developed for some time, or is unsuitable for
development due to its location or viability issues; and

locating development where investment in growth or improvement would have most
benefit for the amenity of local people and the vitality of the local economy.

Planning should support development that is designed to a high-quality, which demonstrates
the six qualities of successful place (distinctive, safe and pleasant, welcoming, adaptable and
resource efficient, easy to move around and beyond)

In its section on ‘Supporting Business and Employment’, SPP identifies policy principles to:

promote business and industrial development that increases economic activity while
safeguarding and enhancing the natural and built environments as national assets;

locate sites that meet the diverse needs of the different sectors and sizes of business
which are important to the plan area in a way which is flexible enough to accommodate
changing circumstances and allow the realisation of new opportunities; and

give due weight to net economic benefit of proposed development.

In its section on ‘Enabling Delivery of New Homes, SPP identifies policy principles to:

identify a generous supply of land for each housing market area within the plan area
to support the achievement of the housing land requirement across all tenures,
maintaining at least a 5-year supply of effective housing land at all times;

enable provision of a range of attractive, well-designed, energy efficient, good quality
housing, contributing to the creation of successful and sustainable places; and

have a sharp focus on the delivery of allocated sites embedded in action programmes,
informed by strong engagement with stakeholders.

Paras 113-122 set out the role of the Development Plan process in providing for identified
housing needs, based on robust housing need and demand assessment (HNDA). Once a
housing supply target has been identified for each functional housing market area, based on
evidence from the HNDA, this is then increased by a margin of 10-20% in order to ensure

Page 64



6.3

that a generous supply of land for housing is provided. Local Development Plans in city
regions should then allocate a range of sites which are effective or expected to become
effective in the plan period to meet the housing land requirement of the SDP up to year 10
from the expected year of adoption. They should provide for a minimum of 5 yers effective
land supply at all times. Paragraphs 123-125 highlight the role of annual housing land audits
as a tool to critically review and monitor the availability of effective housing land, he progress
of sites through the planning process, and housing completions, to ensure a generous supply
of land for house building is maintained and there is always enough effective land for at least
5 years. A site is only considered effective where it can be demonstrated that within 5 years
it will be free of constraints and can be developed for housing. Para 125 states that, where a
shortfall in the 5-year effective housing land supply emerges, development plan policies for
the supply of housing land will not be considered up-to-date, and paragraphs 32-35 will be
relevant.

Paras 193 & 202-204 are of particular relevance in terms of ‘Valuing the Natural
Environment’. These sections underline the importance of planning in ‘protecting, enhancing
and promoting access to our key environmental resources, whilst supporting their sustainable

)

use.

In terms of promoting sustainable transport and active travel, paragraph 287 of SPP states
in relation to Development Management functions that ‘planning permission should not be
granted for significant travel generating uses at locations which would increase reliance on
the car and where:

e direct links to local facilities via walking and cycling networks are not available or
cannot be made available;

e access to local facilities via public transport networks would involve walking more than
400m; or

e the transport assessment does not identify satisfactory ways of meeting sustainable
transport requirements.’

Creating Places (architecture and place policy statement)

Scotland's policy statement on architecture and place sets out the comprehensive value good
design can deliver. Successful places can unlock opportunities, build vibrant communities
and contribute to a flourishing economy. The document contains an action plan that sets out
the work that will be taken forward to achieve positive change. The statement is in four parts:

1. The value of architecture and place,

2. Consolidation and ambition,

3. A strategy for architecture and place,

4. Resources, communications and monitoring.

Designing Streets (2010)

Designing Streets is the first policy statement in Scotland for street design and marks a
change in the emphasis of guidance on street design towards place-making and away from
a system focused upon the dominance of motor vehicles. It has been created to support the
Scottish Government’s place-making agenda and is intended to sit alongside Designing
Places, which sets out government aspirations for design and the role of the planning system
in delivering these.

Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development Plan (2014) (SDP)

The purpose of the SDP is to set a spatial strategy for the future development of the Aberdeen

Page 65



6.4

6.5

City and Shire. The general objectives of the plan are promoting economic growth and
sustainable economic development which will reduce carbon dioxide production, adapting to
the effects of climate change, limiting the use of non-renewable resources, encouraging
population growth, maintaining and improving the region’s built, natural and cultural assets,
promoting sustainable communities and improving accessibility.

From the 29 March 2019, the Strategic Development Plan 2014 will be beyond its five-year
review period. In the light of this, for proposals which are regionally or strategically significant
or give rise to cross boundary issues between Aberdeen City and Aberdeenshire, the
presumption in favour of development that contributes to sustainable development will be a
significant material consideration in line with Scottish Planning Policy 2014.

The Aberdeen City Local Development Plan 2017 will continue to be the primary document
against which applications are considered. The Proposed Aberdeen City & Shire SDP may
also be a material consideration. The Proposed SDP constitutes the settled view of the
Strategic Development Planning Authority (and both partner Councils) as to what should be
the final content of the next approved Strategic Development Plan. The Proposed SDP was
submitted for Examination by Scottish Ministers in Spring 2019, and the Reporter has now
reported back. The Scottish Ministers will consider the Reporter’s Report and decide whether
or not to approve or modify the Proposed SDP. The exact weight to be given to matters
contained in the Proposed SDP in relation to specific applications will depend on whether:

+ these matters have been subject to comment by the Reporter; and

» the relevance of these matters to the application under consideration.

Aberdeen Local Development Plan (2017)

Policy D1 — Quality Placemaking by Design

Policy D2 — Landscape

Policy NC8 — Retail Development Serving New Development Areas
Policy I1 — Infrastructure Delivery and Planning Obligations
Policy T2 — Managing the Transport Impact of Development
Policy T3 — Sustainable and Active Travel

Policy T4 — Air Quality

Policy T5 — Noise

Policy B2 — Specialist Employment Areas

Policy H3 — Density

Policy H4 — Housing Mix

Policy H5 — Affordable Housing

Policy NE1 — Green Space Network

Policy NE4 — Open Space Provision in New Development

Policy NES — Trees and Woodlands

Policy NE6 — Flooding, Drainage and Water Quality

Policy NE8 — Natural Heritage

Policy NE9 — Access and Informal Recreation

Policy R6 — Waste Management Requirements for New Development
Policy R7 — Low and Zero Carbon Buildings, and Water Efficiency
Policy CI1 — Digital Infrastructure

Supplementary Guidance and Technical Advice Notes
e Aberdeen Masterplanning Process TAN;

e Energetica;
e Transport and Accessibility;

Page 66



6.6

6.7

Noise;

Planning Obligations;

Affordable Housing;

Landscape;

Natural Heritage;

Green Space Network and Open Space;
Trees and Woodland;

Flooding, Drainage and Water Quality

Proposed Aberdeen Local Development Plan (2020)

The Proposed Aberdeen Local Development Plan (Proposed ALDP) was approved at the
Council meeting of 2 March 2020. The Proposed ALDP constitutes the Council’s settled view
as to what the final content of the next adopted ALDP should be, and is now a material
consideration in the determination of planning applications. The Aberdeen Local
Development Plan 2017 will continue to be the primary document against which applications
are considered. The exact weight to be given to matters contained in the Proposed ALDP
(including individual policies) in relation to specific applications will depend on whether —

+ these matters have been subject to public consultation through the Main Issues
Report; and,

» the level of objection raised in relation these matters as part of the Main Issues Report;
and,

» the relevance of these matters to the application under consideration.

The foregoing can only be assessed on a case by case basis.

The site and the land to the north is zoned as ‘residential’ in the Proposed Local Development
Plan 2020 (PLDP). In the PLDP the site is allocated as Opportunity Site OP12, ‘Opportunity
for 100 homes on former employment land’. The PLDP therefore contains support for
residential development on the Silverburn House site, albeit at a reduced scale than what is
envisaged through the current planning application.

In response to consultation on the Main Issues Report, there was one representation made
in relation to the former Silverburn House site (respondent no. 517). That was submitted on
behalf of the current applicants by their appointed planning consultant and expressed support
for the inclusion of the site in the Proposed Plan for around 100 units. It was contended that
residential redevelopment would contribute towards requirements for additional housing and
would be consistent with Scottish Planning Policy (SPP) and the Proposed Strategic
Development Plan (PSDP) as regards re-allocating under-utilised employment land and
prioritising the development of brownfield sites when bringing land forward for housing.

Other Material Considerations

Housing Land Audit 2019 — Aberdeen City & Aberdeenshire Councils, July 2019

The Housing Land Audit (HLA) illustrates the scale and characteristics of the housing land
supply in Aberdeen City and Aberdeenshire. It is used to determine if there is sufficient land
available for housing development and also to inform the planning of future infrastructure
such as roads, schools and drainage.

Employment Land Audit 2017/18 — Aberdeen City & Aberdeenshire Councils, Dec 2018
The Aberdeen City and Shire Employment Land Audit (ELA) provides information on the

Page 67




supply and availability of employment land in the North-East of Scotland.

Local Transport Strategy (2016-2021)

The vision for the Local Transport Strategy is to develop “A sustainable transport system that
is fit for the 21st Century, accessible to all, supports a vibrant economy, facilitates healthy
living and minimises the impact on our environment”. Its five associated high-level aims are:

1. A transport system that enables the efficient movement of people and goods.
2. A safe and more secure transport system.

3. A cleaner, greener transport system.

4. An integrated, accessible and socially inclusive transport system.

5. A transport system that facilitates healthy and sustainable living.

These are underpinned by five identified outcomes. By 2021 Aberdeen’s transport system
should have:

A. Increased modal share for public transport and active travel;

B. Reduced the need to travel and reduced dependence on the private car;
C. Improved journey time reliability for all modes;

D. Improved road safety within the City;

E. Improved air quality and the environment; and,

F. Improved accessibility to transport for all.

DISCUSSION

As described above, following legislative change there is no longer a statutory requirement
for applications concerning a significant departure from the Development Plan to be subject
to determination by Full Council. The Planning Development Management Committee may
therefore opt to determine an application itself, or to refer the matter to Full Council. The
agreed procedures require this report to make a recommendation, and it is suggested that
relevant factors for consideration in reaching that include: the level of representation attracted
by an application; the scale of development proposed; the nature and extent of the resultant
departure from the Development Plan.

The scale of the proposal, at between 100-150 units, with associated local retail and
commercial uses, is such that it represents a ‘major development’ in terms of the relevant
hierarchy of developments. It is however notable that a recent application at Cloverhill, a short
distance to the north, was considered by the Planning Development Management Committee
at its meeting of 30" April 2020, rather than being referred to Full Council. That application
attracted upwards of 120no representations, whereas the current application has attracted
only 2no representations. As the main purpose of a Pre-Determination Hearing is to offer a
forum for those who have made representations to be heard, it may be considered excessive
to convene a meeting of Full Council for a proposal where only 2no representations have
been received.

As regards the nature of the departure from the Development Plan, this principally relates to
the zoning of the site as part of a ‘Specialist Employment Area’ and the relevant policy B2
not providing for residential development in this location. Whilst this clearly does represent a
significant departure from the Development Plan, it is also noted that the site is identified for
development in some form, and the question is whether an alternative form of development
might be considered acceptable. It might be argued that this is of less significance than, for
example, a major development in a green belt location. The Proposed Local Development
Plan 2020 also supports the principle of residential development on the Silverburn House
site, to be allocated as OP12 albeit at a reduced scale than what is envisaged through the

Page 68



current planning application. This is a material consideration.

Taking account of the scale of the proposal, the level of public representation and the
Proposed Local Development Plan, it is considered that the Planning Development
Management Committee is equipped to provide the necessary public scrutiny via a statutory
pre-determination hearing and determination of the application thereafter, and that referral to
Full Council would not be necessary in this instance.

NEXT STEPS

A hearing will be arranged in accordance with the Committee’s instructions, subject to there
being interest in attending from those who have made representation in relation to the
application.

Following any hearing, a report will be prepared by officers for Full Council or PDMC (per

Committee’s instruction). This will include an assessment of the proposed development and
make a Recommendation to Members as regards determination of the application.

Page 69



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 70



PLANNING DEVELOPMENT % G r
gl& \"Q%S\é:
MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE ABERDEEN

CITY COUNCIL

Erection of primary school with early years facility,
associated 3G pitch, soft and hard landscaping,
alterations to access and all associated works

Coningham Gardens, Aberdeen

200206/DPP

T°, Wa)| epusby



Location Plan

O

1
St Machar

(oS
{r\

~

Seaton Park

1(_7\\\—\‘;..
£ N

L
v




¢/ abed

Location Plan

&

B (S

$

[T T I T

L] IO | O

—




Existing Site

Plan

| 1
6“ “nnnn_nn::nn_n,-. P2 B elaTara g
\ SHog uryf pase e ﬂ.:l L./'*'\.r‘ . '
rdstandi wjmmﬁ B DL ._] r
o o boundary iets | .
%&51"‘9 treatment sHENg
lage
L
Existing A Area of New Road Opening to be formed
s smﬁa}ges small trees I l '(malmenang:/:ravgency only)
1o batmdary tregtmery weoe | Sesw / Existing Road Opening to
5 - =
v «mﬁ"""
a of —_— =
'U small trees no boundary treatment —
i e
(g gaswm‘ggrmm to trees Existing walls to be rer
approx 300mm high
existing post and wire fence
\] no boundary treatment—__ approx 1200mm high
Lo E
N /no boundary treatment E:gursah;sig / unmade ground
%5 %
Area of
% trees Existing existi . .
‘
2 Ramped Access with 1o boundary treatment © ) existing po%:;rdnm‘me
1300mm high brick wall dm’z‘ﬂd’m approx m high
to be removed approx 1200men high 4
Fi
isting tree
” (S
- ® - o Bee
xisting | o
to be

e

no boundary treatment

)

wor

e




Aberdeen Local Development Plan 2017 & 2020
Opportunity Sites

¥ LA —x — T
N3 N AT W — - _
4

i,

T
—, |
- )
- Ty Y | S0 o
: =T = - - — T IC = *
i 1 | ! - — = N
- |7 | | = H
s = L i -
T 5 | .
! — VO8N 1 | [(w] \ e
e T s - . !
\ - o \ 1 | 1
N = - | - i I i |
= -
b ALY T il ! il [ I
Y L 1

'y
m—

aJeua] Wwey

—_ ——,

S Tlllydfbné | AL

T
TR |




Proposed Site Plan




Proposed Elevations

South Elevation



Proposed Elevations

e e e — - e le_ o _|esf

West Elevation




Proposed Visualisations

6/ 9bed




Proposed Lower Ground Floor Plan

TN

I




e

=T

B e

::::::J_‘—‘_'—‘_'J_“

=]
LT it
g

E8 e

r
Hin s
=

L.

_____

A S T SN O B 9

Proposed Upper Ground Floor Plan




Proposed First Floor Plan

T

i
|
I

it e ——— = i m E S ————
|

e
=

B I A
—_———e L
| J L |

Page 82



Proposed Roof Plan

- — e — i — e S— = —

1
|

el ] tenetl el el M et el e

.

e e —— = e = e

L
. =

1
e e

|

|

- —— e = — e e . el e e e = e —— — i — i — s — e —]
a1x

il

—te

%

|

|
|

:

Bl

I

—

i
I

F=5H
F]

B

I N S 0 T i ) I
o




Proposed Building Sections

I D

el

et R

=i

0§ 5 1 51 ]

age 8¢




Landscaping Scheme




Proposed Site Sections with Landscaping

=
o\ o
- o
o > C=" /’////;\\\\
» et \ % A\
\ Zh VAN \
9
3 3
\ Al W \
0 \ B
¥ I\ \ =
\ \ f \\ .
D \ = = o
=
'
'
B'
= o 95
Pedestrian Access path between Proposed Primary School - See Architects drawing AL(00)007 Elevation 1 South
entrance gate entrance and playground
Dining terrace shelter Pupil entry plaza seat wall Informal outdoor Raised planter ECL roof top play Natural play area and
' gathering area seat wall terrace (beyond) playground (beyond)
i e A
Existing Ground Profile .
A A
Elevational Section A-A' through western pupils entrance and playground
Proposed Primary School - See Architects drawing AL(00)007 Elevation 4 West
Staff / Visitor parking Trees in grills Emergency Terrace rock feature Access path between Tensile fabric shelterover 1.8m high bell top school
/ dining entrance (for siting / scrambling) entrance and playground outdoor classroom boundary fence
Harris Drive
Steps to diagonal path
Y
W
STTTTIETITIYTINT TN
______________ e e e e e N
T e iRy — — — — —
Existing Ground Profile
B B
Elevational Section B-B' through dining terrace and outdoor classroom




Proposed Site Sections with Landscaping

Proposed Primary School - See Architects drawing AL(00)009 Section CC

Existing Residential  Bin store fence to Buggypark  Staffcycle 1.8m high ELC/ Visitor | Pupil entrance Seating area with glazed  Seating area with glazed Playground (beyond) Pupil entry plaza Public cycle shelter Public cycle shelter
Property (Beyond) neighbouring property ‘security barrier Staff entrance ic shelter ic shelter seating wall

Existing Ground Profile
Cc c
Elevational Section C-C' through entrance
«Q
(00] Coningham Road Orchard and  Slatted timber on gabion 40m x 60m all weather MUGA fencing Slatted timber on gabion Harris Drive
~l natural area  'Bleacher” seating Mulit-Use Games Area ‘Bleacher’ seating
1.8m high roll top 1.8m high roll-top school
school boundary fence boundary fence

‘ \) > 2 Gabion
| ¢ ‘ { | retaining wall

Existing Ground Profile
D D'

Elevational Section D-D' through Multi-Use Games Area
Approximate Scale 1:250




Site Photo — View of the site looking south east towards
Harris Drive

).
ST
G

| ‘&

E“i.,mhm
[ttt s ST Wethuain i,
|

\




Site Photo — View towards the western boundary




Site Photo — View of the site looking south towards Harris
Drive

06 abed




Site Photo — View to the east towards Police Station
and properties along Coningham Gardens




Site Photo — View towards existing car park and access
Coni




Site Photo — View towards Harris Drive (south) from the
junction of Coningham Road and Coningham Terrace




Site Photo — View of the site looking towards the
western boundary

6 abed




oA R s Planning Development Management Committee

Z’ \é’ Report by Devel tM t M
epo evelopmen anagemen anager

\)_'(ij X port by p g g
AC%% EE?JEELN Committee Date: 01 June 2020
Site Address: Former Tillydrone Infant School Site, Coningham Gardens, Aberdeen
Application Erection of primary school with early years facility, associated 3G pitch, soft and hard
Description: landscaping, alterations to access and all associated works

Application Ref:

200206/DPP

Application Type

Detailed Planning Permission

Application Date:

20 February 2020

Applicant:

Aberdeen City Council

Ward:

Tillydrone/Seaton/Old Aberdeen

Community Council:

Tillydrone

Case Officer:

Aoife Murphy

BEERR AR
e

.-,-r., ]

BRA H‘

B 48
— =
=

o)
e

© Crown Copyright. Aberdeen City Council. Licence Number: 100023401 - 2018

Page 95




RECOMMENDATION

Approve Conditionally with upfront payment of the contribution and inter-service agreement

APPLICATION BACKGROUND

Site Description

The site is located within the residential area of Tillydrone. The site previously accommodated the
Tillydrone Infant School and part of the St Machar Primary School, both of which have been
demolished and the site currently comprises a grassed piece of land with numerous trees scattered
around the site.

The site is bound to the north by a car park, several residential properties and a police station,
beyond which lies three public roads, Coningham Road, Coningham Terrace and Coningham
Gardens, to the west by Formartine Road, more residential properties and public open space, to the
south by Harris Drive, with both existing residential properties and a new residential development
currently being constructed beyond that and to the east by the remainder of the vacant land. Beyond
the bounding streets lies a mainly residential area with a varied mix of house types ranging from
three-storey flatted blocks to single storey terraced sheltered housing.

The site itself has a gradual slope, with the highest point being to the north west and the lowest part
being the south east. The site is split by an existing footpath towards the east of the site leading
from Coningham Terrace to Harris Drive.

The site itself covers two allocations identified within the current Local Development Plan, the
entirety of 0P94 and part of OP90. Both fall within the residential zoning and are identified as forming
part of the Strategic Infrastructure Plan Affordable Housing Programme. In terms of the recently
published Proposed Local Development Plan, both sites are still allocated as OP94 and OP90, with
both still falling within residential zoning however, they are now identified as the site for a new
primary school and an education use and/or affordable housing, respectively. The allocation of the
OP94 site for a new primary school is therefore in line with the current planning application.

In addition to the above, part of the site is also shown to be residential open space within the Open
Space Audit 2010.

Relevant Planning History
191331/PAN - Proposal of Application Notice for a major development for construction of primary
school — Further Consultation Required, 16 September 2019.

As required by the Development Management Regulations 2013, pre-application consultation
meetings were carried out on the 24 and 25 September 2019. The outcome of these meetings is
outlined in a pre-application consultation report and this will be evaluated further below.

141376 — EIA Screening Opinion for a residential development of approximately 184-270 affordable
residential units including open space and landscaping — EIA Not Required, 17 September 2014.

141375 — Proposal of Application Notice for a residential development of approximately 184-270

affordable residential units including open space and landscaping — Further Consultation Not
Required, 17 September 2014.

Page 96



APPLICATION DESCRIPTION

Description of Proposal

Proposed is the erection of a new primary school which will be a mix of single and two storey
elements. In addition to Primary accommodation, the building would also incorporate Early Years
provision, also proposed within the site are substantial areas of soft and hard landscaping and a
‘Multi Use Games Area’ (MUGA) Given the existing topography of the site, the school will be cut
into the land in an effort to minimise the visual impact. As such, when viewed from the south the full
height of the development will be visible, whereas the north will appear to be reduced given the
proposed ground level.

The building would be located towards the north west corner of the site, its footprint comprising three
wings, which are slightly staggered. The north elevation would provide the main access to school
at ground level. The west wing would be across two levels, the lower ground and ground level and
would accommodate classrooms, plant rooms, kitchen, dining hall, gym, WCs and changing rooms.
Some access to an upper level would be provided, but this would only be for plant maintenance.

The middle wing would also be across the lower ground and ground levels and would accommodate
a number of staff related rooms and offices along with two early years activity rooms, classrooms
and WC’s. Finally, the east wing would be single level and be located on the lower ground level
accommodating further classrooms. The roof of this wing would be utilised as a roof terrace and
used as the early years external play area, access to which is gained from the ground level of the
middle wing.

Vehicular access to the site would be formed in the north west corner with the existing access and
car park altered and extended to provide additional parking and hardstanding along the principle
elevation. A second access for emergencies/maintenance would be located at the junction of
Coningham Terrace and Coningham Road (the existing access to the police station). Further
pedestrian access points are proposed at a number of points along the west, south and north
boundaries. In terms of access to the building, the main entrance on the north elevation would be
for staff, visitors and parents’ drop off for the early year’s facility. Pupil entrances would be located
within the courtyards of the south elevation, allowing for separate access from the south, effectively
creating ‘public’ and ‘private’ pedestrian accessibility between the north and south.

The remainder of the site would encompass an area of hardstanding mostly to the south of the
school, where an external dining area is proposed in the western portion and an outdoor classroom
to the south east corner. To the east would be a grassed area with sensory garden and along the
eastern boundary would be a MUGA.

Proposed external materials include zinc standing seam roof, a mix of brick, render and cedral
cladding to the walls, aluminium framed glazing system, powder coated doors and Kalwall glazing.
Colours of all materials have yet to be confirmed.

Supporting Documents

All drawings and supporting documents listed below can be viewed on the Council’s website at:
https://publicaccess.aberdeencity.gov.uk/online-

applications/applicationDetails.do?active Tab=documents&keyVal=Q50MMLBZFRT00

Design and Access Statement, submitted 14 February 2020

Drainage Assessment, submitted 30 March 2020

Energy and External Lighting Planning Statement, submitted 14 February 2020
Noise Impact Assessment, Revision 1, submitted 29 April 2020

Pre-Application Consultation Report, submitted 14 February 2020

Page 97


https://publicaccess.aberdeencity.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=Q5OMMLBZFRT00
https://publicaccess.aberdeencity.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=Q5OMMLBZFRT00

e Transport Assessment, submitted 30 March 2020
e Tree Survey Report, submitted 14 February 2020

Reason for Referral to Committee

The application has been referred to the Planning Development Management Committee because
the proposal constitutes a major development and therefore requires to be determined by
committee.

CONSULTATIONS

ACC - Developer Obligations — has advised that obligations to the sum of £2,864 for the Core
Paths Network will be required.

ACC - Contaminated Land — has advised the Service has no objection subject to conditions
regarding the submission of a site investigation and a scheme of remediation, if required.

ACC - Environmental Health — has reviewed the submitted Noise Impact Assessment and advise
that its findings are considered acceptable. However, specification for the various plant and
equipment required for the school has yet to be determined, therefore a further definitive
assessment will be required. The Service has also advised that an odour impact assessment and
lighting strategy are required. In relation to the Multi Use Pitch, the Service are advising that
condition be used to restrict its use to ensure that residential amenity is not impacted. Overall, the
Service has no objection subject to their comments on the above matters and suggested conditions.

ACC - Roads Development Management Team — has provided comments on aspects such as
access, vehicle access and servicing, access for pedestrians, public transport and a travel plan
framework. The Service has advised that it has no objection to the development subject to their
comments and conditions.

ACC - Waste Strategy Team — has advised that the development would be classified as commercial
and therefore receives business waste collection. As such, only general comments regarding this
aspect can be provided. An Informative can be applied to the planning permission covering this.

Aberdeen International Airport (AIA) — has examined the development from an aerodrome
safeguarding perspective and confirm that the proposal could conflict with Airport infrastructure
unless a Bird Hazard Management Plan and Landscaping Plan are requested via conditions. The
Airport also refer the applicant to advise on the operation of cranes. An Informative can be applied
to the planning permission covering this.

Police Scotland — has reviewed the proposal and provided advice regarding the layout and the
building itself. This consultee is satisfied that the development proposed comprises acceptable
forms of security.

Scottish Environment Protection Agency — has advised that it has no objection subject to a
condition requesting details of environmental enhancement measures within the development.

Scottish Water — has advised that there is sufficient capacity at the Water Treatment Works and
the Nigg PFl Waste Water Treatment Works. Further investigation works will be required to be
undertaken by Scottish Water and as such an application will require to be submitted to them.

Tillydrone Community Council — No comments received.

Page 98



REPRESENTATIONS

None

MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS

Legislative Requirements

Sections 25 and 37(2) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 require that where, in
making any determination under the planning acts, regard is to be had to the provisions of the
Development Plan and that determination shall be made in accordance with the plan, so far as
material to the application unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

National Planning Policy and Guidance
Scottish Planning Policy (SPP)

Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development Plan (2014) (SDP)

The purpose of the SDP is to set a spatial strategy for the future development of the Aberdeen City
and Shire. The general objectives of the plan are promoting economic growth and sustainable
economic development which will reduce carbon dioxide production, adapting to the effects of
climate change, limiting the use of non-renewable resources, encouraging population growth,
maintaining and improving the region’s built, natural and cultural assets, promoting sustainable
communities and improving accessibility.

From the 29 March 2019, the Strategic Development Plan 2014 will be beyond its five-year review
period. In the light of this, for proposals which are regionally or strategically significant or give rise
to cross boundary issues between Aberdeen City and Aberdeenshire, the presumption in favour of
development that contributes to sustainable development will be a significant material consideration
in line with Scottish Planning Policy 2014.

The Aberdeen City Local Development Plan 2017 will continue to be the primary document against
which applications are considered. The Proposed Aberdeen City & Shire SDP may also be a
material consideration. The Proposed SDP constitutes the settled view of the Strategic Development
Planning Authority (and both partner Councils) as to what should be the final content of the next
approved Strategic Development Plan. The Proposed SDP was submitted for Examination by
Scottish Ministers in Spring 2019, and the Reporter has now reported back. The Scottish Ministers
will consider the Reporter's Report and decide whether or not to approve or modify the Proposed
SDP. The exact weight to be given to matters contained in the Proposed SDP in relation to specific
applications will depend on whether:

+ these matters have been subject to comment by the Reporter; and

» the relevance of these matters to the application under consideration.

Aberdeen Local Development Plan (2017)

Policy D1 - Quality Placemaking by Design

Policy 11 - Infrastructure Delivery and Planning Obligations
Policy T2 - Managing the Transport Impact of Development
Policy T3 - Sustainable and Active Travel

Policy T5 - Noise

Policy B4 - Aberdeen Airport

Policy H1 - Residential Areas

Policy CF1 - Existing Community Sites and Facilities
Policy CF2 - New Community Facilities

Policy NE5 - Trees and Woodland

Policy NE6 - Flooding, Drainage and Water Quality

Policy R2 - Degraded and Contaminated Land

Page 99



Policy R6 - Waste Management Requirements for New Development
Policy R7 - Low and Zero Carbon Buildings, and Water Efficiency

Supplementary Guidance

Planning Obligations

Transport and accessibility

Noise

Flooding, Drainage and Water Quality
Green Space Network and Open Space
Resources for New Development

Other Material Considerations

Local Development Plan Allocations:

OP94 - Tillydrone Primary School - Site of former Tillydrone Primary School. Forms part of the
Strategic Infrastructure Plan Affordable Housing Programme.

OP90 - St Machar Primary School - Primary School is now vacant and surplus to requirements.
Forms part of the Strategic Infrastructure Plan Affordable Housing Programme.

Proposed Aberdeen Local Development Plan (2020)
The Proposed Aberdeen Local Development Plan (ALDP) was approved at the Council meeting of
2 March 2020. The Proposed ALDP constitutes the Council’s settled view as to what the final content
of the next adopted ALDP should be and is now a material consideration in the determination of
planning applications. The Aberdeen Local Development Plan 2017 will continue to be the primary
document against which applications are considered. The exact weight to be given to matters
contained in the Proposed ALDP (including individual policies) in relation to specific applications will
depend on whether —
+ these matters have been subject to public consultation through the Main Issues Report; and,
» the level of objection raised in relation these matters as part of the Main Issues Report; and,
» the relevance of these matters to the application under consideration.

The foregoing can only be assessed on a case by case basis. The relevant policies related to this
proposal area as follows:

Policy WB3 - Noise

Policy NE4 - Our Water Environment

Policy NES - Trees and Woodland

Policy D1 - Quality Placemaking

Policy R5 - Waste Management Requirements from New Developments
Policy R2 - Degraded and Contaminated Land

Policy R6 - Low and Zero Carbon Buildings and Water Efficiency
Policy H1 - Residential Areas

Policy CF2 - New Community Facilities

Policy 11 - Infrastructure Delivery and Planning Obligations
Policy T2 - Sustainable Transport

Policy T3 - Parking

Policy B3 - Aberdeen International Airport and Perwinnes Radar

Also relevant is the proposed allocations:

OP94 - Tillydrone Primary School - site for a new primary school.
OP90 - St Machar Primary School - an education use and/or affordable housing.

Page 100



EVALUATION

Pre-Application Consultation

As part of the major application process, two pre-application consultation events were carried out
on the 24 and 25 September 2019 at the Tillydrone Community Campus. The event was attended
by a range of local residents and the community including both current and future parents of children
at the current Riverbank School. Comments highlighted by the public, have been incorporated into
the proposed development. The majority of comments were in support of the proposal.

Principle of Development

The site falls within the entirety of allocated sites OP94 and part of OP90 of the current 2017 LDP,
both of which form part of the Strategic Infrastructure Plan Affordable Housing Programme and fall
within residential zoning as designated by the LDP. However, within the Proposed LDP (March
2020), while both sites are still allocated as OP94 and OP90, OP94 is now allocated for a new
primary school and OP90 for education use and/or affordable housing, with both sites still falling
within residential zoning.

The content of the Proposed LDP now constitutes the settled view of the Council and is now a
material consideration in the determination of this planning application. In this instance, weight can
will be given to the content of the Proposed LDP, as the development of a new primary school on
these sites is in full compliance with the relevant OP94 and OP90 allocations within this document.
Council Services such as Housing were consulted on the changes to both OP94 and OP90
allocations within the Proposed LDP, as such it is the view of the Council that both sites are no
longer required for affordable housing and would be suitable for a new school/education use.

With regards to local plan policies as the site and surrounding area is zoned for residential, Policy
H1 - Residential Areas applies and as the development is for a new community facility, Policy CF2
- New Community Facilities is also required to assess the proposal. In addition, as the site is also
designated as residential amenity in the 2010 Open Space Audit.

Policy H1 advises that proposals for non-residential uses should be complementary to the existing
residential use and should not cause conflict with, or any nuisance to, the enjoyment of existing
residential amenity. Policy CF2 advises that proposals for new community facilities shall be
supported, in principle, provided they are in locations convenient to the community they serve and
are readily accessible.

In this instance, the proposed development will see a new primary school being erected on the site
of two former primary schools and which is allocated within the proposed LDP for a new primary
school and educational use, respectively. It is therefore considered that this site is an appropriate
location for the proposed development, especially given its relatively central location within the wider
Tillydrone residential area that it will serve. While the aspect of accessibility will be discussed further
in this evaluation, it is considered that for the purpose of establishing the principle of development,
this site is ideal for such a use and would be easily accessible to future staff and pupils. Furthermore,
it is unlikely that the new development would result in a conflict with the existing amenity, but this
aspect will be fully explored further in the evaluation below.

Overall, it is considered that the site can, in principle, satisfactorily accommodate a new primary
school. While the issue of amenity and access will be fully assessed below, it is considered that the
principle of development can be established and the proposal is in compliance with Policy H1 and
CF2.

While part of the site is designated within the Open Space Audit as residential amenity space,
consideration is required to be given to the proposed LDP allocations. So, while the development
would result in the loss of this open space provision, the site was always earmarked for development

Page 101



which is highlighted by the current and proposed allocations, which is a material consideration that
outweigh the loss of open space.

Siting, Layout and Design

The siting, layout and design of the site and school will be assessed against Policy D1 - Quality
Placemaking by Design. D1 requires development to have high standards of design with a strong
and distinctive sense of place that has taken in the context of the surrounding area.

It is considered that the siting of the new school is appropriate and allows for ease of access off the
existing public road. In terms of layout, siting the school towards the north west of the site means
that the development is well related to existing buildings and the remainder of the site remains as
open space for the school pupils. This allows for the benefit of having the hardstanding and grassed
areas connected allowing for easy transition between the two areas.

Overall the design of the proposed school is considered acceptable. The school itself is of a modern
design that both respects and enhances the existing character of the area. It is a contemporary
interpretation of a school that encompasses three wings that have been slightly staggered from each
other. Given the topography of the site, the building is split over a number of levels. From the north,
the building appears to be single storey while from the south, all three wings appear to be different
heights, adding further interest to the design and visual impact of the building. The design is
enhanced by the use of three main materials to the external walls, which are brick, cladding and
render. While the specification or colour of the materials require to be finalised, the agent has
advised that it is intended to use colours like grey and off white. It is considered that these colours
would work well given the context of the surrounding area.

In terms of the six essential qualities highlighted by Policy D1, it is considered that they can be
achieved by this development for the following reasons. The site itself is distinctive in the sense of
being an open area visible from a number of different aspects and it is considered that the school
has been designed/positioned in such a way that it successfully responds to this context and the
character of the surrounding area through the use of appropriate materials which complement the
surrounding residential area. Overall, it is considered that this development will be welcoming to all.

The development has been designed in such a way that it gives precedence to pedestrian
movement, with vehicles restricted to the north west of the site. In addition, new pedestrian access
points have been introduced along all boundaries, which will allow for easy access to the site from
a number of different directions. Also, through the use of landscaping it will be clear how the open
space can be defined and used. Finally, given the location of the site and proximity to residential
properties, it is considered that the site will be highly visible which will result in a high level of natural
surveillance. As such, it is considered that the development is both safe, pleasant and easy to get
around.

The development is for an educational use, however it is considered that the building proposed is
adaptable and given the level of space available could be used for another purpose, such as a
community use should it be required. Furthermore, outwith school hours the school grounds will be
readily accessible to the public. In light of the foregoing it is considered that the development and
site are both adaptable.

Finally, in terms of resource efficiency, given that it is a new build, it is considered that a certain level
of efficiency will be achieved. The site will also be easily accessible by other sustainable modes of
transport such as walking and cycling and public transport, which will aid with the reduction of car
users travelling to the site.

In light of the above, it is considered that the development has been well designed and responds
successfully to the context of the site and its surrounding characteristics, while still being a modern

Page 102



addition. However, given the limited detail provided with regards to the proposed finish it is
necessary to request this information via condition. Nevertheless, it is considered that overall the
proposal complies with Policy D1 - Quality Placemaking by Design.

Amenity

As per the requirements of Policy T5 — Noise, a Noise Impact Assessment has been submitted and
reviewed by the Council’s Environmental Health Service. The report highlights that a noise survey
was undertaken at the site in order to ascertain existing noise levels in and around the site. The
assessment outlines that operational activities relating to the development have also been
undertaken. This includes operational transportation, building services noise, external learning
space and noise from the MUGA. While the report outlines that the acoustic design proposals for
the development will need be updated as the design evolves, due to the specification of some plant
is yet to be confirmed, the assessment undertaken demonstrates that the necessary requirements
of planning can be met, with respect to acoustics, noise and vibration.

Environmental Health has agreed that it is satisfied with the proposal in terms of noise, however in
relation to the additional plant that will still be required, a further Noise Impact Assessment will be
required to ensure that satisfactory levels of noise emissions can be achieved at sensitive receptors.
This additional plant will also include details of the ventilation for the proposed kitchen as its
specification is still outstanding. Given that overall the development is unlikely to cause any issues
with regards to noise, it is accepted that this information can be requested via condition.

In terms of the noise emanating from the proposed MUGA, while the Council operates an open
grounds policy to the school grounds outwith school hours, this does not extend to MUGAs. This
area will only be available to the public on pre-booked basis and as such it will not be freely available.
Given the proximity to existing housing to the south, it is considered appropriate to condition the
pitch’s hours of use, in order to ensure residential amenity is not impacted upon. Environmental
Health are agreeable to this and this approach is standard practice for a development of this nature.

With regards to lighting, no information has been submitted at this time, but it is recognised that a
final design for the required lighting solutions, in particular for the pitch, has not been finalised. As
such Environmental Health still requires demonstration of how the lighting will comply with the
relevant standards through the submission of a further report. It is considered that this can be
secured by condition.

Overall, the information submitted with this application is considered to be acceptable and sufficient
to allow the Planning Service to undertake an assessment against the aspect of amenity. It is
considered that, while the school lies adjacent to residential properties, no undue impact is
expected, as such it is considered that the development complies with Policy T5.

With regards to odour, the school kitchen, and therefore the ventilation, has yet to be designed and
as such no plant has been specified. However, given the end use, Environmental Health considered
the risk of adverse impact from malodour is very low, as such the Service is satisfied that this
information is not required to assess this application at this time. However, the Service will need to
ensure that the proposed plant is acceptable as such, an Odour Impact Assessment will be required
prior to the building being brought into use. This can be secured with the use of an appropriate
condition.

Transport Impacts

Under Policies T2 and T3, commensurate with the scale and anticipated impact, new developments
must demonstrate that sufficient measures have been taken to minimise traffic generated and to
maximise opportunities for sustainable and active travel.

The Roads Development Management Team have reviewed the submitted Transport Statement

Page 103



and have provided comments on access, parking, sustainable modes of transport and the proposed
travel plan framework.

With regards to access, the existing access off Coningham Gardens will be utilised to serve the
proposed development, however, it is noted that the access will be slightly relocated and widened.
The swept path analysis contained within the Transport Statement shows that the newly widened
access would be sufficient to serve the development.

In terms of parking, 48 spaces (including 3 disabled/accessible spaces) have been proposed, based
on the current number of staff, this is considered acceptable. While the Service is aware that due
to the capacity of the school the staff numbers may change, it would not be so significant to require
additional spaces. In addition, given the site’s accessibility by other modes of transport, the aspect
of parking is considered acceptable.

The development proposes a sufficient number of sheltered cycle spaces from both staff and pupils,
which is considered appropriate given the use and size of the development. Also, given the site’s
location within the surrounding community, it is considered that it is easily accessible by walking and
cycling. Further to this, the site is well served by public transport, with bus stops within 150 to 200m
of the various access points.

A Travel Plan is required to improve safety measures and reduce car trips to the site. This would
be of benefit to both staff and those using the school/early learning units. Should an approval be
granted, a condition will be applied requesting the approval and implementation of a travel plan.

In light of the above, it is considered that the proposed development can be easily accessed via the
existing entrance and can provide a suitable level of parking. In addition, given the site’s location,
it is noted that the development would be readily accessible by other means of travel such as
walking, cycling and public transport. As such the development is considered to be in compliance
with Policy T2 - Managing the Transport Impact of Development and Policy T3 - Sustainable and
Active Travel; as well as the Council’s Supplementary Guidance Transport and Accessibility.

Contaminated Land

In light of the sensitive end-use of the proposed development and the fact that the site has been
subject to previous development, it is considered likely that there may be areas of ground with some
potential for contamination, particularly from previously demolished buildings. As such a site
investigation is therefore recommended and should include analysis for the presence/absence of
asbestos fibres, given the age of the previous school. Contaminated Land has advised that they
would review a scope of works for the proposed site investigation in advance of any investigation
being undertaken, in order to ensure an appropriate scale of investigation is undertaken. It is
considered by the Planning Service that this is an appropriate course of action with the assessment
being requested via condition and prior to the commencement of development. Subject to the
results of that investigations the proposal is deemed to comply with Policy R2 - Degraded and
Contaminated Land.

Flooding and Drainage

A drainage assessment was undertaken on this site and has advised that there are existing private
drains within the site serving the existing development and that any existing drains encountered
during construction are to be diverted or removed/abandoned as required. In terms of public
infrastructure, there are existing combined sewers and an existing culvert within Harris Drive to the
south of the site.

With regards to the proposed development, foul drainage from the proposed development will
discharge via new gravity drains and a disconnection chamber to the existing combined sewer within
Harris Drive. While surface water run-off from both the building and parking area will be discharged

Page 104



via a stone filled filter trench to the new cellular storage attenuation tank. The tank will discharge at
a restricted rate via an outlet control manhole and disconnection chamber to the existing culvert
within Harris Drive.

The details within the assessment have been reviewed and are found to be acceptable. As such
the proposal is considered to comply with Policy NE6 - Flooding, Drainage and Water Quality.

Trees and Landscaping

Several trees can be seen on the site, as such a tree survey has been undertaken and submitted
for review. It has identified seven trees that should be felled for either woodland management or
health and safety. Younger trees have been grouped in to four areas, a number of these trees will
be affected by the school or the car park area. However, they are of a size that they could be readily
moved to an area that would not be affected by the development. This is considered an appropriate
option, which would allow the development to proceed whilst also retaining the trees. In terms of
tree protection, fencing is proposed to be erected and this is considered necessary and acceptable
for the duration of construction.

While there would be a loss of some trees, in light of the details within the tree survey, this is
considered appropriate and may have happened whether the development was taking place or not.
The movement of the smaller trees is also necessary as there is no suitable alternative for this
school site, however, should the movement and replanting of existing tree stock fail, compensatory
planting would be sought to ensure that woodland features on this site is retained. Overall, the
development is considered acceptable when assessed against Policy NE5 - Trees and Woodland.

With regards to landscaping of the site, details have been submitted and overall the proposed works
are acceptable, however some amendments are required to ensure that the site is accessible to all
and the site is appropriately screened. As such, it is considered necessary to request an amended
landscaping scheme via condition. With the use of this condition, we can ensure that the trees
mentioned above are re-planted in appropriate locations or compensatory planting shown.

Developer Obligations

Upon assessing the development with regards to the criteria with Policy |1 - Infrastructure Delivery
and Planning Obligations and its Supplementary Guidance, it has been deemed appropriate to
request obligations towards the Core Path Network, to the sum of £2,864. The agent has advised
that they are agreeable to this.

Aberdeen Airport

Aberdeen Airport has advised that the development could conflict with the safeguarding criteria
unless two condition are attached requesting a Bird Hazard Management Plan and a Landscaping
plan, both of which will require to be agreed with the Airport. The Planning Service find this request
acceptable and should the application be granted these conditions would be attached. With the use
of these conditions, it is considered the proposal complies with Policy B4 - Aberdeen Airport.

Other Matters

A bin store has been denoted on the submitted site plan to the north east corner of the proposed
car park. The location is acceptable to Roads Development Management in terms of waste
collection, while Waste Strategy has provided general comments in relation to waste collection for
commercial premises. The information is acceptable and it is considered that the development
would be adequately serviced as per the requirements of Waste - Policy R6 - Waste Management
Requirements for New Development.

As per Policy R7 - Low and Zero Carbon Buildings, and Water Efficiency, all new buildings, must
meet at least 20% of the building regulations carbon dioxide emissions reduction target applicable
at the time of the application through the installation of low and zero carbon generating technology

Page 105



and should reduce the pressure on water abstraction from the River Dee, and the pressure on water
infrastructure. While some information has been submitted is it considered necessary to condition
further details with regards to the Energy Statement and Water Efficiency, in order to ensure
compliance with Policy R7 - Low and Zero Carbon Buildings, and Water Efficiency

Heads of Terms of any Legal Agreement

As mentioned above contributions are required towards the Core Path Network. Heads of Terms
have been agreed and the obligations would be secured by an upfront payment and an inter-service
agreement, subject to the application being recommended for approval.

Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development Plan (2014) (SDP)
This development is not considered to be a strategic proposal that requires cross-boundary
consideration, it does therefore not require a detailed assessment against the SDP.

Proposed Aberdeen Local Development Plan

In relation to this particular application, the site is to be allocated as OP94 and OP90, now identified
as the site for a new primary school and an education use and/or affordable housing, respectively
within the Proposed Plan. This is a material consideration of weight that is required to be taken into
account in the assessment of this application. In terms of the Proposed Plan, the development is
acceptable and in full compliance with the future allocation. All other relevant policies in the
Proposed Aberdeen Local Development Plan 2020, that have been highlighted above, substantively
reiterate those in the adopted Local Development Plan. As such the proposal is acceptable in terms
of both Plans for the reasons previously given.

Conclusion

While the development is not fully in compliance with the allocations within the current Aberdeen
Local Development Plan 2017, material weight is required to be given to the proposed Aberdeen
Proposed Local Development Plan 2020, in which two new allocations now designate the site as
being suitable for a new primary school and an education use and/or affordable housing. As such
a new school in this location is acceptable. It is considered that all aspects of the proposal have
been addressed throughout this report and overall the Planning Service is satisfied with the
development that is proposed and is therefore recommending that this application be approved
subject to condition and the conclusion of a suitable legal agreement.

RECOMMENDATION

Approve Conditionally with upfront payment of the contribution and inter-service agreement

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION

The development is proposed within allocations of OP94 and OP90 of the Proposed Local
Development Plan 2020 and meets the requirements of Policy H1 - Residential Areas and Policy
CF2 - New Community Facilities of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan 2017. The development
will not impact on the residential amenity of the area. While the development would be sited on
open space, the development site is allocated for development within both the current and proposed
local development plans, which materially outweighs the loss of open space. It is concluded that
the loss of green space is justified given that the development would provide a number of benefits
and would be sited in a convenient location for those it would serve.

Overall, the design of the development is considered acceptable in terms of Policy D1 - Quality
Placemaking by Design. Satisfactory access and parking will be provided in the site as required by
Policy T2 - Managing the Transport Impact of Development. Given the site’s location in relation to
the pupil’s that the school it would serve the proposal is deemed to comply with Policy T3 -
Sustainable and Active Travel. Compliance with Policy B4 - Aberdeen Airport can will be dealt with

Page 106



via conditions.

While the site will result in the loss of some trees, this has been justified and any remaining younger
trees can be re-planted in appropriate locations. As such the proposal is compliant with Policy NES
- Trees and Woodlands. The proposal ensures that sufficient surface water drainage can be
accommodated within the site and as such complies with Policy NEG6 - Flooding, Drainage and Water
Quality. Given the previous use of the site, it is considered necessary to request the submission of
a site investigation as a condition as required by Policy R2 - Degraded and Contaminated Land to
ensure the site poses no risk. Sufficient facilities have been provided with regard to waste provision
as per Policy R6 - Waste Management Requirements for New Development Finally a condition will
ensure further information be submitted in order to comply with Policy R7 - Low and Zero Carbon
Buildings, and Water Efficiency.

Overall, the development is considered acceptable and in compliance with the relevant policies of
the Aberdeen Local Development Plan 2017 and the associated Supplementary Guidance. The
development is also considered to comply with Policy WB3 - Noise, Policy NE4 - Our Water
Environment, Policy NES - Trees and Woodland, Policy D1 - Quality Placemaking, Policy R5 - Waste
Management Requirements for New Developments, Policy R2 - Degraded and Contaminated Land,
Policy R6 - Low and Zero Carbon Buildings and Water Efficiency, Policy H1 - Residential Areas,
Policy CF2 - New Community Facilities, Policy 11 - Infrastructure Delivery and Planning Obligations,
Policy T2 - Sustainable Transport, Policy T3 - Parking and Policy B3 - Aberdeen International Airport
and Perwinnes Radar. In light of the above there are no material considerations that warrant refusal
of the application.

CONDITIONS

Materials

No works in connection with the development hereby approved shall commence unless details of
the specification and colour of all the materials to be used in the external finish of the development
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the planning authority. The development shall
not be brought into use unless the external finish has been applied in accordance with the approved
details, specification and colour.

Reason: In the interests of the appearance of the development and the visual amenities of the area.

Hours of Use

The All-Weather Sports Pitch hereby approved shall only be used (excluding maintenance) by the
school or for pre-arranged lets to other persons during the period from 9am to 8pm on Mondays to
Fridays and from 10am to 8pm on Saturdays and Sundays and shall not be used outwith these times
by the school or by any other person for any purpose.

Reason: In order to ensure that the development would not result in undue loss of amenity for
surrounding properties.

Noise

The building hereby approved shall not be brought into use unless a further assessment and report
on the specific building services plant has been undertaken. This assessment and report shall then
be submitted to and approved in writing by the planning authority in consultation with Environmental
Health. Once approved, all mitigation measures recommended in the report should be implemented
prior to the building being brought into use and retained in perpetuity.

Reason: To ensure that noise from the use of the development does not result in undue loss of
amenity for surrounding properties.

Page 107



Odour

The building hereby approved shall not be brought into use unless an odour impact assessment has
been undertaken once the kitchen design has been established. This assessment shall then be
submitted to and approved in writing by the planning authority in consultation with Environmental
Health. Once approved, all mitigation measures recommended in the report shall be implemented
prior to the building being brought into use and retained in perpetuity.

Reason: To ensure that odour from the use of the development does not result in undue loss of
amenity for surrounding properties.

Lighting Strategy

The development hereby approved shall not be brought into use unless full details of the proposed
lighting for the development and an impact assessment of obtrusive light from the development have
been submitted to and approved in writing by the planning authority. Prior to the assessment being
undertaken in accordance with a scope that has been agreed with the planning authority in
consultation with Environmental Health. All lighting shall be provided and thereafter retained in
perpetuity in accordance both with the approved scheme and the Guidance Notes for the Reduction
of Obtrusive Light issued by the Institution of Lighting Professionals (GN01:2011) and any such
guidance notes that replace or supersede them.

Reason: In order to minimise the amount of obtrusive lighting from the development in the interests
of the residential and visual amenity of the surrounding area.

Traffic Restrictions

The building hereby approved shall not be brought into use unless the existing traffic management
signage within the surrounding road network have been implemented. The extent of the works shall
be agreed with the Council’s Traffic Management Team.

Reason: In the interests of road safety and providing a safe route to school.

Travel Plan

The development hereby approved shall not be brought into use unless a Travel Plan for that
building has been submitted to and approved in writing by the planning authority. The Travel Plan
shall encourage more sustainable means of travel and shall include mode share targets. It shall
identify measures to be implemented, the system of management monitoring review, reporting and
duration of the incorporated measures designed to encourage modes other than the private car. The
building shall not be brought into use unless the measures set out in its approved Travel Plan have
been implemented in full.

Reason: In the interests of encouraging a more sustainable means of travel to and from the
proposed development.

Foul and Surface Water Drainage Arrangements

The building hereby approved shall not be brought into use unless the proposed foul and surface
water drainage arrangements have been provided in accordance with the approved plans and the
Drainage Assessment, prepared by Fairhurst, dated March 2019 (project reference 132043). The
foul and surface water drainage arrangements shall be permanently retained thereafter in
accordance with the approved maintenance scheme contained within the Drainage Strategy.

Reason: In order to ensure that adequate drainage facilities are provided, and retained, in the
interests of the amenity of the area.

Bird Management
Development shall not commence until a Bird Hazard Management Plan has been submitted to and

Page 108



approved in writing by the planning authority in consultation with Aberdeen Airport. The submitted
plan shall include details of:

Management of any flat/shallow pitched roofs (of less than 15 degrees) on buildings within the site
which may be attractive to nesting, roosting and “loafing” birds. The management plan shall comply
with Advice Note 8 ‘Potential Bird Hazards from Building Design’ and any such guidance notes that
replace or supersede them.

The Bird Hazard Management Plan shall be implemented as approved, on completion of the
development and shall remain in force for the life of the building. No subsequent alterations to the
plan are to take place unless they have been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the planning
authority in consultation with Aberdeen Airport.

Reason: It is necessary to manage the development in order to minimise its attractiveness to birds
which could endanger the safe movement of aircraft and the operation of Aberdeen Airport.

Landscaping Scheme

No works in connection with the development hereby approved shall commence unless a scheme
of hard and soft landscaping works has been submitted to and approved in writing by the planning
authority.

Details of the scheme shall include:

a) Existing and proposed finished levels.

b) The location of re-planted trees or compensatory planting.

c) The location of new trees, shrubs, hedges and grassed areas.

d) A schedule of planting to comprise species, plant sizes and proposed numbers and density.

e) The location, design and materials of all hard landscaping works including walls, fences, gates,
and play equipment.

f) Anindication of existing trees, shrubs and hedges to be removed.

g) A programme for the implementation, completion and subsequent management of the proposed
landscaping.

All soft and hard landscaping proposals shall be carried out in accordance with the approved planting
scheme and management programme. Any planting which, within a period of 5 years from the
completion of the development, in the opinion of the planning authority is dying, being severely
damaged or becoming seriously diseased, shall be replaced by plants of similar size and species to
those originally required to be planted. Once provided, all hard landscaping works shall thereafter
be permanently retained.

Reason: To ensure the implementation and management of a satisfactory scheme of landscaping
which will help to integrate the proposed development into the local landscape in the interests of the
visual amenity of the area.

Tree Protection

No works in connection with the development hereby approved shall commence unless the tree
protection measures have been implemented in full in accordance with the approved tree protection
plan, plan reference TPS-2002-TP. No materials, supplies, plant, machinery, soil heaps, changes in
ground levels or construction activities shall be permitted within the protected areas without the
written consent of the planning authority and no fire shall be lit in the position where the flames could
extend to within 5 metres of foliage, branches or trunks. The approved tree protection measures
shall be retained in situ until the development has been completed.

Reason: In order to ensure adequate protection for the trees and hedges on the site during the
construction of development, and in the interests of the visual amenity of the area.

Page 109



Environmental Enhancements

No works in connection with the development hereby approved shall commence unless a scheme
of environmental enhancements has been submitted to and approved in writing by the planning
authority in consultation with the Scottish Environmental Protection Agency. Once approved the
scheme shall be implemented in full.

Reason: To ensure the offset of environmental impacts and contribute to and enhance the natural
environment and support Policy D1 — Quality Placemaking by Design.

Site Investigation

No development shall take place unless it is carried out in full accordance with a scheme to
address any significant risks from contamination on the site which has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the planning authority.

The scheme shall follow the procedures outlined in “Planning Advice Note 33 Development of
Contaminated Land” and shall be conducted by a suitably qualified person in accordance with best
practice as detailed in “BS10175 Investigation of Potentially Contaminated Sites - Code of
Practice” and other best practice guidance and shall include:

1. An investigation to determine the nature and extent of contamination

2. A site-specific risk assessment

3. A remediation plan to address any significant risks and ensure the site is fit for the use
proposed

4. Verification protocols to demonstrate compliance with the remediation plan

Reason: In order to ensure any potential contamination of the site is dealt with appropriately in the
interests of public and environmental safety.

Scheme of Remediation
No building on the development site shall be brought into use unless:

1. Any long-term monitoring and reporting that may be required by the approved scheme of
contamination or remediation plan, or that otherwise has been required by the planning
authority in writing, is being undertaken; and

2. A report specifically relating to the building has been submitted and approved in writing by the
planning authority that verifies that remedial works to fully address contamination issues
related to the building have been carried out, unless the planning authority has given written
consent for a variation.

The building on the application site shall not be brought into use unless a report has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the planning authority that verifies that the remedial works
have been carried out in full accordance with the remediation plan.

Reason: To ensure that the site and it’s buildings are suitable and fit for use by humans, and is free
of contamination, or hazardous substances for human beings.

Carbon Neutrality and Water Efficiency
No building hereby approved shall be erected unless an Energy Statement and Water Efficiency
applicable to that building has been submitted to and approved in writing by the planning authority.

Page 110



The Energy Statement shall include the following items:

a) Full details of the proposed energy efficiency measures and/or renewable technologies to be
incorporated into the development;

b) Calculations using the SAP or SBEM methods which demonstrate that the reduction in carbon
dioxide emissions rates for the development, arising from the measures proposed, will enable
the development to comply with Policy R7 of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan 2017.

The Water Efficiency Statement shall include details of all proposed water saving technologies and
techniques.

The development shall not be brought into use unless it has been constructed in full accordance
with the approved details in both statements. All measures shall be retained in place and fully
operational thereafter.

Reason: to ensure this development complies with the on-site carbon reductions required in Scottish
Planning Policy and Policy R7 of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan 2017.

ADVISORY NOTES FOR APPLICANT

Bird Hazard Management Plan

The Bird Hazard Management Plan must ensure that flat/shallow pitched roofs be constructed to
allow access to all areas by foot using permanent fixed access stairs ladders or similar. The
owner/occupier must not allow gulls, to nest, roost or loaf on the building. Checks must be made
weekly or sooner if bird activity dictates, during the breeding season. Outside of the breeding season
gull activity must be monitored and the roof checked regularly to ensure that gulls do not utilise the
roof. Any gulls found nesting, roosting or loafing must be dispersed by the owner/occupier when
detected or when requested by Aberdeen Airport Airside Operations staff. The owner/occupier must
remove any nests or eggs found on the roof.

The breeding season for gulls typically runs from March to June. The owner/occupier must obtain
the appropriate licences where applicable from Scottish Natural Heritage (SNH) before the removal
of nests and eggs.

Waste

e Business premises need to be provided with a bin store to allocate, within the property, the
waste and recycling bins

e Commercial waste bins cannot be stored on the street any day of the week as per Council
Policy 2009 (Obstructions- Commercial Waste Bins). Infringement on the Council Policy can
lead to a fine of £500 per bin as adopted by the Enterprise, Strategic Planning and
Infrastructure Committee on 29" August 2013

e There are many waste contract collection providers operating in Aberdeen and each one
provides different collection of waste and recycling services. For this reason, business premises
need to liaise with their waste contract collection to ensure the correct management of their
waste.

e Business premises have a legal Duty of Care covering all the waste they produce. This means
that it is the Business premises responsibility to manage and dispose of any waste correctly.

e The Waste (Scotland) 2012 requires that all businesses from 1st January 2014 are required to
separate paper, cardboard, glass, plastic and metals for recycling. Some businesses will
additionally be required to separate their food waste (where food waste >5kg per week).

e General tips for site and hopefully the chosen waste collection contractor will detail this but for
access, the following is needed:

o An area of hard standing at storage and collections point(s)

Page 111



o Dropped kerb at proposed bin collection point

Yellow lines in front of bin collection point

o Bin storage areas to ideally be provided with a gulley and wash down facility for the
interest of hygiene

(@)

For further independent guidance about waste and recycling provision, storage and collection please
refer to the following document:
http://www.lgcplus.com/Journals/3/Files/2010/7/14/ADEPTMakingspaceforwaste 000.pdf and
additional Trade Waste information can be found in the Waste Supplementary Guidance available
at http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/nmsruntime/saveasdialog.asp?IlD=74584&sID=14394

Crane Operations

Given the nature of the proposed development it is possible that a crane may be required during its
construction. We would, therefore, draw the applicant's attention to the requirement within the British
Standard Code of Practice for the safe use of Cranes, for crane operators to consult the aerodrome
before erecting a crane in close proximity to an aerodrome. This is explained further in Advice Note
4, '‘Cranes and Other Construction Issues' (available at
http://www.aoa.org.uk/policysafeguarding.htm)

Page 112


http://www.lgcplus.com/Journals/3/Files/2010/7/14/ADEPTMakingspaceforwaste_000.pdf
http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/nmsruntime/saveasdialog.asp?lID=74584&sID=14394

DDDDDDDDD

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT o]

3’&\@@
MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE ABERDEEN
01.06.2020

Erection of 6 residential flats with associated
landscaping

Land to Rear of 44/46 Bedford Road, Aberdeen
Application for Detailed Planning Permission

Application Reference Number : 200303/DPP

2’/ Wa)| epusby



Location Plan

orPlanni X | @ 191536/DPP|Erec X @ 191536.0PP-loc: X @ A(03)004 Propose: X | B 72BedfordPl-Gc X | @ SearchResuits:fin X | @ Bracken Controk:# X | <+ = X

aberdeencity.gov.uk/online-applications/files/5647AC2B0758A60166F27132B600E881/pdf/191536_DPP-Location_and_Site_Plans-1871886.pdf




Aerial Photo

& 191536/DPP | Erec X ‘ @ A(04)007 Propose: X ‘ @ A(03)004 Propose: X ¥ 44BedfordRd-C X = @ Search Results: fin X ‘ @ Bracken Control: / X ‘ e




Bedford Place (looking West)

ometoTheZ X | @ Agenda for Plans @ 191536/DPP |Erec X | @ A(04)007 Propos | A(03)004 Propos 55 Bedford Pl - C @ Search Results: fir: X | @ Bracken Contr

Cc o @ google.com.br/maps/@57.1610126,-2.109242,3a,75y,294.63h,100.03t/data=!3m6! 1e113m4!1s5qL.2UWiEEogwiGjghCZ3jA!2e0!7i13312!8i6656

Jedford Pl
deen, Scotland

' Google

» Street View




Bedford Place (looking South)

X | @ Agenda forPlanni X

X

@ Bracken Control: / X +
mments &« C (¢ & google.com.br/maps, ® ® % O

94 Bedford Pl
Aberdeen, Scotland

2 Google

(O~ Street View

Reporta problem~
1451
20/01/2020




gTT obed

-

ABERDEEN

CITY COUNCIL

Proposed Site Plan

PROPOSED SITE PLAN




Proposed G

round Floor Plan

CURTLAGE

EXIETING PARKING METER TO
BE RELOCATED AS AGREED
WITH LOCAL AUTHORITY

EXISTING

WWITH UTIUTY PROVIDER

4

s 4

° O
LAMP POST

WORES |AMD E T0 REMAIM FOLLOWING
COMPLETION) TO BE REBUILT ON EXISTING
FOUMDATIONS & TO MATCH EXISTING

EXETIMG TREE CAMOPY
TO BE TRIMMED

BEDFORD PLACE

A 8
{ BEW | Bi HIGH P MEIGHBOURIMG GARDER
— TIMBER FENCE, f EXETING BT POLE AMD OVERHEAD
EXISTING TREES WITHIN PAINTED GREY i LINES 103 BE RELOCATED: AS
APPLICATION BOUDARY | MGREED WITH UTILITY PROVIDER ADIOMNG
10 BE CUT DM | Q FRCtTY
r 1804 I TIha LOW MAINTEMANCE
T3 = 0 T GATE SHRLIE/BUSH BOR EXISTING OUTBLALDINGS
x) 1] 2 : h| = —— [ - TO) BE TAKEN DOWH
= 11 - - ‘[
REY 2= L
] 1 HEW | B HIGH
—— - - 1 TIMEER FENCE AHD
5 _ L - GATE, PARTED GREY
i
BECRCIOM I bt ! -
-U STAR ™~ — J‘
[ LU
QD W 1
(@) pral i
s S0 S
I i a b} 1 ARED GARTEN EXBTING
E | > FLATS AND
e Ll & SHOPS
|—\I ﬁ?] EMCHEN '\\
ADICHMNG [=: CHD 107 25mm
LO FROPERTY [l | D
e G STEPS TO
e ME INDICATES oty
- R 5 oW,
= A HEDROOM 2 BEORDOIM 2 R T e
STOR | APPLICATION 17153
| 1 LOW MAINTEMANCE
| 1 SHRUB/BUSH BORDE
' 1
- 1
ENTRY 10 REAR BUILDIN EXGTING BT CABBET 10 B2 A
Erumﬁ-g RELOCATED AS AGREED ?ﬁ;immgzgrfﬁi?m?:}g; EXAEY C) SEHARET
DOWH 088 GARDEN SPACE



Proposed Front Elevation

NN

.
-
.
\

]

ﬁa nnnnnnnnn sr,

O

ABERDEEN

CITY COUNCIL



Proposed Rear Elevation

" A F 4 BN A
. CYCLE :
SHARED GARDEN sTORAGE §

e ey At N A e A i W A N

ABERDEEN

CITY COUNCIL



Detailed Layout Plan — as approved under 191536

TheZ X | @ AgendaforPlanni X | @ 191536/DPP |Erec X

@ publicaccess.aberdeencity.gov.uk/online-applications/files/955B7F0141AA852C492C36B2EC074209/pdf/191536_DPP-Proposed_Ground_Floor_Plan-1874872.pdf

@ A(03)004 Propose: X @ A(03)004 Propose: X | ¥ 72Bedford PI- Go X | @ Search Results: firr X | @ Bracken Control: /X

EXISTING TREES WITHIN
APPLICATION BOUDARY
TO BE CUT DOWN

I—

i

EXISTING BT POLE AMD OVERHEAD
LINES TO BE RELOCATED AS
AGREED WITH UTILITY PROVIDER

O

NEGHBOURIMG GARDEN

ADJOINING

/T

LE SHELTER [FOR |
lcvciks) 10 se

ERCOAD,
TED GBREY
—

\ BEDROOM |

Bl
STORRMGE

A

ENTRY TO REAR
CURTILAGE

EXISTING PARKING METER TO
BE RELOCATED AS AGREED
WITH LOCAL AUTHORITY

EXISTING ©

LAMP POST

=

KITCHEN

LIVING ROOM

b

STAIR

FLAT |
Sdm?®

4

BUILDIN$

SUITEr— /

~ BEDROQOM 1
ol
HAL Y
KITCHEN
BEDROOM 2 LIVING ROOM

S~
a ] ‘

EXISTING BT CABINET TO BE
RELOCATED A5 AGREED
WITH UTILITY PROVIDER

LOW MAINTENANCE
SHRUB/BUSH BORDER

SHARED GARDEM

LOW MAINTENANCE
SHRUB/BUSH BORDER

EXIETIMNG OUTBUILDINGS
TO BE TAKEM DOWN

MNEW 1 BM HIGH
TIMBER FENCE AMD

GATE, PAINTED GREY

EXISTIMNG STEPS TO
BE TAKEM DOWMN

PROPERTY

-

EXISTING
FLATS AND
SHOPS

A

ENTRY TO SHARED
GARDEM SPACE




Proposed North (Front) Elevation — as approved

)

| E Welcome to The Z X | @ Agenda for Plannii X | & 191536/DPP | Erec X @ A(04)007 Proposer X = (@ A(03)004 Propose: X | m 72 Bedford Pl - Go X | @ Search Result

C 0 @ publicaccess.aberdeencity.gov.uk/online-applications/files/58E8FF1E2C509915D9D820445C51AE75/pdf/191536_DPP-Proposed_Elevations-1874875.f

A(04)007 Proposed Elevations 1/1

)

)

ll[ ;
3

¢

)/GL

B




Proposed Rear (South) Elevation — as approved

metoTheZ X | @ AgendaforPlanni X | @& 191536/DPP|Erec X @ A(4)007Propose X @ A(03)004 Propose: X | ¥ 72Bedford PI-Go X | @ SearchResults:firr X | @ Bracken Control: / X

C O @ publicaccess.aberdeencity.gov.uk/online-applications/files/58E8FF1E2C509915D9D820445C51AE75/pdf/191536_DPP-Proposed_Elevations-1874875.pdf

Proposed Elevations

o
Q
4
=
o)
B

FLEVATION

BIN &
CYCLE
SHARED GARDEN b STORAGE
i
{ | EXISTING LEVEL OF LAND




Planning Development Management Committee

Report by Development Management Manager

AEE I?(E?JEELN Committee Date: 1 June 2020
Site Address: Land to the rear of 44/46 Bedford Road, Aberdeen, AB24 3NS,
gpphc.atl.on. Erection of 6no. residential flats with associated landscaping
escription:

Application Ref:

200303/DPP

Application Type

Detailed Planning Permission

Application Date:

5 March 2020

Applicant:

George Taylor ASA

Ward:

George Street/Harbour

Community Council:

Froghall, Powis And Sunnybank

Case Officer:

Robert Forbes

© Crown Copyright. Aberdeen City Council. Licence Number: 100023401 - 2018

RECOMMENDATION

Willingness to approve conditionally subject to securing a legal agreement to deliver developer
obligations towards the car club

Page 125



APPLICATION BACKGROUND

Site Description

The site comprises the garden ground of the tenement at 44/46 Bedford Road. This is a 3 storey
Victorian tenement of granite and slate construction occupied by flats and a redundant shop on the
corner with Bedford Place. It fronts onto and is accessed from Bedford Road and has windows to
the rear.

Bedford Place is a relatively quiet minor through road in the city. The site and adjacent streets to
the south do not lie within a controlled parking zone (CPZ), however Bedford Place forms part of the
southern edge of Old Aberdeen CPZ. Parking takes place on each side of the road, but there is still
sufficient width to allow opposing vehicles to pass safely. Bedford Road is a bus route and has
limited car parking due to the presence of advisory cycle lanes.

Relevant Planning History

Application Number Proposal Decision Date
191536/DPP Erection of 6 flats 25.02.20
Approved at PDMC subject to s.69 legal agreement

181541/DPP Erection of 6 flats 29.11.19
Approved at LRB subject to s.75 legal obligation

180555/DPP Erection of 4 flats
Decision pending s.69

171410/DPP Erection of 4 flats 17.05.18
Approved at LRB

141664 Erection of 8 flats with parking Withdrawn

APPLICATION DESCRIPTION

Description of Proposal

Erection of 6 flats within the rear garden ground of the tenement at 44/46 Bedford Road. The 3
storey building would front onto, and be accessed from, Bedford Place. Its front and north-west
(gable) elevation would be clad with granite. Other elevations would be finished in granite chip
roughcast. The mansard roof would be clad with slate. Windows would be focused on the front and
rear elevations with the front window proportion and floor to ceiling heights matching those of the
adjacent tenement. All flats would be 2 bedroomed and accessed via a communal stairwell. No
details of landscaping are provided. The western section of the site would include an area of
communal external garden ground which the applicant has advised would be accessible to existing
and proposed occupants. It is proposed to elevate the garden and building ground level significantly
above existing ground level by infilling the garden around 1.5m. Bin and cycle storage would be
provided on a hard-surfaced area at the gable / east end of the site. This would be accessed from
the street via a gate. No car parking is proposed on site.

A similar proposal was refused under delegated powers and subsequently approved by the Local
Review Body in 2019. In essence, the current proposal is to enlarge (elongate) the footprint of the
consented building (with minor elevational changes) resulting in increased proximity to the
tenements on Bedford Road. There would be a minor increase in the length of the building by 1.5m
overall and an increase in the solid to void ratio of the front and rear elevations. The extent of
additional floorspace would be 15 square metres. The relationship with the adjacent tenement on
Bedford Place would remain identical to that recently consented by approval 191536/DPP. No
change to the height or design concept of the consent are proposed. Some windows on the rear
elevation would be increased in size (widened from 0.9m to 1.25m).

Page 126



Supporting Documents
All drawings and supporting documents listed below can be viewed on the Council’s website at:

https://publicaccess.aberdeencity.gov.uk/online-
applications/applicationDetails.do?active Tab=documents&keyVal=Q6Q1LEBZGEDO0OQO

Design statement

Reason for Referral to Committee

The application has been referred to the Planning Development Management Committee because
an objection has been received from the Roads Development Management Team and the
recommendation is approval.

CONSULTATIONS

ACC - Roads Development Management Team — Note that the site is well connected by footpath,
cycle route and public transport links. Advise that in terms of ACC parking standards, the
development would require 9 car spaces but could result in potential for 12 additional residential
permits to park within the adjacent controlled parking zone (CPZ) (operational between 10am and
4pm, Monday to Friday). Residents would be entitled to apply for 2 on-street parking permits which
could add to existing parking pressures. The directly adjacent and nearby streets which fall outwith
the CPZ already encounter significant parking pressures due to the parking being uncontrolled and
neighbouring residents within the CPZ opting to park on these streets. Introduction of these new
units would, either by obtaining on-street parking permits, or opting to not pay for parking permits
and utilise the neighbouring streets, exacerbate the existing and finite parking within this area — both
in the CPZ and the adjacent area outwith the CPZ which could lead to further indiscriminate parking.

Object to the proposal due to likely increased indiscriminate car parking pressure in the surrounding
area. Advise that there is no way to minimise the number of cars owned by the residents, and this
will have an adverse impact on the amenity of neighbouring streets through an increase in on-street
parking pressure.

ACC - Developer Obligations — Request affordable housing provision / contribution in lieu of such
provision on site, and developer obligation contributions in relation to enhancement of Health
(E2,770), Open Space (£878) and Primary Education facilities (£2,635). Note that, in light of the
planning decision on 181515/DPP, it was not considered reasonable to require the primary
education, healthcare, open space or affordable housing contributions when planning ref
191536/DPP was approved. Appreciate that this background/context might also have a bearing on
any decision about whether it would be reasonable to require such contributions from this
application.

ACC - Education — Advise that the development is likely to result in additional pupil capacity being
required at Sunnybank Primary School, and a contribution from the developer should therefore be
requested in order to cover the cost of creating this additional capacity.

ACC - Housing — Advise that, as per ACC affordable housing policy, 25% is required to be provided
as affordable. In light of the current housing market, the preference is for a commuted sum (i.e.
£57,000).

ACC - Waste Strategy Team — No objection. Recommend that a condition is imposed requiring
provision of refuse / recycling bins.

Page 127


https://publicaccess.aberdeencity.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=Q6Q1LEBZGED00
https://publicaccess.aberdeencity.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=Q6Q1LEBZGED00

Froghall, Powis and Sunnybank Community Council — No response received

REPRESENTATIONS

None

MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS

Legislative Requirements

Sections 25 and 37(2) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 require that where, in
making any determination under the planning acts, regard is to be had to the provisions of the
Development Plan and that determination shall be made in accordance with the plan, so far as
material to the application unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

National Planning Policy and Guidance
Scottish Planning Policy 2014 (SPP) expresses a presumption if favour of development which
contributes to sustainable development.

Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development Plan 2014 (SDP)

The purpose of the SDP is to set a spatial strategy for the future development of the Aberdeen City
and Shire. The general objectives of the plan are promoting economic growth and sustainable
economic development which will reduce carbon dioxide production, adapting to the effects of
climate change, limiting the use of non-renewable resources, encouraging population growth,
maintaining and improving the region’s built, natural and cultural assets, promoting sustainable
communities and improving accessibility.

The SDP is now beyond its five-year review period. In the light of this, for proposals which are
regionally or strategically significant or give rise to cross boundary issues between Aberdeen City
and Aberdeenshire, the presumption in favour of development that contributes to sustainable
development will be a significant material consideration in line with SPP.

The Aberdeen City Local Development Plan 2017 (ALDP) will continue to be the primary document
against which applications are considered. The Proposed Aberdeen City & Shire SDP may also be
a material consideration. The Proposed SDP constitutes the settled view of the Strategic
Development Planning Authority (and both partner Councils) as to what should be the final content
of the next approved Strategic Development Plan. The Proposed SDP was submitted for
Examination by Scottish Ministers in Spring 2019, and the Reporter has now reported back. The
Scottish Ministers will consider the Reporter’s Report and decide whether or not to approve or modify
the Proposed SDP. The exact weight to be given to matters contained in the Proposed SDP in
relation to specific applications will depend on whether:

+ these matters have been subject to comment by the Reporter; and

» the relevance of these matters to the application under consideration.

Aberdeen Local Development Plan 2017 (ALDP)

D1: Quality Placemaking by Design

D2: Landscape

D5: Our Granite Heritage

H1: Residential Areas

H5: Affordable Housing

NE4: Open Space Provision in New Development

NEG6: Flooding, Drainage & Water Quality

R6: Waste Management Requirements for New Development

Page 128



R7: Low & Zero Carbon Building & Water Efficiency
T2: Managing the Transport Impact of Development
T3: Sustainable and Active Travel

Supplementary Guidance (SG) and Technical Advice Notes
Sub-division & Redevelopment of Residential Curtilages
Resources for New Development

Transport and Accessibility

Affordable Housing

Flooding, Drainage and Water Quality

Planning Obligations

Landscape

Proposed Aberdeen Local Development Plan 2020 (PALDP)
The PALDP was approved at the Council meeting of 2 March 2020. It constitutes the Council’s
settled view as to what the final content of the next adopted ALDP should be and is now a material
consideration in the determination of planning applications. The ALDP will continue to be the primary
document against which applications are considered. The exact weight to be given to matters
contained in the PALDP (including individual policies) in relation to specific applications will depend
on whether —
» these matters have been subject to public consultation through the Main Issues Report; and,
» the level of objection raised in relation these matters as part of the Main Issues Report; and,
» the relevance of these matters to the application under consideration.

The foregoing can only be assessed on a case by case basis. In this case similar zoning and topic
polices apply to those identified above,

EVALUATION

Principle of Development

The principle of erection of a 6-unit flatted development on the site, of similar scale, massing, internal
layout and design to that now proposed, has been established by the granting of detailed planning
permission ref. 181541/DPP and 191536/DPP. Both of these permissions remain valid. Setting
aside the matter of development of garden ground, as addressed below, the introduction of
additional flats within a built-up area of the city on an accessible site accords with the objective of
sustainable development as expressed in SPP. Due to the small scale of this proposal, it is
considered to raise no strategic matters, such that SDP is of limited weight in this instance.

Amenity

Policy H1 of the ALDP supports new residential development in residential areas, provided that
(amongst other things) it would not constitute overdevelopment; would not have an unacceptable
impact on the character and amenity of the surrounding area; and would otherwise comply with
supplementary guidance. The most relevant supplementary guidance deals with the sub-division
and redevelopment of residential curtilages. It includes that new dwellings resulting from curtilage
splitting should be in keeping with the spatial character and built form of the surrounding area. The
principles it sets out include: respect for the established relationship between buildings and their
gardens; complementing the scale of surrounding properties; respecting density by generally not
building on more than a third of the total area of the existing curtilage; respecting the existing building
line; having separation between dwellings similar to that predominating on the street; and keeping
to the height of adjoining dwellings. Further supplementary guidance on householder development
includes requirements for privacy separation between dwellings and a method for assessing daylight
and sunlight impacts.

It is acknowledged that the development would result in loss of existing garden ground. Both that

Page 129



and the wider issue of overdevelopment are relevant material considerations. However, the loss of
garden ground has previously been accepted by approval of the previous applications. The nature,
density, height and building line of the development is identical to that approved under 191536/DPP.
Whilst there would be a marginal increase in site coverage resulting from the revised proposal, (
with the extent of hard surfacing increasing from 58 % of the site to 63%) this is not considered to
be so significant that it warrants refusal on grounds of overdevelopment, for the reasons below.

There would be no material change to the relationship with adjacent facing windows. Although the
proposal would result in a slightly reduced separation with the parent tenement compared to the
approval, (i.e. a reduction of 1.5m) there would be adequate separation in terms of daylight and
sunlight impact to that property. There would be a marginal increase in site coverage and massing
and loss of the existing garden due to the revised proposal, but this would have no significant
adverse impact on amenity.

Although the rear of the flats would overlook adjacent garden ground at close quarters, this would
also have occurred with the consented scheme. The proposal would have increased upper floor
bedroom window proportions on the rear elevation and would therefore potentially result in
increased overlooking of adjacent garden ground relative to the previously consented schemes.
However, it is considered that this marginal change does not justify refusal.

Although it is proposed to elevate the garden ground above existing ground level by infilling it around
1.5m, so that there is potential for increased overlooking of neighbours from the garden, this was
also proposed under planning permissions 181541/DPP and 191536/DPP. The proposal indicates
that screen planting / hedges would be provided along its boundary with the adjacent tenement
garden and the street, thereby minimising overlooking of adjacent garden ground. Details of the
treatment of site boundaries can be required by condition to protect visual amenity and privacy.

In essence, in terms of overlooking and amenity, the current proposal is considered to have similar
impact to the previously approved schemes. Notwithstanding the expectations of policy H1 and
related SG regarding Sub-division & Redevelopment of Residential Curtilages, given the extant
planning permissions, it is considered that there is no justifiable reason for the refusal of the revised
design on the grounds of impact on existing residential amenity and an adequate level of amenity
would be created for occupants of the development.

Design

Policy D1 of the ALDP is a high-level place-making policy. It expects development to ensure high
standards of design and have a strong and distinctive sense of place. Further detail is found in
supplementary guidance, including that above.

The design concept is directly influenced by the tenement to the east and the proposed building
would have identical wall-head and ridge heights and be of the same mansard form as this adjacent
tenement. Only minor changes to the consented design are proposed and the site is not located
within a conservation area. As there is no uniformity of the existing streetscape of Bedford Place,
with a range of building forms evident, it is considered that the proposed detached building, which
is visually similar to the approved frontage, would cause no additional harm to the streetscape.
Although the proposal would result in marginally reduced separation with the parent tenement
compared to the approval (i.e. a reduction of 1.5m), this change is unlikely to be visually apparent
and is therefore considered be acceptable in terms of policy D1.

The rear elevation would not be visible to the public. It is considered that the front and gable
elevations which are visible from the street are well designed as they would relate well to the
proportions, building line and form of the adjacent tenement. The proposed use of natural granite
on the publicly visible elevations of the building would accord with policy D5 and is to be applauded.
The detailed appearance of the granite to be used on these elevations and the front boundary wall

Page 130



can be controlled by imposition of a condition.

No details of landscaping have been provided as expected by policy D2 and related Landscape SG,
however, the development is of similar layout and plan to that approved and for which no details of
landscaping were required. The north-western section of the site would include an area of communal
external garden ground which the applicant has advised would be accessible to existing and
proposed occupants and it is expected that this would be managed by the residents or a factor. A
suspensive condition can be imposed to address provision of such open space and the provision of
landscaping/ planting.

Traffic / Parking

Policy T2 expects new developments to demonstrate that sufficient measures have been taken to
minimise traffic generated and to maximise opportunities for sustainable and active travel.
Supplementary guidance on transport and accessibility includes parking standards for residential
development and supports low or no car development where there is evidence to show that car
ownership and use will be low enough. Notwithstanding that the level of car parking does not accord
with the Council’s guidance regarding car parking, and no evidence has been provided regarding
car ownership / parking pressure in the surrounding area, the previous approvals are a significant
material consideration which weigh in favour of approval. As no car parking is proposed and
adequate pedestrian access to the development and ancillary cycle parking would be provided on
site, it would accord with the objective of policy T2. It is noted that Bedford Place forms part of the
southern edge of Old Aberdeen CPZ and prospective residents of the development would be eligible
to apply for parking permits.

ACC Transport and Accessibility Supplementary Guidance document states:

“In...Inner City locations, low and no car development may be acceptable...In Outer City
locations it is unlikely” (n.b. this site is on the border of the inner and outer city). “when
considering the suitability of a site for no car parking...it can be demonstrated through a
Travel Plan that significant measures will be undertaken to minimise the number of cars
expected to travel to/from the site”.

In this case no travel plan has been provided but this has not been requested in light of the previous
approvals. Notwithstanding that ACC Roads Service object to the development due to the absence
of car parking provision on site and likely increase in parking pressure in the surrounding area, the
intensity and scale of development is no greater than that approved under 181541/DPP and
191536/DPP. The likely traffic impact of the proposed development would therefore be identical to
that resulting from the approved development and there has been no change in the physical context
of the site or wider planning policy context. It would therefore be inappropriate to refuse planning
permission on the grounds of traffic impact, subject to revision of the existing s.75 agreement
(requiring car club contributions) to include reference to the current application or the applicant
entering into a fresh legal agreement.

Contribution to the car club, as previously agreed, would have the potential to mitigate the likely
adverse impact of the development in terms of generation of increased car parking pressure in the
surrounding area. Such contributions are identified as an acceptable mitigation option within ACC
SG regarding Transport and Accessibility (para 3.3) and within ACC SG regarding Planning
Obligations (table 2 — whereby a figure of £400 per unit is identified). A total contribution figure of
£2400 has previously been agreed in relation to applications 181541/DPP and 191536/DPP.

Flood Risk / Drainage
The site, and adjacent land within the rear garden of the tenement to the south, is identified within
the SEPA flood maps as being of medium risk of flooding due to surface water. However, as the site

Page 131



is not affected due to coastal or river flooding, there is no statutory requirement to consult SEPA in
this instance. Although the development could result in increased risk to adjacent property (due to
infilling of the existing garden ground), the proposed development is of the same scale and nature
as that which has been recently approved (191536/DPP), notwithstanding the marginal increase in
site coverage, and for which no flood risk assessment was required. It would therefore be
unreasonable to require such assessment to be undertaken at this stage.

No details of SUDS / Drainage Impact have been provided, as is expected to be provided on site to
accord with policy NE6 and Flooding, Drainage and Water Quality SG. However, as this was not
required to be the provided or delivered in association with the approved development, it would be
unreasonable to refuse the development on the grounds of failure to provide such information.

Developer Obligations / Affordable Housing

Notwithstanding the requested developer obligation contributions, including the request for
contribution in lieu of affordable housing provision on site, the proposed development is of the same
scale and nature as that which has been approved (181541/DPP and 191536/DPP) and for which
no developer obligation contributions were required. Given that both permissions remain valid and
there has been no subsequent material change in the planning policy context or physical context,
they have significant weight as material considerations. It would therefore be unreasonable to now
require the requested developer obligation contributions, or to refuse the development on such
grounds.

No affordable housing would be provided on site, as expected to be provided to accord with policy
H5 and Affordable Housing SG. However, as this was not required to be the provided or delivered
in association with the approved developments and no such developer contribution was required in
association with those approvals, it would be unreasonable to require such provision now or refuse
the development on such grounds.

Other Technical Matters

No public open space would be provided on site, as expected to be provided to accord with policy
NE4: Open Space Provision in New Development and related SG. However, as this was not required
to be provided or delivered in association with the approved developments and no such developer
contribution was required in association with those approvals (e.g. in relation to enhancement of off-
site open space) it would be inappropriate to require such provision now or refuse the development
on such grounds.

No details of micro-renewable energy, or low and zero carbon energy, or water efficiency technology
have been provided, as expected to be provided on site to accord with policy R7 and Resources for
New Development SG. However, as this was not required to be the provided or delivered in
association with the approved developments it would be unreasonable to refuse the development
on the grounds of failure to provide such information.

Adequate bin storage could be accommodated on site in accordance with the expectation of policy
R6.

Proposed Aberdeen Local Development Plan

In relation to this particular application, the policies in the Proposed Aberdeen Local Development
Plan 2020 (ALDP) substantively reiterate those in the adopted Local Development Plan and the
proposal is acceptable in terms of both Plans for the reasons previously given.

Heads of Terms of any Legal Agreement

In the absence of variation of the s.75 legal agreement associated with 181541/DPP, to include
reference to the current application, there is a need for a separate legal agreement in order to ensure
that an equivalent financial contribution to the car club (£2,400) is made in accordance with the

Page 132



expectations of policy T2 and Planning Obligations SG.

Although a separate s.69 agreement was entered into in relation to approval 191536/DPP, to secure
the financial contribution to the car club (£2,400) referred to above, that legal agreement does not
relate to the current application. A fresh legal agreement is now required in relation to the current
application.

RECOMMENDATION

Willingness to approve conditionally subject to securing a legal agreement to deliver developer
obligations towards the car club.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION

The principle of erection of a 6 unit flatted development on the site, of similar scale, form, internal
layout and design to that now proposed, has been established by the granting of detailed planning
permissions ref. 181541/DPP and 191536/DPP. Notwithstanding the expectations of policy H1 of
Aberdeen Local Development Plan (ALDP) and related guidance regarding Sub-division &
Redevelopment of Residential Curtilages, given the extant planning permissions, it is considered
that there is no justifiable reason for the refusal of the revised design on the grounds of impact on
existing residential amenity and an adequate level of amenity would be created for occupants of the
development.

Although the proposal would result in a marginally reduced separation with the parent tenement
compared to the approval, and marginally increased site coverage and elevational changes, these
changes are considered be acceptable in terms of ALDP policy D1. No details of landscaping have
been provided as expected by ALDP policy D2 and related supplementary guidance, however, the
development is of similar layout and plan to that approved and for which no details of landscaping
were required. The proposed use of natural granite on the publicly visible elevations of the building
would accord with ALDP policy D5. These detailed design matters (i.e. use of granite and
landscaping) can be addressed by condition.

Notwithstanding that no evidence has been provided regarding car ownership / pressure in the
surrounding area, as no car parking is proposed and adequate pedestrian access to the
development and ancillary cycle parking provided on site, it would accord with the objective of ALDP
policy T2, notwithstanding that the level of car parking does not accord with the Council’s guidance
regarding car parking. Contribution to the car club would have the potential to mitigate the likely
adverse impact of the development in terms of generation of increased car parking pressure in the
surrounding area.

In the absence of variation of the s.75 legal agreement associated with 181541, to include reference
to the current application, there would be a need for a separate legal agreement in order to ensure
that an equivalent financial contribution to the car club (£2,400) is made in accordance with the
expectations of policy T2 and Planning Obligations SG.

CONDITIONS

01. The development hereby approved shall not be occupied unless the communal external amenity
area / shared garden ground as identified on the drawings hereby approved [refs. A(03)001 rev.E;
A(03)004 rev.E], or such other drawings as may be approved in writing by the planning authority,
has been implemented / planted in full and is thereafter retained as landscaped

communal space.

Reason - In order to ensure provision of adequate amenity for residents and ensure compliance with

Page 133



the objective of local development plan policies D1: Quality Placemaking by Design, D2: Landscape,
H1: Residential Areas and NE4: Open Space Provision in New Development.

02. No development shall take place pursuant to this planning permission unless construction details
of the proposed street boundary wall along Bedford Place and a sample of the natural granite to be
used on the external elevations of the building has been submitted to and approved in writing by the
planning authority. The development hereby approved shall not be occupied unless such details as
may be approved have been implemented in full.

Reason — In order to preserve the character and setting of the surrounding area and ensure
compliance with the objective of local development plan policies D1: Quality Placemaking by Design,
D5: Our Granite Heritage and H1: Residential Areas.

03. The development hereby approved shall not be occupied unless secure cycle parking / storage
facilities have been provided on site for occupants in accordance with the drawing hereby approved
[A(03)004 rev.E], or such other drawing as may be approved in writing by the planning authority.

Reason — In order to ensure compliance with planning policy T2: Managing the Transport Impact of
Development and reduce demand for car parking.

04. The development hereby approved shall not be occupied unless the bin storage area has been
provided on site for occupants in accordance with the drawing hereby approved [A(03)004 rev.E],
or such other drawing as may be approved in writing by the planning authority.

Reason —In order to ensure compliance with planning policy R6: Waste Management Requirements
for New development

Page 134



DDDDDDDDD

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT o=
3’&1@@
MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE A

CITY COUNCIL

Residential development of 245 private rented sector flats
(up to nine storeys and two basement levels) with amenity
space, 254 car parking spaces, two publicly accessible car
club vehicles (including electric charging points), residents'
gym, residents' function room, public bistro and public
promenade with viewpoints to quarry

OV

Land Adjacent To Rubislaw Quarry Hill Of Rubislaw Aberdeen

Detailed Planning Permission
200042/DPP

€/ Way| epus



Location plan

=== Rubislaw

An‘:’E'S(Jn Or
\ | | House
z “; Chevron
[ =
7,; 5 House

Royfold

House
[ ]
£3 700 ACD B
2
T \
- [
Q %F
@D
|-A
w
(@))
%
D
w
— %
Ry | |
. %’:':7/,@
Yoty
O :
Queen's R4 t%
@0



Aerial image (

looking east)




Aerial image




Hill of Rubislaw (as existing)

Y
b - W

oy
R

| ..,»\.:55%1\ y

@m‘y/ LAY

Yesasr o
\ ¥ 4
7 -
o :
.



ting)

IS

X
)
7))
©
-
S
—
S
1)
=
O
ge]
c
©
)
et
7))
c
0
o
(1)
B
a
Q.
<




Proposed Ground Floor Layout

/

First Floor
(East Wing Only)




Proposed Basement Car Park (Two Levels)

At



Proposed Second Floor




Proposed Third Floor




Gy T obed

Proposed Fourth and Fifth Floors




ol
ST

G
-.9&343‘0
(5

[ F2E200000

2
S
e

N
.







81T abed

Proposed Cross Section

M' | | RESDENTIAL CORFIDOR F I
e ] || L J

FESCENTIAL CORRIDCR. || |

_‘_‘_. — - m wjlﬂ__[t___

e o] ] N Wi A 1 s AN
- . L]
MR E—— I e e ———— —— o] a e i EH .......... _|:ﬁ..__- _I..._- [ S p———

|_ I RESIDENTIL CORRIDOR J

|  Fesmewma corrmon

P =l g . PUELIC OFENSRACE_  _ . : | ; | : | J

e - . 1 A

i i Jﬂ -l B FARSING i . | I S | ___I _________________
il 1 | FARSING [ | —s




Typical Design Detail

61T obed

LIVING OUT

5=

Three modues n chequerboard dispositicn




Proposed visual — looking south from business park

¥ emria Ao




Proposed visual - Iooking east across quarry

.-; | q\ “"\.' &S'

- S b, 7‘ ‘. il
gﬁ_ 'W ~wEasd Tt
”"‘-’ ‘E W \;u‘.'.—' "’}.




Proposed visual — aerial view

/



€GT obed

Comparison between proposed (top) and 2018 scheme (bottom)

. ] V P
'r"r.-' .mmn; j;s;




2006 consented scheme

e == —F—G—T

[N "-"_
.&1} -

o




GGT obed

Comparison between 2018 scheme and proposed

Proposed

ol atatiod <hall s b

g 2018 scheme

-
L -‘“ WL an
1 i .y
e vy M e B T
............... O G L L W L W < T s < A e

Proposed orevoss wopocar 2018 scheme

Current proposal

Building Lenath reduced by approx &
34m from previous £



9GT abed

View from Cromwell Road

VIEWPOINT 7: CROMWELL RD ROUNDABOUT LOOKING NORTH WEST

EXISTING VIEW - BASELINE PHOTOGRAPH

PROPOSED PHOTOMONTAGE

{ Subbben Ouwry Rbesdees LVIA



View from Anderson Drive

VIEWPOINT 16: ANDERSOMN DRIVE, LOOKING SOUTH

EXISTING VIEW - BASELINE PHOTOGRAPH

/GT abed

PROPOSED PHOTOMONTAGE - SHOWN AS WIREFRAME AS PROPOSED BUILDING WILL NOT BE VISIBLE FROM THIS VIEWPOINT



8GT abed

View from Rubislaw Den South / Anderson Drive

VIEWPOINT 12: RUBISLAW DEN SOUTH LOOKING SOUTH WEST

N/ M. s Ry .

Rtbn Duwry Abeedene (W

Verfes Viewpois 12
Dezxetng number: 51993004



View from Rubislaw Park Road / Queen’s Road

VIEWPOINT 13: RUBISLAW PARK ROAD LOOKING NORTH

BRPRA S WA -

6GT obed

Ratistow Quary. Aberdaon LA

B erfed) Viewpord 13
, Orawrg rurrber: §10835-DC-L-TO0OKS

PROPOSED PHOTOMONTAGE



View from Angusfield Lane / Angusfield Road

VIEWPOINT 14: JUNCTION OF UNNAMED ROAD BETWEEN ANGUSFIELD AVE AND ANGUSFIELD LANE

v s'.('.;gg-.

09T abed

Rubisiow Quary, Abesdeon LVA
Wetlud Veaport 14
Ovawrg rurmber: §1183-0C-L-T00-0000

PROPOSED PHOTOMONTAGE



T9T obed

View from Queen’s Avenue

VIEWPOINT 15: QUEEN'S AVENUE LOOKING NORTH WEST

EXISTING VIEW - BASELINE PHOTOGRAPH

PROPOSED PHOTOMONTAGE



View from Royfold Crescent

VIEWPOINT 17A: ROYFOLD CRESCENT (NORTH), LOOKING SOUTH WEST

_,4: »--":"’;.4;.

EXISTING VIEW - BASELINE PHOTOGRAPH

PROPOSED PHOTOMONTAGE



New Proposed Bulding QOutline

,.. . ...,...... .F..’ .s. P

View from Royfold Lane

=
=
@
O
n
o)
—
O
A,
o
s
o
x
0
o
<
°
=
=
@
=
o)
e
®
o
=
Lo
=
o
x
£
o
=
=
2
-



View from Royfold Lane

L . “y
3 A e o Y
NIGAIET o S AQUEIFRAY N o

SRR TR P TPRTI A

View from Royfold Lane (behind No. 9 Royfold Crescent)

New Proposed Bullding Qutline




==t  Planning Development Management Committee

gﬁl@ﬁg Report by Development Management Manager

ABERDEEN

CITY COUNCIL Committee Date: 1 June 2020

Site Address: Land Adjacent to Rubislaw Quarry, Hill of Rubislaw, Aberdeen, AB15 6XL
Residential development of 245 private rented sector flats (up to nine storeys and two
Application basement levels) with amenity space, 254 car parking spaces, two publicly accessible car
Description: club vehicles (including electric charging points), residents' gym, residents' function room,
public bistro and public promenade with viewpoints to quarry
Application Ref: 200042/DPP
Application Type Detailed Planning Permission
Application Date: 13 January 2020
Applicant: Carttera Private Equities
Ward: Hazlehead/Ashley/Queens Cross

Community Council: | Queen's Cross and Harlaw

Case Officer: Matthew Easton

*_J . . _5:-.-'-‘ c
', RubidtiauBediries / *-!‘ ‘ r,.-'
L | ug- ‘ ”
7 = Pond 7 e "‘?\\ w
%o | [t
L P LY. Tl
© Crown Copyright. Aberdeen City Council. Licence Number: 100023401 - 2018
RECOMMENDATION

Approve conditionally and withhold consent until a legal agreement is secured to deliver developer
obligations towards affordable housing, secondary education, core paths, open space and
healthcare

Page 165




APPLICATION BACKGROUND

Site Description

The site is situated on the southern edge of the Hill of Rubislaw office park and comprises the land
adjacent to the northern edge of the disused Rubislaw Quarry, which is now filled with water.

The land is undeveloped and comprises mostly scrub vegetation and bare ground. A small area at
the western end of the site is covered by broadleaved semi-natural woodland (protected by Tree
Preservation Order No.14), which continues out-with the site around the entire north west, west
and south west edges of the quarry. It is fenced off with no public access due to the proximity to
the quarry edge. A hedgerow runs along the length of the site boundary shared with the office
park.

There is no public access to any of the quarry site and public views into the site are very limited.
The quarry edge on the north side largely comprises a rocky cliff face with areas of vegetation and
the whole quarry site is designated as a Local Nature Conservation Site.

To the immediate north is the Hill of Rubislaw office park, featuring large offices buildings between
three and five storeys high, set within car parks and surrounded by areas of woodland. Chevron
House, Rubislaw House face the site with H1 (including Pure Gym) and Marathon House beyond.
To the east is Royfold House, beyond which are homes situated on Royfold Crescent. Situated on
the south east edge of the quarry are homes on Queen’s Road, Queen’s Avenue and Queen’s
Avenue North, a variety of vernacular granite villas and newer flatted blocks. Woodland covers the
south west and northwest edges of the quarry.

Relevant Planning History

e Outline planning permission (97/1300) for a six-storey office (three levels of office space and
three of parking) with 326 parking spaces was approved in July 1998. The consent was not
implemented and expired in July 2001.

e Outline planning permission (98/1814) for offices and 86 flats and 226 parking spaces was
approved in March 2001. The building was predominately five storeys with a tower reaching
seven storeys. The consent was not implemented and expired in March 2004.

e Details of reserved matters (A1/0439) relating to 98/1814 were approved in July 2001. The
number of flats increased to 107, the office space was reduced, and 162 parking spaces were
now proposed. The consent was not implemented and expired in July 2004.

e The outline planning permission granted in March 2001 was ‘renewed’ in September 2005
(A5/0742). The consent was not implemented in expired in March 2009.

e Detailed planning permission (A6/0478) for 116 flats, food and drink use and 207 parking
spaces was approved in August 2006. The building was predominately five storeys, with a
nine-storey tower. This consent was partially implemented and is still live and capable of being
completed.

e Detailed planning permission (P121692) for a five-storey office building was approved in July
2014. The consent was not implemented and expired in July 2017.

e Detailed planning permission (P140788) for a Granite Heritage Centre was granted in
December 2015. The centre was proposed on a separate site located on the south side of the

Page 166



quarry. It was to include a heritage museum, restaurant/bar and conference suites, with views
over the quarry. The planning permission expired in December 2018 as the development had
not commenced.

e Detailed planning permission (180368/DPP) for a residential development (across ten storeys
and three basement levels) consisting of 299 private flats, gym, function room, public heritage
bistro, promenade, car parking and amenity space was refused by the Planning Development
Management Committee on 21 June 2018, contrary to the recommendation of the Planning
Service. The reasons for refusal were —

e The adverse visual impact the proposal would have based on its scale and massing which
was considered contrary to Policy D3 (Big Buildings) of the Aberdeen Local Development
Plan.

e Insufficient onsite parking provided which would lead to overspill parking on residential
streets.

e Lack of suitable capacity to accommodate the educational needs of the development.

e Adverse impact on the wildlife on the site; and
The quality of the design does not meet the requirements of Policy D1 (Quality
Placemaking by Design) of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan.

The decision was subsequently appealed to Scottish Ministers (PPA-100-2092) with a decision
to dismiss the appeal being made in January 2019. The Scottish Government Reporter found
that there were aspects of the development which would attract considerable support from
national policy and advice. Specifically, the Reporter considered the proposal would deliver a
form of residential accommodation currently promoted and endorsed by Scottish Government.
It would deliver a development which would be accessible by a range of transport modes and
not depend solely on access by the private car. While there would be a loss of open space, it
would provide enhanced public access and has the potential to attract additional visitors to the
quarry area. Any necessary servicing and infrastructure requirements could be met, or financial
contributions provided such that impacts could be mitigated. However, overall it was found that
the proposal would represent over development with consequent adverse impacts in terms of
visual amenity, therefore the appeal was dismissed, and planning permission refused. The
Reporters reasoning on particular aspects of the development is discussed in the Evaluation
section of the reporter.

APPLICATION DESCRIPTION

Description of Proposal

Detailed planning permission is sought for the erection of a mixed use residential led development
of 245 flats and public bistro. The scheme is a reduced scale version of the proposal previously
considered by the Planning Development Management Committee in 2018 through planning
application 180368/DPP.

The development is proposed as a ‘build to rent’ (BTR) scheme whereby the applicant would
retain ownership and control of the entire development and manage its day-to-day operation.
Individual units would be self-contained and separately let to residents, with communal facilities
and on-site amenities integrated as part of the development. The different components of the
development comprise —

e 245 flats (20 studio units, 179 one-bed units, 35 two-bed units and 11 three-bed units)

e Residents' gym (not open to the public)

Page 167



Residents' function room, a communal recreational facility for residents to meet, which
would also be available for event hire.

Class 3 food and drink use (130m? Gross Floor Area) located on the ground floor.
Described as a ‘heritage bistro’, the premises would be open to the public and would
contain a permanent exhibition displaying material from the quarry, as well as a
photographic history.

A public walkway adjacent to the building and along the edge of the quarry, providing public
access to the quarry edge and allowing views across over the water.

Two levels of basement parking with a total of 254 car parking spaces, accessed via two
ramps, broken down as follows —

o 232 car parking spaces allocated to the flats (spaces and 12 accessible spaces).
Parking would be communal to all flats and unallocated (apart from car club
spaces).

o 2 car club spaces located at street level, available for residents and other
members of the car club.

o 20 car parking spaces allocated to the food and drink use located at ground floor.

33 motorcycle spaces (31 for residents and 2 for the bistro) and 194 cycle spaces (189 for
residents and 5 for the bistro)

The proposal would take the form of one building modelled in to two peaks with a valley between.
The building would be between two and nine storeys, reaching a maximum of 26.4m above street
level. It would be constructed from modules arranged to create a chequerboard pattern being
either solid or glass. The following materials are proposed —

Masonry-based off-white textured material for the white cladding panel.

Glazed floor to ceiling window units

Spandrel glass panels to visually match the floor to ceiling windows when viewed obliquely
or with no backlighting.

Granite at the ground floor where the amenity spaces protrude from the glazed public

areas. This will be part of the theme for the bistro, showcasing granites in various textures
and finishes to the public viewing/walkway areas.

Dark coloured powder coated aluminium panels.

The external building envelope would see colour controlled with any incidental colour added
to the elevation by blinds / blind boxes behind glazing rather than on the facade itself.

Supporting Documents

All drawings and supporting documents listed below can be viewed on the Council’s website at:

https://publicaccess.aberdeencity.gov.uk/online-

applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=Q41RJOBZML700

Page 168


https://publicaccess.aberdeencity.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=Q41RJOBZML700
https://publicaccess.aberdeencity.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=Q41RJOBZML700

Design and Access Statement
Drainage and Flooding Assessment
Ecological Survey (not available online)
Ground Investigation Report
Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment
Landscape Design Framework
Planning statement

Pre-Application Consultation Report
Sustainability Statement

Transport Assessment

Tree survey report

Reason for Referral to Committee

The application has been referred to the Planning Development Management Committee because
the application is in the major category of development.

Pre-Application Consultation

The applicant undertook statutory pre-application consultation which included a public exhibition at
the Tree Tops Hotel on 20 November 2019. It was attended by 48 members of the public including
representatives from the Craigiebuckler Community Council. The applicant reports that positive
comments were made regarding the design and proposed facilities, including the bistro and public
access to the quarry. Some concerns were expressed about the scale of the proposals and the
potential traffic impacts. There was also discussion around the relationship with the proposed
heritage centre on the opposite side of the quarry.

The applicant presented to the Pre-Application Forum on 5 December 2019. Members of the
forum heard from the applicant’s agent and architect and asked a number of questions of both the
applicant and the case officer, with the following information being noted in the minutes —

e There would be 240 parking spaces in the new proposals with car club spaces also included.

e There would be roughly twenty tables within the bistro area.

e Members of the public would be able to access the history of the granite feature within the
bistro.

There would be separate parking for visitors to the bistro.

In regard to visibility, local residents would not be affected with the amended proposals.

From Queen’s Road there would be no negative visual impact.

A new drainage assessment would be carried out to mitigate any concerns and to update from
the previous assessment carried out.

Parking was a real concern for residents in the surrounding area.

e To note that a revised Transport Assessment would be submitted with the new application.

CONSULTATIONS

ACC - Developer Obligations — Affordable housing contributions of £3,368,750 and other
developer obligations of £257,877 towards secondary education, open space, core path network
and healthcare are required (these are discussed in more detail later in the report).

Page 169



ACC - Environmental Health —

Air Quality — The proposed development is adjacent to an existing Air Quality Management Area
(AQMA). Although the concentrations of NO, and PMy, in the surrounding road network do not
exceed the annual mean concentrations, the proposal has the potential to adversely affect air
quality in the immediate vicinity and the wider area. It is therefore recommended that an air quality
impact assessment is carried out, which considers the impact on existing residents as well as the
potential exposure levels of occupants of the new properties on Hill of Rubislaw and measures to
reduce any potential impacts.

Noise — The occupants of the proposed development are likely to be exposed to noise impacting
on amenity. It is recommended a noise assessment is carried out in order to ascertain the
predicted impacts of likely noise sources on proposed development and necessary controls.

Odour — To protect the amenity of the occupants of neighbouring local residences and businesses
it is recommended that, where cooking activities are to be undertaken, that prior to planning
permission being granted, an assessment is carried out to establish the necessary Local Extract
Ventilation (LEV) equipment required to mitigate the impact of any cooking activities undertaken.

Dust — There is potential for an adverse impact on the amenity of nearby existing residences due
to dust associated with each phase of the proposed works. Therefore, a risk assessment should
be carried out and a site-specific Dust Management Plan, based on the outcomes of the
assessment implemented during the proposed works.

These matters can be adequately controlled through suspensive conditions.

ACC - Roads Development Management Team — The proposed site is located within the outer
city and not currently within an area of controlled parking.

Walking and Cycling — The surrounding area is well served by public footpaths connecting into the
private footpaths along Hill of Rubislaw (north side). The continuous footpath proposed along the
south side of Hill of Rubislaw connecting Anderson Drive and Queen’s Road would be welcomed.
The provision should be a condition of any approval.

Although the site is not located within the proximity of any designated cycle routes, Hill of Rubislaw
forms part of a recommended cycle route and cyclist accessibility is considered adequate.

Public Transport — Local bus services can be found on both Queens Road and Anderson Drive,
with direct links into the City Centre and alternatively out to the west of the City into
Aberdeenshire. Bus stops for both of these regular services are located within 400m of the site,
which is this distance considered to be readily walkable.

Only one of the four nearest bus stops is served by an enclosed shelter, with only the bus stops on
Queen’s Road having accessible kerbs and none have ‘real-time’ service information. Given this
size and nature of this development, and its’ potential to increase the utilisation of these bus
facilities, these stops should be upgraded, which the applicant has agreed to.

Parking — The proposed development would require a maximum total of 480 parking spaces;
however, only 254 parking spaces are proposed, which includes twelve disabled/accessible
spaces and two car club spaces.

However, the proposal provides at least one space per unit whilst also providing two car club
spaces which equates for an additional 34 spaces. This provision is considered acceptable given
the implementation of the following mitigatory measures — car club spaces, upgrade to bus

Page 170



infrastructure, adequate cycle parking provision and lease agreements for one car parking space
per unit with parking privately managed to enforce this.

The area around the Hill of Rubislaw has previously been subject to proposed parking controls
due the nearby offices. However, this was not implemented due to the downturn in the oil & gas
industry, resulting in much of the previous parking problems being eliminated. However, that is not
to say this could once again change in the future and the previous proposals could be re-visited if
required.

Due to the Scottish Government initiative for almost complete decarbonisation of road transport by
2050, new residential developments are required to provide electric vehicle charging points. The
minimum requirement for a development of this size is for two spaces for both ‘active’ and
‘passive’ provision

It is accepted there is adequate space to accommodate electric vehicle charging points.

The applicant is proposing twelve designated disabled spaces and is acceptable. The disabled
spaces should be appropriately located in order to serve the flats, bistro and gym. Motorcycle
parking provision has been proposed in the form of 31 spaces and is acceptable.

Adequate cycle parking provision would be provided, the current standard equates to 102 spaces,
but the applicant proposes 189 spaces. Additionally, the applicant also includes an additional
provision associated with the bistro for both staff and customers which is also acceptable.

Refuse — The area for waste collection vehicles is acceptable.

Internal Road Layout — This proposal consists of 245 units and it is required to have two accesses.
The proposed development can be accessed from two accesses which is from either end of Hill of
Rubislaw, from Anderson Drive and Queen’s Road, with then an ‘in and out’ arrangement into the
underground parking floors.

Traffic — The previous application for this site which consisted of a larger number of flats (299
units), which at the time the increased traffic associated with such was considered acceptable by
the Roads Development Management Team. Therefore, given this application is now for a
reduced volume of units (245) and that the AWPR has since been opened, again the traffic
associated with this development is considered an acceptable margin of increase.

Travel Plan/Residential Travel Pack — It is noted that within the supporting Transport Assessment
a Travel Plan Framework outlining suitable objectives and aims. This should include details on the
private car parking management as well as promotion of alternative transport methods within the
area, given the proposed shortfall on parking provision this will decrease demand on private car
use.

Drainage — It is confirmed that a Drainage & Flooding assessment has been provided as part of
this application and outlines appropriate drainage proposals and SUDS.

ACC - Structures, Flooding and Coastal Engineering — The Drainage and Flooding
Assessment proposes a 50% reduction in surface water discharge to the quarry by attenuating
and discharging into to the existing surface water sewer at a restricted rate. The management of
the water level of the quarry requires to be discussed and agreed by Aberdeen City Council,
Scottish Water and all other relevant parties and should be subject of a condition.

The proposed discussion with the developer to explore other measures to manage surface water
as SEPA has suggested is welcomed.

Page 171



ACC - Waste Strategy Team — No objection. Concern was initially raised with the proposed waste
chute arrangement however the chutes have now been removed and residents will take their
waste to bin stores using the lifts. One of the proposed bin stores is just within the 30m limit if
residents use stairs however a lift is available if they are prepared to walk a little further.

Full access would be given to the service layby and it would have dropped kerbs for moving the
bins in and out of the bin store. A low wall to segregate the trade and residential waste in the bin
room is acceptable.

Scottish Water — No objection. There is currently sufficient capacity in the Invercannie Water
Treatment Works and the Nigg Waste Water Treatment Works.

For reasons of sustainability and to protect Scottish Water customers from potential future sewer
flooding, Scottish Water will not accept any surface water connections into the combined sewer
system.

Scottish Environment Protection Agency — No objection.

Place making — SEPA are pleased to note in the Planning Statement that design principles which
have informed the proposed development, have been assessed against the six essential qualities
of successful places contained within Policy D1 - Quality Place making by Design of the Aberdeen
City Local Development Plan 2017.

Flooding/Drainage — No objection on flood risk provided that conditions are attached requiring
management plans for (i) the water level within the quarry and (ii) the detailed surface water
drainage proposals. A condition should be attached requiring further measures to manage surface
water to be explored by the applicant and ACC, Scottish Water and SEPA.

Foul Drainage — A condition should be attached to ensure that connection is made to the public
foul sewer.

Pollution Prevention — A condition should be attached requiring submission of a construction
environmental management plan

Queens Cross Community Council — Object. With over 425 objections to this development, this
suggests the local community are strongly against the development.

e The building’s siting, scale and massing is inappropriate and would not reinforce established
patterns of development, impacting on the amenity of the surrounding area. Higher density
development should be in the city centre.

¢ It would overlook properties and invade privacy.

e |t would create the risk of flooding on the south side of the quarry.

e |t would be seen from around Aberdeen, becoming a blot on the landscape.

e The visual impact upon Royfold Crescent would be unacceptable, the minor reduction in height
doe does not change that.

e |t does not respect the historic environment.

Page 172



It does not feature appropriate use of granite.

It would not adequately mitigate the impact of infrastructure (health care, core paths and
education).

It would result in the loss of trees.
Wildlife must be considered.

There are concerns over flooding at the quarry, which should be addressed prior to
determination.

The waste management arrangements are not suitable.

There are existing problems with parking in the area and not enough parking would be
provided.

The Queen’s Road roundabout is already over capacity in terms of traffic which would impact
on road safety and core paths in the area. The AWPR has not reduced traffic on Queen’s
Road.

Improved bus stops are welcomed however it is disappointing the bus services would not be

improved.

e The development would adversely affect air quality.

e There is no need for the development as there is surplus amount of accommodation in

Aberdeen.

REPRESENTATIONS

488 letters of representation have been received (470 letters of objection and 18 letters of

support). The matters raised can be summarised as follows —
Objections

Land use / Zoning

1. Redevelopment of the site is not consistent with the land use zoning of the site.
2. Residential accommodation such as this should be in the city centre.

3. There is already a gym within walking distance.

Quarry
4. Development is not appropriate at the quarry due to its heritage value.

5. Support is expressed for using the quarry for a variety of other uses, such as a visitor centre,
outdoor sports centre or subsea training centre. Concern is expressed that the proposed

Page 173



development would see such an opportunity lost.

6. The quarry should not be for residents only at the expense of visitors. The proposed public
access is limited

7. The proposed development would comprise the existing activities taking place at the quarry.
Safe public access to the quarry is already available.

8. Historic Environment Scotland has been approached to designate the quarry; it should be an
industrial heritage site.

Design

9. Despite being reduced in size, the building is still too large. The building does not sit
comfortably in the landscape, contrary to Policy D2 (Landscaping). It would be built on a hill in
a visible location, breaking the skyline, dominating the area and having an adverse visual
impact locally and across the wider city.

10. The modular, utilitarian design and style is inconsistent with the surrounding area. Concrete is

not an appropriate material; it should be finished in granite. The proposal is not consistent with
Policy D5 (Our Granite Heritage).

Amenity

11. Daylight to Rubislaw House would be blocked.
12.Privacy would be affected.

13.Waste would attract seagulls.

Natural Heritage

14.Trees would be felled to allow the development. Trees on the south side of the quarry and
Rubislaw Den should not be cut down.

15.The site provides a wildlife corridor in the urban area. Bats, badgers, peregrines would be
affected. Bird and mammals would be driven from the area.

16.An Environmental Impact Assessment should be carried out due to the Local Nature
Conservation Site designation.

Transport

17.Detrimental impact on local road network. The Transport Assessment needs to consider
existing traffic from the Hill of Rubislaw offices and proposed bistro.

18. Insufficient parking provision proposed for the flats and visitors to the quarry.
19.Bus services would require to be improved; they are already at capacity.
20.Shops and services are not within walking distance.

21.No provision for deliveries and servicing of bistro or gym.

Page 174



22.There should be more electric charging points.

Drainage

23.The proposed development would lead to flooding.
24.The applicant cannot control the level of water in the quarry.

Housing Market

25.The Local Housing Strategy states that there is no longer a shortage of property in the private
rented sector. There is already a high number of homes for sale and rent in the city, there is no
demand for more. The council should stop approving new homes.

26. Affordable housing units which sit within a high value residential area, could devalue adjacent
properties in the area in an already depressed housing market, further devaluing the local
housing stock.

27.The flats would be expensive.

Other Matters

28.The height of the building represents a safety to aviation safety.

29. Pollution would increase.

30.There would be extra strain on public infrastructure such as education and healthcare
provision. There are no guarantees that developer obligations would be spent on expansion of

such services.

31.There is a risk people would fall into the quarry and safety concerns over the depth and
coldness of the quarry water.

32.The proposal has no mention of affordable housing.

33.Rented flats would have a lower sense of community and lack of care and maintenance
34.Building could be difficult to maintain at quarry edge.

Construction

35.There would be disruption during construction. Blasting during construction would not be
acceptable.

36.Rubble might be pushed into quarry. The quarry would be polluted during construction.
37.Concern over the safety of construction workers.

Administrative

38. Conflict of interest in that Aberdeen City Council on the one hand want to maximize Council
Tax Income and that can be a hidden factor in Planning decision-making.

Page 175



39. Residents were not notified of the previous application.

40.The Council should support local developers not foreign developers.
41.All the objections from the previous application should be considered again.

42.The public consultation report is flawed as the developer produced it.
Support
43.The design is unique.

44.The site contributes nothing at the moment, the proposal would transform it and creates job
during construction and operation

45.High density housing close to the city centre is more environmentally friendly than housing
estates in the suburbs, allowing people to live closer to where they work and close to
amenities.

46.We need more homes in the city to support local facilities.

47.£70 million of investment is to be welcomed.

MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS

Legislative Requirements

Sections 25 and 37(2) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 require that where,
in making any determination under the planning acts, regard is to be had to the provisions of the
Development Plan and that determination shall be made in accordance with the plan, so far as
material to the application unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

National Planning Policy and Guidance

e Scottish Planning Policy (June 2014)
e Planning Delivery Advice: Build to Rent (September 2017)

Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development Plan (2014) (SDP)

The purpose of the SDP is to set a spatial strategy for the future development of the Aberdeen
City and Shire. The general objectives of the plan are promoting economic growth and sustainable
economic development which will reduce carbon dioxide production, adapting to the effects of
climate change, limiting the use of non-renewable resources, encouraging population growth,
maintaining and improving the region’s built, natural and cultural assets, promoting sustainable
communities and improving accessibility.

From the 29 March 2019, the Strategic Development Plan 2014 will be beyond its five-year review
period. In the light of this, for proposals which are regionally or strategically significant or give rise
to cross boundary issues between Aberdeen City and Aberdeenshire, the presumption in favour of
development that contributes to sustainable development will be a significant material
consideration in line with Scottish Planning Policy 2014.

The Aberdeen City Local Development Plan 2017 will continue to be the primary document

Page 176



against which applications are considered. The Proposed Aberdeen City & Shire SDP may also be
a material consideration. The Proposed SDP constitutes the settled view of the Strategic
Development Planning Authority (and both partner Councils) as to what should be the final content
of the next approved Strategic Development Plan. The Proposed SDP was submitted for
Examination by Scottish Ministers in Spring 2019, and the Reporter has now reported back. The
Scottish Ministers will consider the Reporter's Report and decide whether or not to approve or
modify the Proposed SDP. The exact weight to be given to matters contained in the Proposed
SDP in relation to specific applications will depend on whether:

+ these matters have been subject to comment by the Reporter; and

» the relevance of these matters to the application under consideration.

Aberdeen Local Development Plan (2017)

D1: Quality Placemaking by Design

D2: Landscape

D3: Big Buildings

I1: Infra Delivery & Planning Obligation

T2: Managing the Transport Impact of Development
T3: Sustainable and Active Travel

T4: Air Quality

T5: Noise

H1: Residential Areas

H3: Density

H4: Housing Mix

H5: Affordable Housing

B1: Business and Industrial Land

NE1: Green Space Network

NE3: Urban Green Space

NE4: Open Space Provision in New Development
NES: Trees and Woodland

NEG6: Flooding, Drainage & Water Quality

NES8: Natural Heritage

NE9: Access and Informal Recreation

R2: Degraded & Contaminated Land

R6: Waste Management Requirements for New Development
R7: Low & Zero Carbon Build & Water Efficiency
CI1: Digital Infrastructure

Supplementary Guidance and Technical Advice Notes

Affordable Housing

Air Quality

Big Buildings

Harmony of Uses

Landscape

Natural Heritage

Noise

Planning Obligations

Resources for New Development
Transport and Accessibility

Page 177


https://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/media/501

Proposed Aberdeen Local Development Plan (2020)

The Proposed Aberdeen Local Development Plan (Proposed ALDP) was approved at the Council
meeting of 2 March 2020. The Proposed ALDP constitutes the Council’s settled view as to what
the final content of the next adopted ALDP should be, and is now a material consideration in the
determination of planning applications. The Aberdeen Local Development Plan 2017 will continue
to be the primary document against which applications are considered. The exact weight to be
given to matters contained in the Proposed ALDP (including individual policies) in relation to
specific applications will depend on whether —

+ these matters have been subject to public consultation through the Main Issues Report;

and,
» the level of objection raised in relation these matters as part of the Main Issues Report; and,
» the relevance of these matters to the application under consideration.

The foregoing can only be assessed on a case by case basis.
Other Material Considerations

The appeal decision (PPA-100-2092) for the 2018 planning permission is a material consideration.
Although the current proposal is standalone and should be considered on its own merits, it is
effectively a reduced scale version of the proposal considered at appeal. Many of the
characteristics of the current proposal are similar to the previous and therefore the appeal
Reporter’s consideration of the previous proposal is relevant.

EVALUATION

Principle of Development

The principle of developing this site is long-established and dates back to 1998 when a large-scale
office building was approved. In the intervening period, further consents have been approved and
have expired, except for a consent (A6/0478) for residential and office use approved in August
2006. A limited amount of work on that proposal was started but not continued. These works were
sufficient to constitute a commencement of development and as a result, the planning permission
remains valid indefinitely. This, along with the previously approved applications, establishes the
principle of development on the site and is a material consideration in the determination of this
application.

The site is within an area zoned for residential use under Policy H1 (Residential Areas) and
therefore the principle of residential use is generally acceptable (issue #1 and #2 in
representations). The policy states that proposals for new development and householder
development will be approved in principle if it (i) does not constitute over development; (ii) does
not have an unacceptable impact on the character and amenity of the surrounding area; (iii) does
not result in the loss of valuable and valued areas of open space. Open space is defined in the
Aberdeen Open Space Audit 2010; and (iv) complies with Supplementary Guidance. Taking each
of these in turn —

(i) Overdevelopment

In terms of overdevelopment, it is necessary to consider the building’s scale, massing and form.
As well as considering this against the context of the site, this needs to be considered against the
consented scheme approved in 2006 as it could still be fully implemented.

It is acknowledged that the building is large, both in terms of its length and its height, therefore the
provisions of Policy D3 (Big Buildings) and the associated supplementary guidance applies. The

Page 178



policy indicates that big buildings are most appropriately sited in the city centre and its periphery.
Hill of Rubislaw is well established as a location for large buildings, both in terms of what exists
and what has been consented over the years. The site forms the northern edge of the former
quarry, which in itself is large in scale, with its body of water and wider tree setting forming a
foreground and context to the proposal. Therefore, the site is considered appropriate for a large
building. The appeal Reporter also found that Policy D3 does not preclude the siting of big
buildings outwith the city centre or its immediate periphery and that the appropriateness or
otherwise of any particular location is a matter for detailed analysis and assessment.

The building would occupy a large proportion of the site. Normally this would not be considered
acceptable, as areas of open space would be required to accompany the building, traditionally in
the form of areas of grass or gardens. However, as required by supplementary guidance, in this
case the building provides extensive areas of public realm, including three small landscaped public
areas (underneath in openings in the building’s elevations), walkways along the former quarry
edge which would be publicly accessible and a small garden area at the eastern end of the
development overlooking the quarry. These elements would provide the opportunity to allow public
access to the quarry edge for the first time and would provide sufficient outdoor amenity for
residents. Other elements such as parking have also been satisfactorily accommodated under the
building. Consequently, the fact the development covers much of the site, is not in itself a negative
characteristic and its amenity is considered to be satisfactorily designed into the proposal. In the
2018 appeal, the Reporter did not consider a deficiency in open space to be a contributing factor
to over development.

The maximum height of the 2006 scheme is 29.94m from street level, representing the tower part
of the development, whereas the remainder is predominantly 17.70m high. The 2018 application
proposed a maximum height of 32.8m, on the western most peak, with the middle peak being
29.6m and the eastern peak 26.4m. The main reason the 2018 application was refused at appeal
was that the Reporter found that the length of the proposed building and its linear form would, in
visual terms, dilute its vertical emphasis. It was considered that the building represented an overly
long physical barrier.

Compared to the 2018 application the proposal is both lower and shorter. Previously between four
and ten storeys, the building now varies between two and nine storeys, with a maximum height of
26.4m, which is the general height across the whole top floor, rather than being focussed at any
one part of the building. The building has also been reduced significantly in length by around 35m
at its eastern end, adjacent to Royfold House. The height is not consistent across the building,
with the massing broken up by the stepped profile of the peaks and the valley in the middle of the
building, reducing the impact of its apparent size. The massing of the building is further reduced by
the pends between ground and second floor level and the non-linear nature of the building, which
wraps around the edge of the quarry rather than being one extensive mass. Therefore, whilst
undoubtedly a large building, its scale and massing would be successfully reduced by its
remodelled form.

(ii) Character and Amenity of the Surrounding Area

With any large new development within an urban area there is the potential for the character and
existing residential amenity to be changed. This could be in terms of visual impact or the way the
development interacts with current uses in relation to disturbance or availability of daylight,
overshadowing and privacy.

Local Visual Impact

As required by the Supplementary Guidance on Big Buildings, the applicant has carried out a
Landscape and Visual Assessment to consider the landscape and visual impact on the proposal. It

Page 179



has considered several key receptors and the impact upon them because of the proposal.

The character of the area to the immediate north is the Hill of Rubislaw office park featuring large
offices buildings between three and five storeys high, set within car parks. The office park would
be where the highest visual impact would occur as the building would be immediately adjacent.

In the 2018 appeal, the reporter expressed concern with the height and proximity of the proposed
building to the office buildings; particularly with the eastern end of the building which it was
considered would significantly overshadow the northern section of Royfold House.

Generally speaking, visually this area would have a low sensitivity to change, when considered
against the characteristics of the office park and the buildings within it and given its office use and
the associated visual receptors largely being people in their place of work. Again, matters relating
to daylight, overshadowing and privacy are of less concern due to the area being a place of work,
although as the reporter noted an acceptable level of daylight and outlook should still be expected
in an office.

It is considered that reduction in the size of the building now proposed would successfully address
the previous concerns regarding impact on the surrounding offices. The end of the building closest
to Royfold House is now two and three storeys in height, comparable with the height of Royfold
House itself, which at a distance of 20m would sit comfortably with its neighbour. The only time
that any overshadowing would occur would be over the northern end of Royfold House during the
late afternoon, most notably in winter, which is considered acceptable.

Similarly, at the western end of the building adjacent to Chevron House, its height would be lower
than before, gradually stepping up to four storeys opposite Chevron House, as it progresses east,
creating a satisfactory relationship between the two in terms of amenity. Rubislaw House would
also remain unaffected to any significant degree by daylight or overshadowing (issue #11).

The areas to the west, south and east are largely residential; predominately featuring large,
detached granite-built houses set within gardens and tree lined streets. The more contemporary
flatted development to the south at Kepplestone, features four towers, the highest of which is
seven storeys.

From the local area the site is generally well enclosed and screened by other buildings and trees
and topography around the Hill of Rubislaw. However, given the height of the building, it will be
visible from several points in the surrounding and wider area including some homes. Being
residential properties, the sensitivity of these receptors would be high. Each of these areas is
considered below. The significance of the visual effect is categorised as minor, moderate, major-
moderate or major.

e The building would be visible from several homes on Rubislaw Den South to the north west,
from a distance of some 180m. The building would be just visible above the top of Rubislaw
House and through the gap in trees where the road into Hill of Rubislaw meets Anderson Drive.
The impact would be noticeably less than in the 2018 application, with the magnitude being
considered low due to the existing view already including buildings within the business park,
which from this angle, the new building would closely match in terms of height and the busy
road (Anderson Drive) with associated infrastructure such as railings and traffic lights. Trees
between the site and the homes would provide some screening all year round but especially in
the summer months. The impact is considered low in the long term.

e To the south of the quarry, views would be obtained from Queen’s Road and Rubislaw Park
Road facing north, at a minimum distance of around 160m. The embankment and trees along
the southern edge of the quarry would provide screening, but less so in the winter months. The

Page 180



stepped nature and general shape of the building would minimise its visual impact. There
would be minimal difference in the new proposal and the 2018 proposal and the impact from
the proposed building would remain moderate in the long term.

Angusfield Avenue / Angusfield Lane — The view is of low scenic quality, with the lane and
retaining wall around the quarry visible in the foreground and Chevron House in the mid-
distance. Domestic buildings such as sheds and garage are prominent in views from the rear of
homes on Angusfield Avenue, which are approximately 100m away from the proposed
building. Due to the existing character of the view, the impact of the building visually would be
moderate, reducing to minor in future as trees continue to grow and provide more screening.
Although the impact is already moderate it would be lessened by the reduction in height at the
western end compared to the 2018 application.

From the rear of properties on Royfold Crescent the building would be visible, with a distance
of around 65m between the proposed building and the rear of the closest house. In the 2018
appeal the reporter found that, due to its overall height, mass and relative distance at this point,
the proposed building would have an overbearing effect on the residential properties at the
north western end of Royfold Crescent. Compared to the 2018 application, at its western end
the building has been shortened by 35m and reduced in height and bulk. Rather than
increasing from one to ten stories fairly rapidly, it now gradually increases from one to four
stories at this end, before continuing to gradually increase to nine stories beyond (over 100m
away). It is considered that the reduction in height and size would satisfactorily address the
concerns raised by the Reporter related to the building being overbearing from Royfold
Crescent.

The building would be highly visible from the homes on the south side of the quarry. The
foreground view would comprise the quarry edge of vegetation and the quarry water surface,
with medium-distance views of vegetation on the opposite side of the quarry and the office
buildings at Hill or Rubislaw. The proposed building would be in full view with no intervening
screening. However, there would still be some distance between the existing properties and
the new building, and the outlook would remain open across the surface of the quarry. The
impact would be major-moderate in the long term. It should be noted however that any impact
from previously approved 2006 scheme and the current proposal would be similar in that the
view will become that of a large building. There would however be differences in their
appearance due to the reduction in size and the western end of the new building would be
some 35m further away from the closest house on Queen’s Avenue. The Reporter
acknowledged that views from this aspect are already expected to significantly alter with the
approval of the 2006 application.

Otherwise the site is well enclosed and unlikely to be particularly visible in the local area due to the
topography (issue #9)

Wider Visual Impact

The building would also be seen from more distant views throughout the city, which the applicant
has also considered in their assessment (issue #9).

From the A90 adjacent to Kincorth, around 3km away, as motorists approach the city from the
south, open views towards the site are available. Any change in the view would be negligible
when considered against the large area of the city and its skyline which would be visible.

On the approach to the site from the north on North Anderson Drive, approximately 0.7km
away, the introduction of the building would be a prominent feature on the skyline in the far

Page 181



distance, however, the building would sit below the skyline and would frame Seafield House
and Rubislaw House which come into view when approaching the site.

e From Harlaw Playing Fields at Cromwell Road, approximately 0.9km away, the proposed
building would sit behind the existing residential flatted blocks at Kepplestone, with glimpses
available between the blocks, however at this point be a distant feature, with the impact being
considered minor.

e From the road leading to Dobbies Garden Centre, Lang Stracht (around 2.8km away), the
development would only be seen as a distant feature on the horizon, set against the built form,
topography and changing skyline of the city. Tall buildings, such as the numerous residential
tower blocks and office buildings are not uncommon on the city’s undulating skyline. The
impact would be negligible.

Daylight, overshadowing and privacy

There would be no impact in terms of availability of daylight or impacts from overshadowing on
existing residential properties, as demonstrated through the applicants supporting information.
This is due to a combination of the distance between the proposed building and the new building’s
location generally to the north of existing properties which are within any significant proximity to
the site.

Similarly, the distance between buildings is significantly further than the standard 18m window to
window distance used to determine whether there would be any impact on privacy, when buildings
are directly opposite one another. The closest residential property (flatted block to the west)
effectively sits alongside the new building and any windows that do face one another would be
around 57m apart and at an oblique angle. Those on the south side are approximately 140m away
(issues #12).

The office buildings are around 20-25m away from the north elevation of the proposed building.
There would be a degree of overshadowing and overlooking from the flats as previously
discussed. However, given that the use of the offices is as a workplace rather than residential, the
sensitivity to these factors would be low, with the reduction in the size of the proposed building
addressing the concern raised by the Reporter.

Disturbance

The predominately residential use of the development is very unlikely to introduce any noticeable
level of disturbance to existing residential properties, largely due to urban nature of the
surroundings, the distance between the existing homes and that the proposed development is also
a residential use. The food and drink and gym elements are small scale, effectively ancillary and a
sufficient distance from existing residential properties to make any disturbance negligible.

Residential use is regarded as being compatible with office use, as any disturbance generated by
the offices is likely to be limited to vehicles coming and going at relatively low speeds and which
would not unusual beside residential properties. The peak morning and evening periods may be
busy with traffic entering and leaving the office park, but other times would be fairly quiet.

In summarising matters (i) and (ii), the building is considered to have been designed with a
silhouette which brings interest to the skyline and which by virtue of its scale, massing and form
would minimise its visual impact, despite its size. The reduction in the length and height of the
building compared to the 2018 application have satisfactorily addressed concerns expressed by
the Reporter through the appeal process. The character and amenity of the surrounding area

Page 182



would also be maintained, and any change of note would be in local views from a small number of
limited locations, where the impact would be moderate.

(iii) Does Not Result in the Loss of Valuable and Valued Areas of Open Space.

The site forms part of the Hill of Rubislaw Local Nature Conservation Site and is designated as
Green Space Network in the ALDP. The quarry and its surroundings function as an isolated green
space which, although not directly linked to other green spaces, provides benefits in term of
biodiversity and landscape value within an urban area.

The value of the application site to these wider designations however is limited as it largely
comprises dense scrub, a species poor hedgerow, bare earth and an area of semi-natural
broadleaved woodland. Throughout the period since it closed, there has been no public access or
views into the site, considerably lessening any recreational value it may have as open/green
space. It must also be recognised, as already discussed, that the principle of developing the site
has been established for some time. Therefore, the loss of the site as designated open space,
whilst not desirable, is not considered to be significant.

This loss must also be balanced against the positive aspects of the proposals relating to open
space. A major benefit of the proposal is the walkway which would provide free public access to
the quarry edge, enhancing the value of the quarry and the public’s ability to interact with it. The
provision of this public access is welcomed and considered a positive aspect of the proposal
(issue #6). The proposals would also feature areas of hard and soft landscaping around the
buildings, including new trees and planter beds with a wide range of native grasses, shrubs and
hedges. In addition to this, a contribution of £28,914 towards improving open space at Hazlehead
Park would be secured.

Whilst it is acknowledged that the building would change the character of the quarry, it would not
prevent any activities which the owner undertakes there (issue #7).

To summarise, the loss of the open space has already been accepted. Its loss is not desirable but
is not significant and on balance the introduction of public access and a high quality hard and soft
landscaping scheme results in a neutral impact in terms of open space.

(iv) Complies with Supplementary Guidance

There are a range of supplementary guidance documents that apply to this development.
Compliance with each SG is discussed in the relevant section of the report, but in general it is
considered that the proposal follows the requirements of the relevant SG.

To conclude matters in respect of Policy H1, the proposal is considered to comply with the
requirements of the policy. The building is not considered to represent overdevelopment or to have
an unacceptable impact on the character and amenity of the surrounding area. The building would
sit comfortably within the site, due to the surrounding topography and landscape and through the
careful design of its scale, massing and form. The amenity impacts on surrounding residential
properties are largely restricted to a visual impact, which would be moderate from a limited
number of locations, but otherwise negligible or nil. Although open space would be lost, the
opening of the site to public use and provision of high-quality public realm and landscaping would
result in a neutral impact.

Moving onto other matters relating to the principle of development —

Page 183



Economic Considerations / Rental Market

Concerns have been raised that the housing rental market would be overwhelmed with additional
units, affecting landlords in the area. It is also suggested that there is no demand for further
residential accommodation. Although 245 additional flats would be a significant number of flats,
the planning system does not operate to protect private interests or maintain the price of
properties. Guidance from the Scottish Government on build to rent schemes (BTR) identifies the
benefits of such schemes, such as complementing existing housing delivery models and helping to
increase the overall rate of delivery of housing. BTR can provide high-quality, purpose-built rented
accommodation that can enhance the attractiveness of the city, for new and different developers
and long-term investors at scale. It can also support labour market mobility by providing homes for
people moving into the area for work. It is important that a range of rental options are available in
the city and this development would contribute towards that aim. (issues #25 and #26).

The price (or rental costs) of flats is a matter for the applicant rather than a planning matter. There
are a range of flat sizes which would presumably offer a range of price points. (issue #27).

Granite Heritage Centre

A separate proposal for a Granite Heritage Centre to be located on the south side of the quarry
was granted detailed planning permission in December 2015 (ref: P140788). The centre was to
include a heritage museum, restaurant/bar and conference suites, with views over the quarry. The
planning permission expired in December 2018 as the development had not commenced.

A significant number of representations express a preference for the heritage centre over the
proposed residential development of this application. The approval of this residential application
however would not prejudice the heritage centre proceeding. Being on different sites and on
opposite sides of the quarry, with approximately 120m between them, both developments could in
theory be built. It is also suggested in representations that a heritage centre or various other
proposals should be built on this site instead of the proposed development. In respect of both
these matters, the planning authority is required to consider only the application before it. Refusal
of the application based on a preference for other schemes, one of which no longer has planning
permission and little prospect of proceeding and the others which are non-existent, is considered
not to be competent or defensible at appeal (issue #5)

Quarry Heritage

Many representations refer to the value placed on the quarry in terms of its history and the
significant role it has played in the development of Aberdeen through the widespread use of
granite quarried there. The feeling of many is that the site is unique and should not be developed,
or if it is to be, it should be a development celebrating the quarry (issue #4)

Although Historic Environment Scotland has not been consulted on this application and there is no
requirement to do so, in November 2019 HES received a request to consider designating
Rubislaw Quarry as a scheduled monument. HES has confirmed to the Council that they do not
intend designating the quarry.

HES found that Rubislaw Quarry is a historically significant site having provided much of the
granite building stone used in Aberdeen over an extended period. However, much of the former
quarry site has been developed, leaving only the water-filled main excavation. In the absence of
more extensive physical evidence to demonstrate the quarry’s operations, it is considered that
Rubislaw Quarry does not meet the criteria for designation. Where quarries have been designated,
they are either much earlier examples which have not been altered by modern quarrying or show
extensive remains of the quarrying operations as a whole (issue #8)

Page 184



Therefore, as outlined earlier in the report, the principle of development on the northern edge of
the quarry has been established for some 20 years.

The relatively small size of heritage bistro is questioned in representations and it is suggested that
it would not support tourism sufficiently. However, the primary use of the development is
residential and although officers have encouraged a public use to be incorporated into the
development, which the applicant was receptive to, there is no policy requirement to do so. The
public walkways and landscaping will allow access to view the former quarry, which is a prospect
not currently available and unlikely to be through any other projects (issues #6).

Non-Residential Uses

On non-residential uses, Policy H1 states that within existing residential areas, proposals for non-
residential uses will be supported if: 1. they are considered complementary to residential use; or 2.
it can be demonstrated that the use would cause no conflict with, or any nuisance to, the
enjoyment of existing residential amenity.

The proposed food and drink use (bistro) is relatively small scale and, as well as providing a
facility for visitors, would add to the amenities available for residents. It is unlikely to cause conflict
with the residential use and therefore considered to be acceptable.

The gym would be ancillary to the residential use and not available for members of the public to
use. The presence of a gym nearby is not a relevant or material planning consideration (issue #3).

Layout, Design and Amenity

The general aspects on the proposal’s scale, design and massing have already been discussed in
relation to the building’s impact on the surrounding area. More specifically, there is a requirement
to ensure that the proposed building adheres to other good design principles, set out by Policy D1
(Quality Placemaking by Design).

The proposal’s architectural design is unique to the site and has been informed by its
surroundings. Although unashamedly different from typical flatted developments in Aberdeen, this
is welcomed as it provides distinctiveness and adds interest to the city’s built environment. The
site, as described earlier, due to being relatively enclosed, provides an opportunity for a different
approach to development, without adversely impacting upon the character of the surrounding
area.

The architectural modules from which the building would be constructed, would create a
chequerboard pattern of ‘in” and ‘out’ elements and a rhythm across the facades. This ‘in’ and ‘out’
arrangement would create a textured effect adding interest to the building and reducing its overall
massing and the related visual impacts. In terms of materials, the building would be predominately
finished in masonry-based off-white textured panels, with contrasting grey window frames and
spandrel panels. Granite would feature at ground floor level around the public areas. The office
buildings at Hill of Rubislaw are constructed from a variety of materials such as stone, concrete
and glass, so the materials proposed would not be incongruous with the area. They are
considered acceptable in principle and a condition has been attached requiring the precise
materials to be specified and samples provided (issue #10).

Raised planters would be incorporated into the private terraces associated with the flats, featuring
shrubs and grasses adding further visual interest and diversity across the proposals. Species

Page 185



appropriate to the climate and tolerant to either sunlight or shade would be used depending on the
orientation of the planters.

There is a mixture of flat sizes, allowing a variety of household sizes to occupy the development.
All units on the quarry side of the development would generally face south or south west, ensuring
they benefit from direct sunlight and an excellent outlook. Those on the business park side
generally face north or north east. There are 20 single aspect flats looking solely north on either
the ground, first or second floors, which represents 8.2% of the 245 total. Whilst not ideal in terms
of outlook, this is a small amount of the overall total which is considered acceptable. Those that
are north facing on the floors above would benefit from being high enough to enjoy distant views.
All other flats are either south facing or feature a dual aspect. Many of the flats would also benefit
from their own private terrace, which are built into stepped form of the building. The terraces would
feature planters to allow greenery to be added to the development.

The proposal would have an active street frontage with double height glazing for the public and
communal areas on both the north (office park) and south (quarry) sides. This would animate and
integrate the proposal by allowing the activity inside to be seen outside, as would the use of
terraces and areas of glazing at upper levels. The public spaces provide pedestrians with priority,
leading to the walkways at the quarry edge which are easily accessible and overlooked to ensure
natural surveillance. Inclusive access for those with disabilities has been incorporated into the
design with the provision of ramps and stair lifts. Beneath the ground floor and walkway would be
two storeys of parking built into the quarry rock face. A green living wall is proposed to screen the
parking levels and tie the building into the remaining vegetation.

Five waste and recycling stores would be located at the first basement level, with a further store at
ground floor level, allowing access for residents and for collection by refuse vehicles. All flats
would be within 30m of a bin stores as recommended in the guidance. Notwithstanding, it would
not be possible to have a store any closer as it would then not be possible for collection vehicles to
access it. The food and drink element would have its own store. A parking area would be provided
for waste and storage vehicles to park (issue # 21).

It is considered that there is no particular risk of seagulls being attracted to the development over
and above any other residential development (issue #13).

In summary, it is considered that the development has been thoughtfully designed in response to
its context and would create a successful place with a distinctive architectural character, taking
account of the criteria in Policy D1 (Quality Placemaking by Design).

Noise

There is the potential for residents to be affected by externally mounted air source heat pump
which are proposed on the roof. As the equipment is yet to be specified a condition has been
attached requiring a noise assessment to be submitted which considers the likely impact and if
necessary, proposes mitigation measures such as enhanced glazing. Otherwise, it is not
considered that the uses themselves would cause any noise nuisance.

Accessibility, Traffic and Car Parking

Accessibility

The site is within the built-up area and is well connected to other residential and employment
areas. Footway routes and crossing facilities are suitably located on Queen’s Road and Anderson
Drive to facilitate pedestrians. To enhance pedestrian access, a new section of footpath would be

Page 186



created on the south side of Hill of Rubislaw linking to Queen’s Road and a condition has been
attached requiring a detailed scheme to be submitted. Being located within the urban area the site
is within walking distance of a range of services (issue #20).

Queen’s Road is served by several bus routes which link the city centre to the west end of the city
and settlements beyond, including Westhill and Kingswells. Bus stops for these services are
located within 400m of the site, which is considered a reasonable walking distance. The applicant
has agreed to fund the upgrading of the existing bus stop on the south side of Queen’s Road near
the Hill of Rubislaw. Concern has been raised that existing services are at capacity however the
provision of services is the responsibility of bus operators; it is expected they would respond to
any increase in demand. Overall, it is considered the site is well positioned in terms of accessibility
(issue #19).

Impact on Road Network

Vehicular access to the Hill of Rubislaw is via two signal-controlled junctions, one at Queen’s
Road and one at Anderson Drive. The following junctions have been assessed by the applicant as
part of their transport statement and reviewed by the Council’s roads officers.

As part of the 2018 application analysis of junctions at Anderson Drive (A90)/Hill of Rubislaw,
Queen’s Road (B9119)/Hill of Rubislaw and Anderson Drive (A90)/Queen’s Road (B9119) was
undertaken. All were found to operate within capacity when traffic associated with the
development was included. Since the development now proposed is smaller, and the AWPR is
now open which has reduced flows on Anderson Drive, it is not considered necessary for further
traffic analysis to be required (issue #17).

Parking

The Transport Accessibility SG sets out the Council’s guidance on the provision of car parking.
The car parking figures for both the residential and commercial development are applied as
maximums, with lower levels accepted where accessibility is good and other measures to reduce
private car usage are in proposed.

In the outer city zone, a maximum of 1.5 spaces per flat is permitted, resulting in a maximum
possible provision for the residential element of 480 spaces. In this instance it is proposed to
provide 254 spaces (232 in the two basement levels and 22 at ground floor level consisting of 20
for the food and drink use and two for the car club). The two Co-Wheels car club spaces and cars
would be made available to residents and the wider public. Each is considered to be the
equivalent of seventeen parking spaces (total of 34) and are anticipated to reduce the number of
residents who would own their own car. All the residential spaces would be communal and
unallocated, ensuring they are used to their full capacity, rather than sitting unused if a resident
does not own a car. It would also be a requirement of a tenant’s lease that they could not park
more than one car at the development. A residential travel pack would be provided to residents
which would provide a package of measures aimed at promoting more sustainable travel choices
and reducing the use of the private car.

This number of spaces, when considered against the accessible location and measures such as
the car club, is considered reasonable for the nature of the development and this number is
acceptable to the Roads Development Management Team.

Space for electric vehicle charging points has been designed into the basement car parks as

would some of the parking for the bistro. The two car club spaces would have chargers. A
condition has been attached requiring full details of the provision to be submitted (issue #22)

Page 187



As already outlined, it is considered that the site is readily accessible by public transport and within
walking distance of various places of work and services. The level car parking proposed has been
reviewed by the Council’s roads officers and is considered acceptable (issue #18).

Drainage

It is proposed that surface water run-off from the building roof area would be drained via
downpipes to stone filled filter trenches at ground level. 50% of the building roof area would
discharge via underground storage at a restricted rate to the existing surface water sewer (to be
agreed with Scottish Water) and 50% of the building roof area would discharge via gravity drains
to the basement level. Flows will then discharge via a separator to the outfall which would
discharge into the existing quarry water body. All other areas of the site will be covered by the
building roof area. A sluice and weir control would be installed to provide an overflow to the
Scottish Water sewers which would limit the maximum level of water within the quarry during
extreme weather. The drainage impact assessment indicates that it is anticipated that the natural
drainage regime will manage the water levels.

Concerns had been raised that the development could potentially increase the flood risk to the
existing residential development on the southern rim of the quarry by increasing the volume or rate
of surface water discharged into the quarry. There are also concerns regarding the risk to the
development from the rising water levels within the quarry. However, the proposed surface water
arrangements would create a betterment to the current situation in terms of the amount of water
which would discharge to the quarry, as 50% would now be directed to the surface water sewer.
The arrangements have been reviewed by SEPA and the Councils flooding team and found to be
acceptable in principle. Conditions have been attached requiring a detailed scheme to be
submitted.

SEPA have also advised that they have less concern that the occupants of the proposed
development would be “caught unaware” or impacted by a sudden flood event, due to the slow
rate at which the water in the quarry rises. However, SEPA recommend that a management plan
to control the water level in the quarry would not only benefit the proposed development but would
benefit the existing residential development. A condition has therefore been attached requiring
such a plan to be submitted (issues #23 and #24).

Foul water from the development would discharge to a new sewer, which would tie into the
existing Scottish Water foul sewer. This arrangement is acceptable, and a condition has been
attached ensuring that a sewer connection is made.

Natural Heritage

Policy NE8 (Natural Heritage) and the associated SG requires that development should seek to
avoid any detrimental impact on protected species through the carrying out of surveys and
submission of protection plans describing appropriate mitigation where necessary.

Environmental Impact Assessment

An environmental impact screening opinion has been carried out and it was determined that an
environmental statement does not require to be submitted.

Page 188



Protected Species

A phase one habitat survey as well as a further badger survey have been carried out by the
applicant (issue #15).

e Badgers, a protected species under the Protection of Badgers Act 1992, were identified as
potentially being affected by the development. Due to the sensitivities surrounding the species,
further details of the survey and its findings cannot be disclosed publicly as to do so would be
potentially harmful to the badgers’ safety and wellbeing. It can however be confirmed that a
mitigation plan has been submitted. Should work commence and badgers still be present then
Scottish Natural Heritage (SNH) would need to issue a licence allowing the mitigation
measures to be undertaken.

¢ In the UK all wild birds, their nests and eggs, are protected by law. Although the quarry has in
the past been home to birds of prey (Peregrines, Kestrels and Fulmars), none were noted
during the survey and the potential of the quarry to be suitable for such birds is now low due to
the increased water level in the quarry which has reduced the extent of the cliff ledges.

e Most of the site is unsuitable for breeding birds, with most of the dense scrub cleared.
However, the along the sides of the quarry and in the east, it is sufficiently thick to support
breeding birds. A variety of birds were noted during the survey. To avoid disturbance or
destruction of any nests, the site should be checked by an ecologist 24-hours before any
construction commences to ensure there are no breeding birds present and took place outwith
the breeding season.

e There were no indications of invasive or injurious species detected on the survey.
Trees

It is proposed to remove a total of 35 trees. These trees are predominately sycamore, ash,
whitebeam, cherry, birch and elm and vary in height from between 7m to 15m. At the western end
of the site, is Tree Preservation Order No.14, which covers this small area of the site and the wider
area of woodland on the north west, west and southern edges of the quarry. Only one trees to be
felled is within the TPO area. Three further trees are proposed for removal for woodland
management reasons.

The removal of trees would be contrary to Policy NE5 which states that there is a presumption
against all activities and development that will result in the loss of, or damage to, trees and
woodlands that contribute to nature conservation, landscape character, local amenity or climate
change adaptation and mitigation. Notwithstanding, the loss of all but one of these trees has
already been consented in previous approvals. Although the trees contribute to the character of
the immediate area, they have limited value in the wider area. To compensate for their loss, tree
planting is proposed throughout the public areas surrounding the building, with the indicative
landscape plans showing small multi-stemmed trees proposed around the building, details such as
number, species and size to be agreed via condition. A separate condition would be attached
requiring tree protection measures to the implemented to ensure protection of the remaining trees
to the west (issue #14)

It is considered that sufficient measures would be in place to ensure that natural heritage interests
are protected.

Page 189



Air Quality

Policy T4 (Air Quality) states that development proposals which may have a detrimental impact on
air quality will not be permitted unless measures to mitigate the impact of air pollutants are
proposed and agreed.

The proposed development is adjacent to the Anderson Drive Air Quality Management Area
(AQMA). Although the concentrations of NO, and PMy, in the surrounding road network are
currently not exceeding the annual mean concentrations, the introduction of additional traffic
additional car parking spaces, associated traffic and the construction of the development has the
potential to adversely affect air quality in the immediate vicinity of the site and the wider area. It is
therefore recommended by Environmental Health officers that an air quality impact assessment is
carried out. A condition has been attached requiring and assessment to be submitted and if
necessary, a set of mitigation measures to be implemented. These could include measures to
minimise the need to travel by the private car, supporting the car club or providing green
infrastructure (issue #29).

Affordable Housing / Developer Contributions

Affordable Housing

In accordance with the Affordable Housing Supplementary Guidance, the equivalent of 61.25 units
are required to be provided as affordable housing. Normally a registered social landlord (RSL)
would take control of a block of units and manage them as affordable housing, however due to the
expected high maintenance costs and difficulty in sub-dividing the building to allow an RSL to take
control of part of it, it has been determined that, rather than onsite provision, a commuted sum
would be the most appropriate option. The sum of £3,368,750 is therefore required, based on the
prime area rate of £55,000 per unit.

Developer Obligations

To mitigate against the impact of the development on community infrastructure, financial
contributions are sought to the make the development acceptable, calculated in accordance with
the adopted Planning Obligations Supplementary Guidance and advice from relevant Council
services (issue #30). The applicant has agreed to these contributions, which would be secured by
a legal agreement.

e Factoring this development into the 2018 roll forecasts for Hazlehead Primary School would
not result in the school exceeding capacity and no mitigation is required.

e For Hazlehead Academy the development results in the capacity being exceeded by three
pupils, therefore, to allow reconfiguration a contribution of £7,905 is sought.

e The development would include a residents’ only gym and the Rubislaw Playing Fields have
capacity, therefore no contributions towards sports and recreation have been sought. A
condition has been attached requiring the gym to be provided.

¢ No contribution will be required towards community facilities as communal function space will
be provided as an integral part of the development.

e A contribution of £58,925 is sought towards Core Path 27 (Den of Maidencraig to Anderson
Drive) and/or 60 (Anderson Drive to Denwood via Craigiebuckler).

Page 190



e A contribution of £28,914 towards enhancing open space at Hazlehead Park is sought.

e A contribution of £162,133 will be required towards the extension of healthcare facilities within
the City Centre in order to increase capacity, as existing facilities in the vicinity of the
development (eg Hamilton Medical Practice) are currently operating at or over capacity.

Sustainability

Policy R7 (Low and Zero Carbon Buildings, and Water Efficiency) requires all new buildings to
meet at least 20% of the building regulations carbon dioxide emissions reduction target applicable
at the time of the application through the installation of low and zero carbon generating technology
in accordance with the associated supplementary guidance. In order to meet these requirements,
the following is proposed —

e Building fabric will exceed minimum requirements and accredited construction details used to
reduce unwanted heat loss / thermal bridging.

Air tightness testing will be carried out to reduce unwanted air infiltration.

All fixed light outlets will be LED high efficiency type.

Ventilation systems will utilise heat recovery.

Heating systems will be decentralised and utilise heat-pump technology to reduce carbon
emissions.

e Enhanced controls will be used to reduce unnecessary energy consumption.

A condition has been attached requiring final calculations demonstrating compliance to be
submitted.

Policy R7 also requires all new buildings to use water saving technologies and techniques. A
statement has been submitted which identifies water saving measures which would achieve gold
standard on the Building Standards Sustainability Label. A condition has been attached requiring
the measures to be implemented.

Other Matters Raised in Representations

Most matters raised in representations and by Queen’s Cross and Harlaw Community Council
have been addressed above. Remaining issues are addressed below.

e Issue #2 — Whilst there may well be other sites in Aberdeen where flats could be developed,
the planning authority is required to consider only the application before it.

e Issue #26 — The impact which a development may have on house prices, whether negative or
positive, is not a material planning consideration.

e |Issue #28 — In this part of the city Aberdeen International Airport only requires to be consulted
(so that aviation safety can be considered) where the proposed development is above 90m in
height above ground level. At 26.4m, the proposed development is significantly below this
height. Furthermore, NAT the operator of the Perwinnes Radar do not require to be consulted
on development in this area of the city. There is, therefore, no concern with aviation safety.

e Issue #31 — A safety barrier would be erected on the walkway to prevent anyone falling into the
quarry. The barrier would be required to comply with any relevant building standards
regulations.

Page 191



Issue #35 — It is accepted that construction would be disruptive however this is inevitable with a
large project. The building is proposed to be constructed using off-site fabrication of the
components, allowing the build programme length and associated disruption to be reduced
compared to traditional build methods. An informative note would be attached advising of the
permitted working hours, with any complaints being investigated by the Council’s
Environmental Health service.

e Issue #36 — The title deeds of the site allow inert spoil from the site to be deposited via a chute
into the quarry. The construction environmental management plan would determine if this
method of disposing of spoil from the site is appropriate.

e Issue #37 — The safety of construction workers in not a planning consideration and is covered
by separate legislation.

e Issue #38 — Potential Council tax revenues are not considered in decisions on planning
applications.

e Issue #39 — Whether residents were notified of the previous application is irrelevant to this
application.

e Issue #40 — The identity or nationality of an applicant is irrelevant to the determination of a
planning application.

e Issue #41 — Only objections to this application can be considered. Those received to the
previous application were commenting on a different proposal.

e |Issue #42 — It is established practice and a requirement of the Development Management
regulations that the developer produces a pre-application consultation report.

Heads of Terms of any Legal Agreement

A legal agreement would be required to secure the payment of affordable housing and developer
obligations outlined earlier in the report.

Proposed Aberdeen Local Development Plan
In relation to this particular application, other than as discussed above the policies in the Proposed
Aberdeen Local Development Plan 2020 (ALDP) substantively reiterate those in the adopted Local

Development Plan. The proposal is acceptable in terms of both Plans for the reasons previously
given.

RECOMMENDATION

Approve conditionally and withhold consent until a legal agreement is secured to deliver developer
obligations towards affordable housing, secondary education, core paths, open space and
healthcare

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION

The principle of developing this site is long-established and dates back to 1998 when a large-scale

Page 192



office building was approved. Subsequent applications, including one that is still live and capable
of being implemented, establish the principle of development.

In terms of Policy NE1 (Green Space Network) the value of the site to this wider designation is
limited as it largely comprises dense scrub, a species poor hedgerow, bare earth and an area of
semi-natural broadleaved woodland. Throughout the period since it closed, there has been no
public access or views into the site, considerably lessening any recreational value it may possess
as open/green space.

It is important that a range of rental options are available in the city and the proposed introduction
of a significant number of build-to-rent flats would contribute towards increasing these options. The
building is not considered to represent overdevelopment or to have an unacceptable impact on the
character and amenity of the surrounding area. The building would sit comfortably within the site,
due the surrounding topography and landscape and through the careful design of its scale,
massing and form. The nine-storey height is not consistent across the building, with the massing
broken up by the stepped profile of the two peaks and valley between, reducing the impact of its
apparent size. The architectural modules from which the building would be constructed, would
create a chequerboard pattern of ‘in’ and ‘out’ elements and a rhythm across the facades. This ‘in’
and ‘out’ arrangement would create a textured effect adding interest to the building in both near
and distant views, while also reducing its mass and visual impact. Therefore, whilst undoubtedly a
tall, the building’s scale and massing would be successfully lessened by its modelled form. From
distant views, tall buildings, such as the numerous residential tower blocks and office buildings are
not uncommon on the city’s undulating skyline. The introduction of the building would have a
negligible impact in this context. It is considered that the reduction in size has addressed the
issues that led to the dismissal of the previous proposal at appeal. It is therefore considered to be
in accordance with the provisions of Policy D1 (Quality Placemaking by Design), D2 (Landscape)
and D3 (Big Buildings).

The amenity impacts on surrounding residential properties, considered through Policy H1
(Residential Areas) are largely restricted to a visual impact, which would be moderate from a
limited number of locations, but otherwise negligible or nil. Although open space would be lost, the
opening of the site to public use and provision of high-quality public realm and landscaping would
result in a neutral impact.

A preference to see another unrelated development proceed is not a material planning
consideration. Both the proposed development and any heritage centre on the south side of the
quarry could proceed independently of one another.

The provision of the ‘heritage bistro’ within the development with a public walkway and
landscaping will allow public access along the edge of the quarry for the first time and is
welcomed; enhancing the value of the quarry and open space. Some trees would be removed to
allow development; however, their loss has already been established through previous
applications. New tree, grass and shrub planting would feature as part of the landscaping scheme
for the public areas within the development. In this regard, the proposal is in accordance with
Policy D1 (Quality Placemaking by Design), D2 (Landscape) and NE9 (Access and Informal
Recreation) and NE5 (Trees and Woodland).

In terms of transportation, the site is well located within the urban area and close to public
transport routes and, therefore, meets the requirements of Policies T2 (Managing the Transport
Impact of Development) and T3 (Sustainable and Active Travel). A sufficient level of parking has
been provided and the impact on the surrounding road network considered to be minimal.

50% of the surface water from the site would be directed to the public sewer, whereas the
remainder would be discharged to the quarry at a controlled rate, representing an improvement

Page 193



over the current situation as less water would be directed into quarry. SEPA and the Council’s
Flooding Team have confirmed acceptance of these proposals and the requirements of Policy
NEG6 (Flooding, Drainage & Water Quality) would be met.

A mitigation plan has been submitted with respect to badgers and is considered acceptable,
thereby complying with NE8 (Natural Heritage).

In accordance with Policy 11 (Infrastructure Delivery & Planning Obligations) and H5 (Affordable

Housing), suitable developer obligations towards affordable housing, primary and secondary
education, core paths, open space and healthcare, would be secured through a legal agreement.

CONDITIONS

(1) SURFACE WATER DRAINAGE

No development shall take place unless a detailed scheme for surface water drainage and
connection to the sewer, in accordance with the Drainage & Flooding Assessment (Issue 07 —
January 2020) has been submitted to and approved in writing by the planning authority in
consultation with SEPA and Scottish Water. Thereafter development shall be implemented in
accordance with the agreed scheme.

Reason — to prevent any flooding and ensure adequate protection of the water environment from
surface water run-off.

(2) QUARRY WATER LEVEL MANAGEMENT PLAN

No development shall take place unless a scheme for the management of the water level within
the quarry has been submitted to and approved in writing by the planning authority in consultation
with SEPA and Scottish Water. Thereafter the management plan shall be implemented in
accordance with the agreed details.

Reason — to ensure that the proposed development is not at risk of flooding from rising water
levels in the quarry.

(3) FOUL WATER DRAINAGE

No development shall take place unless confirmation has been received that Scottish Water will
accept a connection to their sewer network from the development. Thereafter development shall
be implemented in accordance with the agreed foul drainage scheme.

Reason — to ensure adequate protection of the water environment from foul water generated by
the development.

(4) AIR QUALITY ASSESSMENT

No development shall take place unless an air quality assessment which considers the impact on
existing residents as well as the potential exposure levels of occupants of the new properties on
Hill of Rubislaw. Measures to reduce any potential air quality impacts should be considered. The
approved mitigation measures shall thereafter be implemented in accordance with a timetable
agreed with the planning authority.

Page 194



Reason - to mitigate the impact of road traffic associated with the development on local air quality.
(5) NOISE MITIGATION SCHEME FOR NEW RESIDENTIAL PROPERTIES

No development shall take place unless a scheme of measures for the protection of the proposed
residential properties has been submitted to and approved in writing by the planning authority.
This assessment should:

a) Be in accordance with Planning Advice Note (PAN) 1/2011 Planning and Noise and its
accompanying Technical Advice Note.

b) ldentify the existing sources of noise potentially impacting on the proposed development.

c) ldentify the likely sources of noise associated with the proposed development.

d) Detail the noise mitigation measures to reduce noise from the existing noise sources to an
acceptable level to reasonably protect the amenity of the occupants of the proposed
neighbouring residences.

e) Be in line with a methodology to be submitted to and agreed in writing with the Council’s
Environmental Health Service in advance of the assessment

Thereafter no flat shall be occupied unless the mitigation measures relevant to that property have
been implemented in accordance with the agreed scheme.

Reason — to ensure that residents of the development are adequately protected from excessive
noise levels.

(6) DETAILED LANDSCAPING SCHEME

No development shall take place unless a detailed scheme of hard and soft landscaping works
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the planning authority. The scheme shall be in
accordance with the principles outlined in the Landscape Design Framework produced by
Optimised Environments (ref: 171159 _OPEN_HillRubi_LDF-01 — January 2020) and include —

(i) Existing landscape features and vegetation to be retained.

(i) The location of new trees, shrubs, hedges and grassed areas and water features

(iii) A schedule of planting to comprise species, plant sizes and proposed numbers and
density.

(iv) The location, design and materials of all hard landscaping works including surfacing,
walls, fences, gates and street furniture (including the public walkway)

(v) a programme for the long-term management and maintenance of the hard and soft
landscaping.

All soft landscaping proposals shall be carried out in accordance with the approved scheme and
shall be completed during the planting season immediately following the commencement of the
development or such other date as may be agreed in writing with the Planning Authority. Any
planting which, within a period of 5 years from the completion of the development, in the opinion of
the Planning Authority is dying, being severely damaged or becoming seriously diseased, shall be
replaced by plants of similar size and species to those originally required to be planted.

Reason — To ensure the implementation of a satisfactory scheme of landscaping which will help to
integrate the proposed development into the local landscape in the interests of the visual amenity
of the area and to ensure that the landscaping is managed and maintained in perpetuity.

(7) PROVISION OF PARKING

No development shall take place unless a scheme for the phased provision of the vehicle,
motorcycle and bicycle parking has been submitted to and approved in writing by the planning

Page 195



authority. The phasing scheme shall —
(i) ensure that a level of vehicle, motorcycle and bicycle parking appropriate to the number
of units is available on occupation of each part of the building.
(i) demonstrate when and where the bistro spaces, electric vehicle charging points and car
club spaces would be provided.

Thereafter no unit within the building shall be occupied unless the parking associated with that unit
and identified as such in the phasing scheme has been constructed, drained, laid-out and
demarcated in accordance with drawings IBI-XX-ZZ-PL-A-221-0099 (Rev.3) and IBI-XX-ZZ-PL-A-
100-0103 (Rev.3) or such other drawing approved in writing by the planning authority.

Parking areas shall not thereafter be used for any other purpose other than the purpose of the
parking of vehicles ancillary to the development and use thereby granted approval.

Parking spaces shall be communal and unallocated to any particular flat within the development.
Reason — to ensure public safety and the free flow of traffic.

(8) CAR CLUB PARKING SPACES

No part of the building shall be brought into use unless (i) the car club only parking spaces have
been constructed and/or marked out and is available for use and any associated signs or road
markings have been implemented, and (ii) a traffic regulation order (TRO) is in place to restrict the
use of the parking spaces to car club vehicles only.

Reason — To encourage modal shift away from the private car.

(9) PROVISION OF PUBLIC AREAS AND WALKWAY

No development shall take place unless a scheme for the phased provision of the publicly
accessible external parts of the development (including the quarry edge walkway and area noted
as ‘aspirational paving outside ownership boundary line’ on the pavement adjacent to the site) has
been submitted to and approved in writing by the planning authority.

Thereafter each section of such areas shall be made available to the public on completion of the
corresponding part of the building.

Such areas will thereafter remain in use as publicly accessible space for the life of the
development.

Reason — to ensure the delivery of elements of the development proposed to enhance the
accessibility of the quarry open space.

(10) PROVISION OF FOOD & DRINK USE AND GYM

No development shall take place unless a scheme for the provision of the (i) food and drink unit;
and (ii) gym parts of the development has been submitted to and approved in writing by the
planning authority.

Thereafter each element shall be provided in accordance with the approved scheme.

Reason — to ensure the delivery of the amenities proposed for the development.

Page 196



(11) EXTERNAL FINISHING MATERIALS

No development shall take place unless a scheme detailing all external finishing materials of the
proposed building has been submitted to and approved in writing by the planning authority.
Thereafter the development shall be finished in accordance with the approved scheme unless a
written variation has been approved by the planning authority.

Reason — to confirm the specific materials proposed and ensure a high-quality finish to the
building

(12) EXTERNAL LIGHTING

No development shall take place unless a scheme of the external lighting for the building and it's
external areas has been submitted to and approved in writing by the planning authority. Thereafter
the development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved scheme.

Reason — to ensure public safety.

(13) TREE PROTECTION SCHEME

No development shall take place unless a scheme for the protection of all trees to be retained on
and outwith the site (including those trees within the route of the pedestrian path to Queen’s Road)
during construction works has been submitted to and approved in writing by the planning authority.
The tree protection scheme shall thereafter be implemented for the duration of the construction of
the development unless otherwise agreed in writing with the planning authority.

Reason — to ensure adequate protection for the trees on site during the construction of the
development.

(14) BADGER PROTECTION PLAN

No development shall take place unless the species protection measures contained within the
Environmental Survey (RQA-1803-EIS (rev.1) — 10 January 2018) have been fully implemented.

Reason — to ensure that badgers are protected from development.
(15) CONSTRUCTION ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT PLAN (CEMP)

No development (including site stripping, service provision or establishment of site compounds)
shall take place unless a site-specific construction environmental management plan (CEMP) has
been submitted to and approved in writing by the planning authority in consultation with SEPA.

The CEMP must include construction-phase and final SuDS supported by drawing(s) showing the
location of the construction phase SuDS features; storage locations; pollution prevention and
mitigation measures in place during construction e.g. spillage / chemical management and
monitoring; emergency contacts to SEPA for pollution incidents and Invasive non-native species
(INNS) management. The construction phase SUDS should be in compliance with the
requirements of SEPA General Binding Rules 10 and 11 for the management of water run-off from
a construction site to the water environment

Thereafter development shall be undertaken in accordance with the approved CEMP.

Reason — to minimise the impacts of necessary demolition / construction works on the

Page 197



environment

(16) WASTE STORAGE

No development shall take place unless a scheme for the phased provision of the waste storage
areas has been submitted to and approved in writing by the planning authority.

Thereafter no unit within the building shall be occupied unless the waste storage area associated
with that unit and identified as such in the phasing scheme has been constructed and is available
for use in accordance with IBI-XX-ZZ-PL-A-221-0099 (Rev.3) and IBI-XX-ZZ-PL-A-100-0103
(Rev.3) or such other drawing approved in writing by the planning authority.

Waste storage areas shall not thereafter be used for any other purpose other than the purpose of
the storing waste generated by the development.

Reason — to ensure adequate waste storage provision and for the protection of public health.

(17) LOW AND ZERO CARBON BUILDINGS

The building hereby approved shall not be occupied unless a scheme detailing compliance with
the Council's 'Low and Zero Carbon Buildings' supplementary guidance has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the planning authority, and any recommended measures specified within
that scheme for the reduction of carbon emissions have been implemented in full.

Reason — to ensure the development complies with requirements for reductions in carbon
emissions specified in the City Council's relevant published Supplementary Guidance document,
'‘Low and Zero Carbon Buildings'.

(18) WATER EFFICENCY MEASURES

No flat or commercial element of the building shall be occupied unless the water efficiency
measures identified in section 4.0 of the Sustainability Statement (Issue 03) produced by KJ Tait
Engineers have been installed and are available for use.

Reason — to help avoid reductions in river water levels, which at times of low flow can have
impacts on freshwater pearl mussel, one of the qualifying features of the River Dee Special Area
of Conservation (SAC).

(19) BUS STOP UPGRADE

No residential flat or the food and drink use shall be occupied unless the bus stop located on the
south side of Queen’s Road (approximately 40m east of Angusfield Avenue) has been upgraded in
accordance with a scheme submitted to and approved in writing by the planning authority.

Reason — to encourage the use of public transport and reduce dependency on the private car for
travel.

(20) RESIDENTIAL TRAVEL PLAN

No flat shall be occupied unless a residential travel pack has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the planning authority. The residential travel pack shall identify details of different travel

Page 198



options available in the area to discourage the use of the private car. The approved travel pack
shall be supplied to each household on occupation of a flat.

Reason — to reduce dependency on the private car for travel.

(21) COOKING ODOUR CONTROL

The food and drink use shall not become operational unless a scheme of Local Extract Ventilation
(LEV) for that use has been submitted to and approved in writing by the planning authority. The
scheme must fully demonstrate the extent of the necessary ventilation equipment and the
effectiveness of the associated cooking odour and fume control measures.

Reason — to ensure that residential properties are not adversely affected by cooking odours.

ADVISORY NOTES FOR APPLICANT

(1) HOURS OF DEMOLITION AND CONSTRUCTION WORK

Unless otherwise agreed in writing with Aberdeen City Council Environmental Health Service
(poll@aberdeencity.gov.uk / 03000 200 292), demolition or construction work associated with the
proposed development should not take place out with the hours of 07:00 to 19:00 Mondays to
Fridays and 08:00 to 13:00 on Saturdays. No noisy work should be audible at the site boundary on
Sundays.

Where complaints are received, and contractors fail to adhere to the above restrictions,
enforcement action may be initiated under the Control of Pollution Act 1974.

Page 199



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 200



	Agenda
	1.1 Motion Against Officer Recommendation - Procedural Note
	3.1 Members are requested to intimate any declarations of interest
	4.1 Minute of Meeting of the Planning Development Management Committee of 30 April 2020 - for approval
	5.1 Committee Planner
	6.1 Site at Silverburn House, Claymore Drive, Aberdeen - 191904
	Silverburn House PDH stage 1 191904

	7.1 Detailed Planning Permission - erection of primary school with early years facility, associated 3G pitch, soft and hard landscaping, alterations to access and all associated works - Former Tillydrone Infant School site, Coningham Gardens Aberdeen
	Tillydrone PS report - 200206

	7.2 Detailed Planning Permission - erection of 6 residential flats with associated landscaping - 44/46 Bedford Road Aberdeen
	44-46 Bedford Road - 200303

	7.3 Detailed Planning Permission - Residential development of 245 private rented sector flats (up to nine storeys and two basement levels) with amenity space, 254 car parking spaces, two publicly accessible car club vehicles, residents' gym, residents' function room, public bistro and public promenade with viewpoints to quarry - Rubislaw Quarry
	Hill of Rubislaw - 200042 report


